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AGENDA
JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUBDITING COMMITTEE

DATE:  Monday, March 23, 2009
TIME: 4;30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Room 309 Capitol
MEMBERS:; Senator Alex Diaz de la Portilla, Chair
Representative Marti Coley, Alternating Chair

Senator Larcenia J. Bullard  Representative Joseph Abruzzo

Senator Andy Gardiner Representative Charles McBurney
Senator Jeremy Ring Representative Scott Randolph
Senator Stephen R, Wise Representative Ron Schultz

1.  Discussion of federal stimulus for auditing and oversight.

2. Audit of Taylor County School Bistrict, if available.

3. Other Committee business.

AR



AGENDA ITEM 1



Charlia Grist, Governmr
Do Biduliand, Epaclial Adwisor

Accountzbillty and Transparency Provisions
The American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2005

Jaint Lagislative Auditing Committes
March 235, 2009

3/23/2009

Overviaw of the Act
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Accountability and Transparency

» Transparency and Cversight Requirgrnents
— Cartificaticns for Infrastruciuce investments
— Reparting requiremerts on all recipients of furds

[other than individuals}
— Reviaw by CBO and GA0

— Reviews by Federal Inspectars General
* Recovery Acceuntability and Transparency Board
» Recovery Independent Advisory Pangl
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Recovery Accountakility and Transparency Act Board

etaran i et G

T e e The o F Do

PRI IY S

I CR B F B

P T BRSNS

ot il e

3/23/2008

GAQ Oversight

* The LS. Government Accountability Office
(GADY has been given oversight respansibility
by the Congress.

(A0 has selected 16 States, including Florida,
for special focus during implementation of the
Recovery Act.

GAO Reports
______ {from tith B¢ af the Aet)
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The Task Tha Gindrher

mplementation

Florida Inspector General Act
Section 20.055, RS,

* Report the Facts

= Overses Public Funds

» Recommend Intermnal Controls

+ Canduct audits of « Liaison with
agency programs & axtarnal auditors
programs financa = Monltor corractiva
by the agency actions and report

. Prmride_mnsulting status to Agency
and _adwﬁury Head & Joint
sarvicas Legislative

Auditing
Commitiee

3/23/2009




Work Plans and Reports -

+ Peripdic Risk © + Annual Reporis
Asspesments — Rue September 30th
f - AuditWork Plans
Appraved by Agency
Heads

Investigations
* Racaive » Report Grimes to
Complaints Law Enforcament
- Conduct » Recommand
Investigations Corrective Action
— Whigtle-Blower » Keep Agency Head
Investigations Informed

Chief Inspector General
Sectfon 14.32 Forida Stafufes
« Coordinate
+ Monitor

« Overses Accountability
Efforts

+ Conduct Audits &
Investigations

3/23/2009
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Auditor General
Preparations for Auditing American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act
Funds

Juint Legistative Auditing Committee
March 23, 2004 i

342352009

Recipient Responsibilities

o Separate agoounizbility for funds

0 Expedificus disbursement

o Quartedy reporting that is transparent, Smely,
and acourats

o Joi creation and retention

o Funds are used for authorized pumoses and
instances of mod, waste, and abuse are
mitigated

o Program goals are achievad @,

Maro ¥ FiorklaAsdde Qanersd { N
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Audit and Accountability

Community Responsibilities

o  United Salas Gaverament Accounting Offics (GAD)
W Bimpnthly raparis
= 16 states In focts inclading Florda
3 Federal Agency Inzpectors General (1G]
»  Crergight of Federal sgency Recovery Act funded
ProGrams
= Whistleblower complaints
¥ Recavery Act Acccuniability and Teanspsrency Zoard
o Audits and reviews

L
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Audit and Accountability Community
Responsibiliies {Cont'd}

372372009

0 State Agency |Gs

a State Auditors and Jocal government
auditors
m Federat Sinole audits

Wurcy o Florkdn ApcFor ecran

Auditor General Planning and
Preparation

o Monitoring the fevelopmant of acdilenat audit
guidelines by United States Dffice of Management
and Budget

© Ongaing communicaion and coominaton
= GAC
= Faderal agency 155
a Sate agancy 1G5
m  State Smulus Czar

@ Schedullng audit resources to perforn Fadaral

Singla Audit for State of Flodda @.‘

e Wd Froride suddar Gl i
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Legislalive Auditing Comriides
March 23, 2008 Meeing

Finding No. 1
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Finding Ne. 1
Financial Condition

» Dunn the 2007-08 FY, urspant Lo
5. 215,503, FS, the Distvlct notfied FDOE &
Lac that a deficit fund balance had
accurrad, and requested asgistancs from the
Florida Assoctation of District  Schoel
Superintendents to develop a plan fo
imarove tha financial condition.

s The Schoeol Board agpmved an esanomic
racovery plan in June 2008, which included:
» Elimination of approxdrmately 50 saff pesidons;

r Reductlons in work ticue Far 50 other positions:

» Cansolidation of bus routes; and

» Uthar Maasues
_J@_ R
I At Gronra!




Finding No. 2
Financial Reporting

= Improvements ara needed n District
procedures for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the District’s accounting

records and annual financial report,
» The DIsrict Paled Yo prapera notes io the (e ksl statements ar the
abury fun wivkmmart of caxh flams, wech e requined slamams
f thes DIy s bamks finmncisd e oL,
= The aaaual Fevanclal Faport g ngk mclude the requireat MBS $occkon,
o Che Goeedofe nf Rrpangifuree of Fedemsd Swands sopsced by Besbed
Swtes Hflce of Hansgemant and Sudget Cicmar A-133% dudics &
Lhies, Lemal and Moy f rabicrts,
2 Thm GOLGES goetrHARA-WaTE Stakammrt of net msets was oul o
bulanee approsamately 3363 millkn, s ooomrily o tho D&

failurc 2o feport net asset babwrcns
M po¥or Gmmey

Finding No. 3
Budgetary Conirols and
Financial Monitoring

» Enhancements could bBa made In the Board's
budgetary process and the presentation of
required monthly fGrancial statements to the
Board.

:,,"- -'ﬂ‘t"
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Finding No. 3
Budgetary Confrols and
Financial Monitoring

General Fund Overesipend (T0Ess
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Finding No. 4
Bank and Investment

Reconciliations :

« The District reconciied itz bank and
investment accourts oY manually-
maintained records; however, hese
records ware ot malatained by reporbing
fund and had not been reconciled to
balances recorded on the District’s general

ledger.
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Finding Nos. 5and 6
Restricted Capital Outtay
Expenditures

w District procedures nead o be enhanced to
ansure Capital Outlay and Debt Service
futids are used for projects Incloded in its
approved project prictTty list.

= The [Cistrict used capital owtlay millage
moneys, totaling $78,6448, for unallowable
pUrposcs.

Additional Matters
Finding Nos. 7-2

»  Self-Insurance Health Plan
« Saocial Security Number Controls

=  Adult Education Enrollment
Reporting




Additional Matters
Finding Nos. 10-14

» Student Fee Lollections

v Interesi Earning Allacations

» Information Technaiagy Comtrols:
+« Written Procedures
+ Security Awarenass Training Frogram
» Liser Authentication Prpoess

Fongy
A (ranwral

Federal Finding
No. 1

»  Documentation was not availabBle o
evidenca the DIstrict’s compliance with
rafquired in-Xlpd matching contributions,
totaling £269,858 or limiabons on
development and administative costs
incurrad related o the Faderal Head Start
program.

.
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Federal Finding
No. 2

» The Districts procedures for monthoring and
reparting Faderal expenditures for grants
received throatgh the Florida Department of
Education were Insufficient, resulting i
unreported expanditures, totaling
appraximately $107,400, and questioned
costz relating te the Special Education
program, totaling $22,.940.35.




Faderal Finding
No. 3

= Payments, totaling $13,629.87, for health
support alde services were improperly
charged to the Head Sfart program.

i Y Pk
R oo Do i’

Federal Finding
Nos. 4 and 5

» The District drew down cash advances
from the Florlda Department of Education
(FDOE) in excess of ameunts necessary to
satisfy immediate cash needs. In addition,
our review dizclosed that interesi eamings
had not been remitted to FOOE.

1 District procedures were npt adafguate to
ensure that the status of Federai Head
Start cash was accurately repeorted and in
agreement with District records.

Flenda
Areliow i e

Federal Finding
Mos.6and 7

= Enhancements are npeeded in Distelct
procadures for maintaining documentation
to support the allocation af salarias and
Banefits to the Head Start and Special
Education — Grants to States pragrams.

= Procedural improvements are needed ta
ensura  amounts paid are adequately
supporbtad at the tTme of payment.

N A
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Quesfions?

Contact Information:
Greg Centers, CPA

Audit Manager — District School
Boards

Auditor Generals Office
Phone: 487-3039
Email: aregcenters@aud.state.fl.us
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aylor County School Distric,

Perry, Florida

Pzl E. Dyal, Sipenntendent of Sehools
Brenda Carlton, School Board Chalr
Vicki McManis, Dirsetor of Fiftance

Report for Joint Legislative Auditing Committce
Marsh 23, 2009

Room 309, Capitol Building
Senator Diaz de 1a Portilla, Alternating Chair
Senator Bullard
Senator Gardiner
Senator Ring
Retiator Wise

Répresentative Marti Coley, Alttmahﬂg Chair
Representative Abruzzo
Representative M¢Burney
Representativie Randolph
Representative Schultz
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Taylor County Scheol District
Perry, Florida
Report for foint Legislattve Audit Comunission
Monday, Mirch 23,2009

“Report on status of the Foeus Study of Business.and Financial Operations of the Taylor
Cotnty School Dstrist bfv the Flonda Association of District School ’qupermt:‘.nﬂﬁ:rr’ts

FADSS Cosf Recovery Table

Cost Savings from Staff Reductions: _
52 posttions elminated. $1.216,459
18 Imstructional postifons
20 [nstuctional aide posttions
6 food service posiiions
6 transportatior positions
+ MIS position
i Finance Ciiice posiion
50 positions tedoction in monthsthouss o
6 Bus routes eliminated $65,000

VVEF‘V%’*@

Total . $1.981459
Cost Savings Por Operating Cost $569.5G0
Total FATSS recommendations 52 550,952

Orther. Cost Saw@ S 343,993
Food Sarvice Price hmmcs

Reduce Supplements/T.ead TeachersDept. Heads:
Fagilities usage

Pay inditeance 8-

Indirer: Dost Allosation

Ticket price jncrease for energy cost

Mdiletic Contest Reductions

Crossing Guards reduction

School Resouris OlTicer redusiion

Fingerprint Fess

Head Start Waiver

Use 2 il for-eriergy saving frejects

WYY VWY YW YW Yy

~ Reductions starfing November 2609 $ 399,600
» Principal, TCMS

% I lostruetional Pesition

& Zrastodisn positions

> Sub’l instnietional pesition October-March



> Eliiniration ¥ District posifion

# Closed down office shite

¥ Savingson correction to-payrol funding source codes

¥ Cost savisgs from 2 mil fexibilily

¥ Cost saving on fnding middie school after school programs

¥ Coltection of Delinquent Lunch Charges

¥ SRO traveling to out-of-doen athletc contests
Projected Cost Sevings 200820609 $3,654,552

M OHIEHE



Taylor County School District
Perry, Fiorida

Budget Dévelopment 2009:2010
{A work in proeess)

From ihe Florida Association of Digtrzct School SLpenmamieme Foous Smdy of Business
and Financial Gperations for the Taylor Count Schioo] District the following are being
used i1 the budest develobment for the 2009-2010 fiscal year,

% Senvice units forrmula recormmendation for deterptining administration and
opetation of: each schook

'3 leried] units formula recommendstion For dsterminetion of clérical needs for the
operation of gach schoot,

¥ Custodis] vaits formula recommendation for determining the custodial positions

neaded for sach school. )

We acquired insénictional staffing plans fom swrotkding stoilar districts and

chose the Levy County Stafiing Plan to-determing the teacking units garned o

support the instructional progiam at sach ste.

AT

Transporigtion Buelget Development
» Istituting siagpered school times for 09-10.
¥ No eourtesy riders grades 6-12
% Expiore obtaining “havardons walking statusfor K-5 in town riders

Slﬁp plemental Positions
¥ Fliminstion of non Rethm on Investment idemtified activities
» Combiging coaching assignments where allowable
% Limtiting siumbér f coaches/spoasars by determining récuired participation
RIThErs.
¥ Reduce suppiemantal budget by 15%

{}*.I‘er Budget Having pm;ccts for 2008-2010

Altemative Sthoo! restructuring

Eliminating Drop OGut Prevention Coaddinator

Closing Alernative School Facility and wilizing facilitles already inl use
Elmminate. 3 vear DROP exfension

Eliminate Stanford testing K-2

VNV W WL
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MEMORANDIM

TO: Taylor County Schoot Board

FROM; Poul Dyal, Superintendsnt of Schools

DATE:

SUBJECT: Inswuctional Staffing Allgeations 2009-2010/0ther Assignments .

T T RN

Listed pelow are the instructional tsaching positions to be deletedirevised by site
for the 2009-2010 school year as perthe Staffing Alloestion Formule. These
Gelations are based upon each site administrator’s recommendations.

TCHS: Deletions -

Positian #016151124, Math, 3.5H/10M

Position 3016151128, Math, 3.5 T/10M

. Postfion #016151152; Sucial Studies, 7.5H/10M
Posttion #016151115, Languagé Avts/Reading, 7.5H/10M
Posifion £016152203, VE, 7.5H0M :
Poskion #016151113, Langiags Arts, 7.5H/10M

Position #016151108, Fereipn Lanpuage, 4H/T0M

Position, #018151131, Resourds Complignce Spacialist, 7.5/ 10M

Modife - '

Position #016151133, Resouree TercherTHscipline, 7.5H710M 1o 8HOM
Transfer - '

Position £016173304, Resource Teavher/Discipiing, 751/ 10M to'TTI as- §H/10M
{For high school alternative stidents fransferréd from TLE 0 T

Steinharches Schooks Deletion -

Position 011151161, PR, 7.58/10M

Mﬂé‘fﬁn

Position $011173301, Privcipal, 3E12M, Administeative Leval 2 1o
. Adsiinistrative Livel 3 '

TCMS: Deletions -

Dosition #012173306, Resource TeactenDisciphoe, 7.55/10M
Positton #512151115, PR, 7.5H/10M

PositonE003231102, PR, 7.5H16M

Position #0031352206, Gified/Math, 7.5010M



Modife -
Pasition #012173357, Resource Tedcher/Discipline, 7.55/10M fo SO

TCES: Ligletions -

Position #004151600, Keading Coach, 7.5H/IGM

Position #004151126, Blem., 7.53H/10M

Posifion $004151123, PE, 7.5H0M

Position #M151134, PE, 7T5HAMM

Position $004151103, PE, 7.5/10M

Fosition #00£131121, Tlem., 7.5H/10M

Modify -

Position #1041 51109, Dean, 8H/10M to Resource TeachenDiscinline, SH/I0M

PES: Delesiois—
Pa's';non;_#ums {139, Erm_, 7.5H10M
Position #014151131, Elem,, Z.5H/10M
Position #014151161, Flers, 7.5H/0M
Position #014151114, Blem,, 7.58/10M

Modip-
Position 2014161100, Student Services, 7. 3H/18M to Respures Teacher!

Discipline, 8H/10M
Positicn #0141 51146, Redding Coach, 7.5H/1 1M to 7.55/10M

Pre-8: Deletion —
Positicn $#902452102, VE, 7.5/ 10H

TTL: Beletions —
Positior: #013153306, Health Jec Ed., 75H/10M
& Reduce eveming classes for Weldingfndustrdal, Pipefitter and Business
Technology from tree to two rights per wik
» Reduce summer schook from shx weeks to four weeks — two weeks in Jun&
and two weeksin Joly

Tecknical Learning Center rmsrge with Taylor Coumty Middle Schoot and TTI
end the following positions be transferred.

Instractionad: Transfors -

Position #{121£3100, Diop Out Prevantion Caprdinator, 8H/1 1M, fo Resaurce
Teacher/Disciphine/Alt. B4, SH/10M to TCMS

Position #600951104, Al Ed., 7.5H/10M to TCMS

HIRET



Pogition 2000851105, Al Bé., 75H/T0M to TTI
Position #013152205; EBD, 75H/1 0o TCMS
Pasition #0121 53000, Wekding, 7.5H/10M to TH
Deletion —~

DPosition #900951103, Alt Ed., 7.5H/0M

Non-instructional: Trassfers -

Position 000551105, Clerk Typist, 8H/TIM to-Clerk Typist, 8¥/10M to TCES
Positien #033152208, Beliavior Specialisl, Z5HA0M to TEMS: S
Position 5012151149, Teacher Aido (Grant Fusided 8024}, H/9M 16 TCMS

ESE; Deletion-

‘Position #900852206, Staffing Specialist, 7.5H/1 U8

Moves _

Position #000861 1672, Sociat Worker, 7.5/10M to TCES
Positian £903352000; Job Coachy SH.'QM H}‘TCHS

Posifion #903352001, Job Coach;: SESM 16 FCHES

Posttion #903352100, Transition Specialist, 7. 1Mt TCHS

SUPERINTENDENT'S QFFICE: Deletion -
Position #5001 77702, Benefits Spectalist, SH/12M

WiIS: Delesion—
Position #906777708, Dala Enry, SF/11M

FINANGE: Deletion—
Pasition £000676601, Faod Service Coordinater, 8E/1 1M

OTHER MOVES AND CGNS{}IJ])ATIDhS,
o Schogl Health Nurse from’ MIS: mTﬂES
o Consolidete Network Manager’s Ofice info MIS Office Arez
s MoveiCoalition Resource Speoialist o Pre-K.
o Move Coitition Family Advocate fito self-noniained office area that has

its own heating and air and cutside actess, rent wili cover

TRUTER



Taylar County Schoal Distrivt
Peiry, Tlosida
Marck 19, 2009
Distriet Financial Condition
nressrvad Pund Balance Recovery Plan

The following information is from the District Schoo! Board of Taytar ﬂumﬂ}' District
Financial Comdifion Sunmmary Frojections for 2008-2009.

Balance Férward from Junie 30, 2608 {Tota Uniéserved) {$1,136,989.55)
As of Moath Frding Febmary 28, 2009 Projected Total Fund Balance  $3%0,07827
Faancial Condition Ratio 1.73%

At the February School Board meeting the Taylor County School Board redueed their
salary by 5%.

A;:’:mm_ﬁtrﬁtgrs, Cﬂo‘rdmami_‘s Sr:h{:_ﬂl ﬁdmttr_tmatq_*s Adm;msnamr,a ﬁs_aljs{ants_ a.nﬂ
non-uninn District emplovess by 5% for February 1,2009-Juns 30, 2009

‘The Superintendent voluntesrsd td donaie back 5% of his salary monthly.

We are presently in negoiiation with beth of pur-colicetive bargaimag wnits fo impose a
5% pay Teduction for February 1, 2009-june 30, 2009, The Taylor Cousty School Board
is willinig to sge this through the pravess. The Taylor County Schieo] Board bas imposed
the 5% cur starting Maxch 12, retrosctive to February 1, 2009,

The non-instructionel union has called for:an Administeetive hearing that ﬁr*;s beldon
March 19 and the Instruciional union has requedted a-Bpecial Magisteate rulitg scheduled
for April 13. '

Becruse gf the fime frame to tecover the 5%, by which it would cause {he Jeast ecoromic
imhpact of the smployaes, the Boird voted to impose the out, peading possible unfair labor
FArAcHiE.

If -for some teason the 5% salary ot does not happen, we will have to lay off employess
of increase ous anticipated buduet cuts for (9-10 t0 make up-the 3%,

The 5% satary reduction will generate $422 304,
Agof Feb. 28, 2009 Projection $390,078.27
5%, satary reduction thiough hine 30, 2000 422,394.60

Anticipated nreserved Pund Balence $812.472.27
Anticipated Financizl Condition Ratio 3.5%

i
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Summary of Report on Financial Statements

Cur audit disclosed that the District’s basic fGunancial statements were presented fairly, in all materigl
respects, in accordance with presctibed financial reperting standurds.

Summaty of Repori on [nternat Control and Compliance

We noted cortain maters involving the District’s isrternal conirel over financial reporting and its operation
that we congider to be material weaknesses, as summarized below,

The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is requited to be reported vnder
Govermment Andidag Standards as smwmarized in Finding No. 3 below. We also noted additional marters
that arc summarized below.

ATATERTAL. WEAENLESSES

Finding Nu.§ The District continued to expetience a decline in irs financial condidon duting the
2007-08 fiscal year. The General Fund vnreserved fund balance was a deficit $1,4l}::,1::1 22 and total fund
balance was a deficit §1,156,789.86 at June 30, 2005,

Finding No. 2  Improvements are needed in Disttict procedures for casuiing the accuracy and

compieteness of the District’s accounting records and annual financial report.

Finding No. 3: Eshancements could be made in the Boand’s budgetary process and the presentation of

required monthly financtal statements to the Board.

Finding No. 4 The District teconciled its bank and investmen: accounts to manoally-maintained
records; however, these records were niot maintained by reporting fund and had not been reconciled o
balaneces recotded on the Distriet®s gencral ledger.

Finding No. 3 District procedures need to be eahanced to ensure Capital Outlay and Debt Service
funds arc nsed for projects included in its approved project priority list.

Finding Mo, 6:  The Disttict vsed capital ontday millage moneys, totaling $78,649, for unallowable
pusposcs.
ADDTTIONAL MATTERS

Finding No.7: The District had not timecly obtained an acmarial report ot filed the required annual
teportt for its Group Health Scif-Insurance plan for the plan year ending September 30, 2008, with the
Fleridz Office of Insurance Regulation.

Finding Mo. & The Distct did pot condnct a review and evaluation of the reasons for the cellecton of
social sccurity numabers (S5Ns), preparc wtitten statements notifying individeals of the purpose fox
collection of the numbers, of submir the centification of its compliance with the new S5 teguirements w

the Legislature, conttary to Section 119.071(3)(x}, Florida Searmees.

Fimling No. 9:  Lmprovements are nesded in controls over the reporting of instructienal contact hours for
adult general education to the Flerida Depariment of Educaiion.

Tinding Mo, 1: Improvemcats arc needed in contrals over stadent fee enllectons.

Finding Mo. I1: The Distdict did not properly adlocate intersar earnings on pooled investments to the
respective funds owning the invesonents.

Finding No.12: The Districr Jacked written policics and procedures for certain information technology
functicns.

e
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Lipding No. 15 The Districr's security awareness training program needed improvement.
Finding No. 14:  Certain security controls related fo nser authentication needed fmprovement.

Summary of Beport on Federal Awards

We andited the District’s Federal awards for compliance with applicable Federal requirements. The
Federal Pell Grant, Special Education Cluster, Tite 1, and Head Start programs were sodited as major
Federal programs. The results of our andit indicated that the District materially complied with the
requirements that were applicable to the major Federal programs tested, with the cxception of the Head
Start program. However, we did pote complance and internal control findings that are sum.manzad
below.

Federal Awards Finding No. 1:  Documentation was oot available to evidence the District’s compliance
with teyuired in-kind matching conttibutons, totaling 5262,858, or lmitations on development ancl
admimistratve costs incurred related o the Head Start program.

Federl Avards Binding >0. 2 The Disttict’s procedures [vr monilosing  and  reporting  Federal
expenditrres for grants received through the Florida Departorent of Educaidion were insufficient, resulting
inn vnreported expenditures, totaling approxivately $107,400, and guestoned costs relating to the Special
Educaton — Grants to States program, totaling 522,940,835,

Federal Awands Finding No. 3: Paymenis, toraling $13,62%.87, for health support aide services were
impropetly charged to the Head Start program.,

Federal Awerds Finding No. 41 The District drew down cash advances from the Florida Department of
Lducadon {(FDMOE) in cxcess of amounts necessary to satsfy immediate cash needs. In addidon, our
review disclosed that interest eamings had not been remitted 1o FOOE. :

Tederal Awards Finding No. & District procedures were ot adeguate to cosure that the status of Fead

Start cash was accurately reported and in agreement with District records.

Fedetal Awards Finding No. 6: Enhancements are necded in District procedures for maintaining
docmmentaiion in support the allocation ni salaries and benefits io the Head Start and Special Education —
Grants to States programs.

Federal Awards Finding No. 7: Procedural tmprovements are needed to ensure amounis paid atre
adequately supported at the time of puyment.

Audit Cbjectives and Scope

Our andit objectves were to deternrine whether the Taylor County District Schocl Board and its officers
with adininistrative and stewardship responsibilities for Disirict operations had:

# Presented the Distdet’s basic financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accountng prncipies;

P EBatablished and implemented inemal control over financial reporting and cempliance with
requireprents that conld bave a direct and matcrial effcet on the financiad statements vr op a major
Federal program;

Esrablished intexnal controls that promote and encourage: 1) corapliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations, contracts, agd grant agteements; 2) the coonomic and efficicnt vperadon of the
Distict; 3) the relizbility of recoids and wepors; and 4} the safegparding of District assets;

v

W

Complied with the various provisions of lews, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
that are material to the financial statements, and those applcable ro the District’s major Federal
programs; and

- - Taken comective actions for findings included in our report No. 2008-151

The scope of this andit ncluded an examination of the District’s hasic financial statements and the
Schedulbe of BExpenditires of Federal Awards as of and for the fizscal vear ended June 30, 20058, We obmined
i

—
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an undetstanding of the Disiric®s environment, includioge its intcrnal contel, and assessed the risk of
material misstatement necessary to plan the audit of the basic Boancia! statements and Federal awards.
We also cxamined vadous sransactions to determine whether they were cxcouted, both in manner and
substance, in accordance with governing provisions of laws, rules, regnlatdons, contracts, and grant
agrerments.

Audit Methodology

The methodology nsed to develop the findings in this report included the examination of pertinent District
records in’ conpection with the applicaton of procedures required by auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America, applicable standards contained in Goversmen: duditiogr
Stanefard’s issued by (he Compiroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget
Cirenlar A-F55

SRR
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

74 Clande Pepper Building
£avid W. Martin, CPA 111 West Madison Street $50-288-5534
AITTOR SEMNERAL 'Irﬂ]lﬂhﬂSSE&, F].D‘ridﬂ- 32399_145'] Fax: SD’D-4$8“L€9?J

The President af the Senare, the Spraker of the
House of Representatives, and the
Tegislative Auditing Commitee

INDEPENDENT AUDITGR'S
REPORT Oy FINANCIAL STATHEMITNTS

We have audited the accompeoying fnancal stacemenss of the governmental acorerrees, the discretely presented
companent it cach major fund, and the aggregale remaining fond informaden of the Taylor Connty District
~ School Board as of and for the fiseal year ended fune 30, 2008, which collectively comptise the Distdet’s basic
financial starements s5 bseed In the table of contents. These financial smicments are the responsibility of the
Districr’s management. Chir tesponsibility iz to expeess opiions on these financial statements based on onr andit,
We Jid not audit rhe Anancial statements of the school internal fumds, which cepresent 200 sorcent of the assels and
23 percent of the liabilines of the aggreygate remmining fand information. Additionelly, we did nor zudic the financial
stawements of the Tavler County Education Foondadon, Iec., a discrelely presented component nnit. LThose
financial smhements were andited by other auditors whose meports have been farmzked to us, and our opiniors,
izofar as they relate to the atmounts included for the school nternal funds and the diseretely presented component

umit, are based on the reports of the other andoss,

We comdncied mar audic in acoordance with andizng standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicalle to finaccial audirs contained in Gosermmen! Lslizgg Stondards issued by the Compteedler
Gezeral of the United States. Those sandards require that we plan and perform the andic to obten reasonable
assutance about whether the Francial siatements ate free of materia! misstamement,  The financial staternents of
school inreradl funds and che Ta}f’.o.r County Edncation loundadon, Inc., were not andited in aceoedance with
Gosermmment Auditing Siandords. An audit mcludes examiming, on ¢ test basiz, evidence supporong the amounts and
disciosures i the fnandal statements.  An andit alzn Inclides assessing the sccounting principles used and

" significant esdmates made by management, as well as m'ﬂ]ﬂﬁﬁ.ﬂg the overall fiuancial statement presentaton, We
believe that our audiz, and the repors of the other suditots, provide a reasomabic basis for our opindons,

Fn our opinicn, based on ouz azdit asd the repotts of the other audirors, the Enandal statemernts teferred m above
present faify, in all soalerial respents, the respective financial posidon of the governmental activities, the discretely
presenled component unit, each major fund, znd the speregate remaming funé informatea for the Tuvlor County
District School Bozrd as of Juee 30, 2008, and the respective changes i financial posidon and cash flows, whete

1o
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applicable, thercof for the vear then ended in confonmity with secounting principles generally acrepted in the United
Sratey of Amedcs

The Districs has noc presented a erapagement’s discission and anslysis that aveounbng prinaples genenally accepted
in the Elnired States have determised 3 oecessary 10 supplement, althoogh not required o be par of, the basic

Hinanecial statemens.

I accosdance with Gesermmend Aadiing Standardr, we heve also issued u zepost on our comsidararion of the Tavlor
Counry Distder School Board's internal control over finanela! reporting and on onr tests of 115 compliance with
certain provision: of laws, mies, sepulations, contaces, and prant agreements aod other mubers ipcluded undes the
hcadimg INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON TNTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE
FINAWCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH OVEANMENT ALTHTING
STANDARDS The purmpose of that reportis o desesibe the seope of our testing of moereal coatrel over Eoanck:]
repotting and complisnce and the reanlts of that zesting, anc oot to provide wn opimion oo lhe nemal control gret
fnaecial repordng or oo compliance.  That report 35 an iotesesl part of s audic performed s zecosdznce with

Gogermmen! et Ysvdards and should be considered in asseasing the resels of our audit,

The BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCEHIEDULE (shown s Eshibiv - 13 & not & required part of the basic
dnancial statements, but I swpplementary nformation requited by acoounang prncples penerally accepred in the
United States of Amerdca. We have zpplicd cortain Imited procedures, which consisted principally of inquities of
management :c.ga.tdjng the methods of measuretneat and presentalion of the tequived supplementary mformadon,

1lowever, we did noc audit the information and express ne opinics on it

{¥ar audic was conducred for the purpose of fommieg opinions on the finandsl staternents thar coliechvely comptize
the Distdet’s basic fmancial slalements.  The accompanving SCHEDULE O EXPENIMTURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS !s presented for prrposes of additienal analysis as requited by the Urited Srares Office of
Management and Budget Cirsabar ~4-133, Audits af Saatet, Lol Gomrmmangi, aed Non-Profit Ovganizations, and 1s pot a
reqquited part of the hasic fnancial starements. Such iaformacon has been subjeced to the avdinng procedures
applied in the aadir of the basic financial statcmests and, in our spinion, Is faizly stated, in &l materal respects, in

relation 1o the basic ficanaal statements teken as 2 whole.

Eespectfully submtted,

(L0 )

" Torawid W Martin, C_[J:"x
March 13, 2009

o
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EXHIBIT- A
. TAYLCR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2048
Primary Gowvemmen: Campanen:
Covemmental Linit
Activities
ASRETS
Curran Aesels:
Cash i 3561,735.55 21,412.00
Iwestmern ks - Othar 194,958 14 67,555.00
Arsounls Racaivable 108962449
L frarm- iher Agencles 157047069
Frepald Tuition 2207400
laventades 183,745.249
Total Current Assets 5524 91346 111,241.00
Mancuranl Assets: .
lvrestrnents in SEBA Fund B Sumplug Fundsz Trust Fund 171, 48055
Capital Azsats:
Nondepreciabk: Capital Azsets 1,084 235682
Dawrecizble Capital Azsatz, Nat 28573457 57
Total Moncurrent Assots 30830144 .24
TOTAE ASSETS i JB.664.05Y.F0 141.041.00
LLABILITIES
Current Liabdities:
Bzlares and Berafils Payahla 5 1,657,253.91
Payroll Deducdians art Witk holgings 540 95674
Arsaonts Payable . 510,483.97
Czfarred Rewanoe 2257 8721
Estimzted Insurance Claims Payable 0017240
Lang-7arm Liakilities — Partian Due Within £ne Year:
Compenzated Absences Payable ZBEER1TT
Total Comemnt Liabilities 5.411,4£98.10
Mancuzrent Liabibte:s:
Long-term Lizkilties -- Porian Due After One Year:
Campensaied Absences Payable 2 673,349.11
Totzl Nencorrent Liahilties 267E,349.11
Tatal Llablllties 5,083,547, 21
NET ASSETS
Met Aszets Irvested in Capitat Assets 30,667 59399
Restricted for
State Categorical Programs 258,161.36
Caplal Projects 2037 28416
Oher Purpazes 22,074,039
Uriresticted {£,302 H28.72) 2E.EGT.00
Tofal Net Asseds - Z8,580,210.48 111.641.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5 36 ,634,057.70 £171,0471.00

Tha zocompamying notes fo financizl statements are an integral part of this statemendt.

"
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Functicns!Frograms
Primary Sewarn mant

Soevemmantzl Activitias:
Instruction
Fupil Parsennet Servicas
Inziruchonal Madia Sarvicas
Inziruckten and Cumiculum Cevelepment Sandcas
InzirucEcnal S Taining Services
Inziructzen Fslaved Tachnology
Ecard of Educetion
Ceasral Administraton L
Eahood ACministrstion
Facilifes Asquisition and Constuciian
Fizzal Servces
Food Servises
Cantral Services
Fugzil Transporiation Servicas
Cpsraton of Piant
Maintanancs of Plant
Admiristrative Tochnolegy Services
Sommunity Servisos
Intzres en Lang-Tarm Do
Unalcaled Deprecialion Expense:
Lass o Dispasal of Gopikal Asseky

Tasal Primary Govarmment
Componcent nit

Tawter Gourty Edvealion =zundaben, lnc.

EXHIT -8
TAYLQwR COUNTY
DISTRACT SCHOOL BOARD
ETATEMENT GF ACTRWTTER
Ferthe Fiseal Year Ended Jene 20, 2008

Exipense:s

ErixrEn iKoverues

Ghirges
far
Ferices

Crerating
Grarls ard
Canieatisng

Capital
Zrantz and
Conmbulions

5 16,731,198.58 3
1670, 770,45
1509152
105E,133,13
BT BS6 58
TR 427,78
2¢8,262.41
347,770,868
S 055.8a
+,1%1;680.20
45 250,79
4 550.0%0,55
350,440,156
7 255,067,05
I TR AGEZ]
A%R G248
ATT.CAT.24
255,606.70
5215
1,535 4EB.4D
348,70

188,835 65

441,655 23

35,12£.53

303 ,532.58

3

050,841.28

7238,005.0K:

119,063.23

391,210.00

¥ W1.050,527.£2 ]

545,153.07

¥ 1,¢58,945.28

¥

510,282,238

] a7, 555.00 +

General Revenues:
Taxes

Fizpery Taxes, Levles for Ooerstonal Purposes
Frepery Taxes, Levied for Capie; Froacks

Crants ard Contributions Mot Fesinoted b Speciic Programs

Unresidcted avestmend Eamings
Mizcellarsads

Tetal General Rewvey ues
Change I Mat Azgeta
Het Azgets - Juby 1, 2007

et Aksatls - Jue S0, 3005

The scoemoamsing roics Lo finaecial slialoments e A ndenml 2anl of his sledemenl
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EXHIBT -8

Nt (Expense) Revenue and Shanges in Met Awsels

Primeary Govammen:

Sowsmmental

Cormpornend
Limil

3 MG,562, 351 23
370, Fr0 40
26,351 .58,
0,030, 15213
SUET B R
TS 40T P
fA1R25T AT
£341,770.65)
(1,785,055 5
{1,072, 02502
046,250, T
(7E,830.02)
£330, 440,153
(1,497,227 55
(2,575,400, 275
1287, 573 45}
177.343.24)
36,135.83
(5BAE)
{1,285 £55.4)
(554570}

130.378.035.73)

(3756060

MAERTRT0
2,068,205.11
18802 5300
12259305
428.835.05

0EED. DG
AFTI0

A0 518,047 £5

n4.037.00

240811 60

P ]

[, 505.00)

154, 607.00

% Z4.540,210.49

114,04 3.0
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EXHIBIT-C
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHQDE BOARD
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
General Special
Fund Fewvenus -
Cther
Fund
ASSETS
Cash i) _558,949.468 : 1,074, 637.25
Invastmants - Other 38,259 14
Arccounts Receivable 1065,386.53
Oue fraom Sther Funds 220,951,858 56,850.73
fue fram Other Agencies a8 $12.31 853.331.37
Irvaniories . . o 048,55
fnvastmenis in S8A Fund B Surplug Funds Trust Fund 24,311,488
TOTAL ASSETS & 1,152, 760,15 i 1,184, 7558.35
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitios:
Salgrizs and Benefits Payable & 1,428, 10032 i 183 207 .22
Payroll Deductons and Withholdings S0F,520.11 S30.811.63
Accounts Payable 115,272.02 199,805,533
Due o Cther Funds 240 BEY DE 2718345
Cefered Revenue 33 641,71
Total Liabilities 2289,750.M 1.184.7958.33
Fund Bzlaneces: ]
Resarved for State Categotical Programs 268,161.368
Reserved for Encumbrances
Urreserved, Beported
General Fund (1,408 15122
Speoial Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Total Fund Baiaﬁces ﬁ 136 885 866)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES k) 1,152, 780,15 ) 1,184 758 35 '

The accompanytng notes to inancial stsiements zre an imtegral part of &is statement.
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MARCH 2009
EXHIBIT-C
Capital Captal Other Toral
Projects - Projects - Governmariz| Govemimnantal
Leocat Capital Other Fund= Furds
Imerovemant Fund Fund

3 1,534,264 .85 3407300 203,582 23 350563769
156, 740.00 194, 590.14

257506 108,562 .43

111,054.94 91,762 58 4,000.00 484 65113

14,482 08 1174822 73 32822250 1.670,470.09

24, 69574 188,745.29

13713827 171, 4501.55

3 1,590 607 10 1, 300,478,214 o7 62047 B, 3258 208 25
3 &§8,051.87 1,667,355.91
1,525 00 045 Gh5.74

54508 16,711 45 292 433.92

&1,732.58 125,730.89 193,886 25 675,208,258
1,172,028.00 322 20300 229787371

£2,337 .56 1,287 76T .89 B2 27765 5,476, 802,95

268,161,355

185 523,595 B88,704.12 25552777
01,405,151.22)
. [51,660.58} - {51.9450.58)

1,621 45579 2,711.32 107,589 28 1,781,756.39

- 1,807,272.44 271,328 175,342 §2 848,345.72

] 1,880,607 140 1.300.479.219 TG7,520.47 6,325 226 208

N 1 L 2 L

i
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EXHIBIT - B
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTARICT SCHOMO BEOARD
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASBETS
Jone X, X068

Total Fund Balances - Govermmental Funds 5 54834372
Ampirts reported for gavemnmentsl activitizs in the statement of net aszeis are different because:

Cepitat asceis, nel of aosuridated feprecizton, used in govemmental ctivities &fe not
finarcial reznurees and, tharalose, ara net rapoed 25 assats in the govarnmantal funds. A0 BE7 BE3 BD

IntezTral senvice funds &re uzad by management to charge the cosls of certam activiiies,
such as insurznes, to ndividual sundz, The assets and liabilkes of e intermal
sasyice fund are inclyded in gavemmentzl activiiies in the statemen: of net asseats. I2ATALE

Compenzated absences are not due ard aayablhe Inthe cument pesiod and are nat
renoried as ahilties in the govemmanial funds. {2,268, 000.32)

Total Net Azssets « Governmental Activities 5  2558{1.49.40 .

The accompanying notzs ta financial siaiemenis sre an migqrai part of this staiemert,
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The scocompznying ratas o financial statements are an imtegrel part of this statement
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MARCELT 2007 REFORT NO, 2000-171
EXHIBIT-E
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BA ANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Eor the Flzcal Year Ended Jure 3, 2908
Zeneral Spocial
Fund Ravenca -
e
Fund
REwanuss
Inismavesnmeantal;
Fecaral Dirac: % 53,982 72 1,273,564 .98
Fadaral Thraugh State ard Locs! BY 75325 2252 TAFA5
Sizie 1E6,250,32518 ZE,680.42
Laeal:
Texas T.aER 27270
Miscellzneaus 971,893.93 18,816,428
Tatal Revenues 24, 782,053,531 £ 515 DEY.5Y
Expendltures
Currant - Educaton:
Inziructicn 14,3535, 292,51 2. 580,4T3.35
Pupil Personre! Sensoas 1,244,298, 1 4473 485 0]
inslructicna Mediz Senices 1R G20 AT 1,902.21
‘natruction and Cumculem Devalopment Serdces T38, 54460 315,689.75
instructicoal Staff Training Serdces B tdtad 124,731.59
inatruction Relaled Tecnnology 117 245,35 57, 00801
Soans of Education 221, 57061
Genersi Administretion 278,851.53 ES_E41.18
Schosl Adelristratan 1.665,079.24 14 362 T4
Facilfies Acquisiticn and Carstruckizn 35018517 288175
Fzcal Sandcas A46.938.407 £ ATRTE
Food Sendimes 10,154.45
Cantral Serices 263,666,937 20,00
Pypil Trarsporstar Saricas 1.878,820.94 8238158
Oeeration of Plant 2,832,411.48 &7 759,58
Mzintenance of Plant 483 512,80
Acminlstrative Techralogy Services LTe501.42
Csmmounity Sarvicas 59,102,853 207,280 56
Fizxad Capidal Cutlay:
Facilities Aoquisition arnd Construcion
Crbar Capstal Outlay 147 £48.23 215,219,490
Dbt Sorvdos:
Intarzst ard Figeal Charges
Toial Expanditures 25 504, 554,70 4,512, 063,53
Excess {Deficiency of Revenuen Crver Expenditures 722 501,38}
Other Financitg Sources {3e3)
Transfars |a 520,2E5.81
Tranafers Cnit (B5.87 585
Taotal Qiber Financing Sources {Lees) 451.490.12
Net Change in Fund Ezlances [271.011.27)
Func Bslancas, July 1, 2007 (245,975 540
Fund Batances, Juns 20, 2003 3 [1.136,953.85) e

e
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EXHIBIT- E
Capitai Capital Othar Tatal
Projacts - Projests - Goremmentzl Governmantal
1 el Capitas Cther Funds Funds
imaravernert Furd Fund
5 $ - S 13784708
9495.231.25 4, 063,775,321
11,272.93 ety S, Ol 16,869, 19313
2,556, 206.11 10,034, 47781
L2 18518 TEE.T3 425 280.£5 108324575
2,725,363 27 12,450,368 788953352 33,524 33608
16973 rE. T3
1 B85,482.12
321,532.04 :
1,672, 944,33 :
185.873.40 —
552372 177,393.12 :
221.570.61
2d4e 40278
1.541.38 1.801,963.55
1,349,854.24 11,4%6.C0 121,799.00 1,156,144 20
351 286,53
1,542,750, 10 1,560,502.56
61,5563
1.851,212.62
2,790,151.14
2. THE.F4 198,387.47 Ba1 FaT.41 :
TS0 4Z ;
BB 38372 ,_
a7 45,65 G2 Sul55
80030372 - 1.252,271.95
5818 33.18
1.5890,595.95 11,495 00 1. 850 55575 33,678,654.587
T47 TTTE2 23456 125 37388 165 644 47
€8 E75.59 H05,241.50
(52035551 {529,241 501
[453,450.12)
256,287.590 634,36 125373 B8 155 544 A7
1,510,851 84 1,716,396 +5 065,04 S92,658.25
L} 1,807,270 4 5 271132 - [ 1?5.342.82 5 B45.343.72

-11-
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EXHIEIT-F
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT 3CA0AOL EDARD
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIATIES . :
Far the Fiscaf Year Ended June 30, 2008

Net Ghange in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reperad for gavernmentsl activities it e statemend of activifies are different because:

Canital cutlays are reporied in gevenmental funds a5 expenditures. Hawever, i the
staternan! of activities, the cost of Ihasa assets i ellecated over theie extimated useful lives
as deprecialion expense. This i3 the samount af deprediation experse in axcess of capital
outlaye in the cumant paricd.

The toss an the disposal of capitel assets durng the current pericd s reparted b the
staterment of actviez. In the governmanial fundz, the cost of thess asset wasz
recognized a3 an ependiiure in the year purchasad. Thus, the change in net assets
differs from the change in furd batance by the undeprecizted cost of the disprsed assets.

Interna) servica funds are teed by management to charge the cost of certain activitles, such as
insurence, to indnidyal funds. Tha net revenue of the inlemal sendce iund is reparied
with govemmental ackivities.

In the smkermant of actvities, e cost of compensated ahaences is maasured by e ameunts
ezmed during e year, while in the governmental funds expenditurss are recognized based on
the amourts actially paid for companazted absences. This is the net amount of compesszted
ahsercez poid in excesa of the amaunt eamed in the curnent pesiad.

Change in Net Assets - Governmental Acfivilies

The accompanying noies 1 financial siaements are an integral pan of this stasement.

17

E 155,644 47

(284,509.22)

(254670

T7.571.54

29565107

F 240.811.65
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EXHIBIT- G
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FLUND
Juna 30, 2008

Severmmental Activities -

tritesral
Senvice
Fursd
ASEETS
Curment Assets:
Cesh F 165, 797.36
Due From Qther Funds 156, 55815
TOTAL ASSETS g J5,387.01
UAEBILIMES
Cuement Lizbilitios:
Accounts Payabile 4 218,050.05
Eztirmated Insurance Clzims Payable 100, 17300
Total Liahilities ' 318.222.05%
NET ASSETS
Unresirictad 3217596
_ TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5 A50,357.01

The accompanying notes to financia: statements are an integral part of this statement.

-13-
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EXHIBIT-H
TAYLGR COUNTY
MSTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 39, 2008

Governmental Activities -

fnf=rnal
Service
Fund
OPERATING REVENLUES
Premiurn Revenues L 2,146 838.75
Other Opersting Revenues 42 871.52
Total Qpemting Revenues : 2,189,510.57
OPERATING EXPENSES
Itsurance Claims 1,330 398 76
Insurance Premiums SBF 718.25
Purchased Senives 10,270.580
Administrative Expense 203,500.88
Total Operating Expenses 2. 111 BEE.E3
Operating Income TT.724.04
NONOPERATING REVENUES ]
|terest . 14730
Change in Met Assats | TrAT1.34
Total Net Assets, July 1, 2007 {45 BOT.38)
Total Net A=sets, June 30, 2008 L 32.173.96

The accompanying notes to finandial statements are an integral pait of this siatement.

CITEE
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EXRIBIT - 1
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
FPROPRIETARY FUND
For the Fiscaf Year Ended June 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{25k Racaived from Premiums
Gash Received from Other Operating Revenues
Cash Fayments fur Insurance Claims
Cash Peyrrents for Premiums 2nd Other Fees
Cash Paymrents for Administrative Expenss
Cazh Payments for Furchased Services

MNet Cash Provided by Cperating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interzst Incoms

Het Cash Frovided by Investing Activities
Met Increase in Cash
Caszh, Beginning

Cash, Ending

Reconsiliztion of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Actlvitles:

Crparating Encore

Adjustments to Recsocile Operating Incoms to Mt Cash Provided

by Operating Adtivitios:

Changes n Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease in Aocounts Recenable
Decrease in Due From Reinsurer
Increass i Dua From Other Fends
|nerease in Accourts Payable

Total Adjustments
Met Cash Provided by Gperating Actlvities

The actarpanying notes to finandial staterments are an integral par: of this stztament.

Govemmentat Activities -
Internal
Sarvice
Fund

2,086,192.27
£0,690.75
{1,330, 396, 76)
(485 054 32)

(203,500,868 -

{10.27¢.50)

15365056

147,50

147.5Q

1252, 787.86

155,797 .66

77, 724,04

Z,346.58
55,0893
(62, 793.45)
21.664.07

T7.H24.62

155 850,56

AR
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EXHIBIT - J
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2003

Agency
Funds

ASBETS

Cash $ 281,983

LIABILITIES

Intarnal Accounts Payable 3 281,983

The agcompanying notes to financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.

-16-
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EXHIBIT - K
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOQL B0ARD
NOTES 70 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

# Heporting Engiey

The Districr Schoal Bozrd has direcr respensibificy for operadon, control, and supernsion of Pismes

schools and is considered 2 primery government for fimancial reporing, The Taylor County Schoel-

Thstrier is considered part of the Florida system of public education. The governing body of he
schoot distrier i3 the Taglor County Distdet School Board which 15 composed af five clecied
members.  The elected Superintendent of Schools is the executive officer of the School Board.
ng;ap"tic houndaries of the District comespond with those of Laylur County.

(riteria for determining i€ other entizies are potental compenent units which should be reported
within rhe Distder's basic financs] statemnenrs are identfied and described in the Governmental
Accounting Standatds Board's [(GASD) Godifantion of F Canrupental Acosuiing and Tinamial Reporting
Standurde, Sections 2100 and 2600, The application of these cdteda p.'tO‘i“1d&‘t tfor dentfication of any
eotides for which the THstrice School Boand s financially accomatable and othet Dj:gani?ﬂ.tinm for
which the natize and sipaificance of theit relasionship with the School Board are such thet exclusion
wopld copse the Dismier's basic fnancial stanements to be mtﬂ-&admg of Incomplete,

Based on the spplication of these criteria, the following component nmic is incnded wichin the
Dismict School Boasd's teporeing cotity:

s Discretely Presented Component Unit.  The component umit columns in the basic finanasl
staternents, Fxhibits & and B, indude ‘the financial data of he Taylor Coungy Fdueavon
Foundation, Inc., which was formed fo provide chadtable and edvrational aid to the Schaol
Board; tu promacte educafion; and o cocourage teseatch, learning, and disseminasion of
information. Because of the nalure and significance of its relationshipy with the School Board,
the .Foundadon i considered 2 component vnit.  An annual postaudit of the Foundation’s
financial smatements 1s condveked by 2n indeperdens cerfified pubdic acconntant and the audit
repor is Sled i the THseriet's admindstradve office.

Basis of Presentation

Govemmenzwide FHisancial Soatemepts - Governmeno-wide fmncial statements, mcluding the
statcment of net assels and the statement of scdvities, present informaton about the School THstrict
as » whale. These statcrments include the nenfiduciary finandal activiky of the primary government
and its component umk. .

Guvernment-wide BAnzncial statements sze prepared using the economic tesOUces MCAsULCMENt
fores. ‘lhe staterment of acwvities presents a comparison between direcs expenses and program
revenues for each fonction or program of Lhe Discrict’s governmental activies. [Mirect expenscs are
those that are specifically assoctated with a scrvice, program, or deparment and are thereby cleardy
identifiable 1o 2 pamenlar functon, Depreciation cxzpemse assoviated with the District’s
teansportation deparzent is allocated tor the transportetion fanction, while remaiming depreciation
cxpense is not readily associated with a pardeular function and is seported as wnallorated.

Progtam reveoues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the
propram, and grants and cootributions thet are restivred to mectng the operational or capital

17-
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EXHIEIT - K {Contoued)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL EOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Jure 306, 2003

requirernemis of a particulat program.  Reverues that zre oot classified 3 program revenues ase
presented as genetal revenues. ‘The compartsen of direct expenses with program revenues identifies
ehe extent o which each governmental fonction is sclf-finanding or draws from the general revenues
of the Dhstrier,

The effects of mrecfund achvity hasve heen eliminated from the government-wide hAnandal
stutemeénts.

Fend Financial Satements - Fuad fnancial statements repart detailed Information zbour the Dismor
in the governmental, proprietary, and fidedsry funds. The focus of poversmental fund financial
statcorcnts 15 on major funds rather than reporiing funds by svpe. Each major fond is weported in a
separare colnn. Nenmajor fonds are aggresated and reported in a single column.  Because the
focus of governmentat fund financial stazemenss differs from the focus of govemment-wide fimanaal
sraternens, a vaconciliation is presented with each of the governmental fend financial staterments.

The Pustde reporls the followring major goversmensal funds:

*  General Fund — to account for alf finzncial resources not tequired w0 be accounted for in another
fund, and for cerlain reverues from the Stae that ate legally esetricred to be expended for
specific current operadng purpuses,

& Specal Revepue — Other Fond — to acconnt 7oz certain Federal grant program tescurces.

Capital Projecrs — Local Canira® Improvemmenl Fund — io account for the fnaacisl resources
gencrated by the local capiml ivprovement tax levy wo he used for edvcaricnsl caprmal outlay
needs, including new construction and renuvalion and rernodeling projects.

o {apital Projects — Other Fund — to accouns for fingncial resoutces genetated by varions Srete
sources, incloding Classrooms  TUirst, Classtooms for Kids, snd Class Swe Reductiom
(onstructon,

Additionally, the Discrict reports the fellowing propristary snd fiduciary fund types:

v Internal Semvice fund — o account for the Thstrior's ndisadual self-insurance program.

¢  Arcocy Fonds — 1o account for resonrces of the school inremal funds which are used to
administer moners collected at several schools in connection wich school, sludent athleric, clazs,
and club actvites,

Basi=z of Accounting .

Basis of accounting refers to when revenucs and expendinures, or expenscs, are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the Gnancial statements. Basis of accounting telaces to the tming of the
measutements made, regardless of the measutement foces applied.

The gowernment-wide financiak statetments are prepared using the sccrual basis of accounang, as are
the propdetary fund and fiductary funds finanaal stareiments. Revenues are recognived when eamed
and expenscs awe recognized when a Hability is thenered, regardless of the tiing of the related cash
flowws. Propetly taxes ate zecognized in the year for which they are levied Reovenmes ftom graats,

CeRHER
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL EQARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

entifiemnents, and domstions are recogmized in the fiscal vear in which all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been satished.

Gaovernmenral fund finsndal statements are prepated using the modified acerual basis of accountiag,
Revenues, cxcept for certale geant revenues, are recognived when they hecome meoasarable aod
available Revenues are considered to he available when they are collecnble within the ¢urrent period
or soon coough therealler (o pay lishilides of the current peried. The Thstrice considers rovenues to
Le gvaflable if ther arc coliccted within 60 days of the end of the cument fiscal yeaz. When grant
werms provide that the expenditite of resources s the prime factor for derermimng clipbility for
Federal, State, and other prant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expendirnre is made.
Under the modified acomal basis of accountny, expenditotes are generally recognized when the
related fund liability is incurted, except for principal 2nd interest oo long-term debe claims and
judgtments, and cotnpensated absences, which are tecognized when doe. Allocations of cosl, such as
depreciaton, are not recognized in gavemnmental fonds.

The Propserary Fund is accounted for as a propeietary activiry under standards issued by the
Finaecial Accountng Stendards Board through Novemnber 1982 and appheable sfandards dssued by
the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board,  Proprietary fund: disnnguish operadng reveraes
and expenses from ponoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenies generafly resule from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund's
principal onpoing operations. The principsl opesating revenues of the Disrrtet’s internal servce fund
ame chatzes for eraployee health insurance pretniums.  (perating expenses include insurance claims
and cxcess coverage premistns. Al revenues end cxpenses pot meeting this defininon are repurted
&5 nonoperating revenues and cxpenses.

When both restdcted and unrestricted resonsces ate available for use, i€ s the Dismicr’s policy to vse
restrinted resources frsr, then unresicted resoutces as they are oeeded.

The Taylor County Educstion Foundation, Inc, shown as a discretely presented component wmit, s
accounted for under the not-for-proft Dess of accountiag and wses the acorual Tasis of 2ecouaring
wherchy rovenues ate recognized whed earmed and expenses ate recognized when Incunreed,

Deposits and Invesumenis

Cash deposits are held by benks qualified as public depositoties under Flonda law, Al deposits are
nsured by Federal depusitory insuzance and collareralized with securities held in Flonda's muldple
finencial institation collateral pool as required by Chapter 280, Flonda Statates. The statement of
rash Bows considers cash 22 those accounts nsed as dernand deposit sccounts.

Investments consist of amounes placed with the State Board of Administranen for patticipation in
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trost Fund investment pools created by Sectioms 218.405 and
218417, Flotda Staates. On Drecemaber 4, 2007, the State Board of Admivstradon sestructured the
Local Government Surplus Fuods Trust Fund o also estabhish the Fund B Surplus Frnds "['mst
Fung,

The Districe’s iovestmenss in the Local Government Surphis Tuods Trust Fund, which ce State
Board of Administration indicates iz a Secudties and Exchangs Commission Fule 2a7-Hke external
investment pool s of Junc 30, 2008, are similet 1o moaey market funds in which the shares are
ownced in the fund zather than in the underlying investments. These investrpeats are reported st fair
value, which is amorized cost
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EXHIBIT - X (Continued}
TAYLOR COUNTY
DHSTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Juoc 30, 20438

The Dhstricts investmecnts in the Fund B Surples Fuads Trust Fund ave accounted for 25 a
fluctuating met asser value pool, with 4 fair valie factor of (W923331 at fune 30, 2008, Fund B is noc
subject to particioant withdrawal requests, Dismbubons from Fund B, as deterraiped by the State
Board of Adminismabon, are effected by transferring eligibfe cash or scouddes to the Locul
(Govemment Sueplus Fonds Timst I'ued, consistent with the pro mia allocation of paot shareholders
of record at the creadon of Fund B, Ore hundted perceat of such distnbutions fsor= Fuod B are
available 23 a liquid bzlance wathin the Local Government Surplus Funds Toest Fund.

Types and amounts of investments held ar Fscal rear-cod are desedbed in 3 subseguent note on
Irrestments,

Inventorics

Tnventoties consist of expendable supplies, transportaden supplies, aod fuel held for eoasumption in
the course of District operatons. Ioventories are valued at lase invoice price, which approximates
the firsl-in, first-our basis (FIFCY, except that United States Department of Agroullure sueplos
commoditics arc stated at their fair value as detenmined ar the time of denstion to the Pistdet's food
senvice progsarm by the Florida Department of Agooalnire and Consumer Services, Bureau of Food
Distabutinon.  The costs of invenrodes are seoovded as expenditires when uscd mther than
parchased.

Capital Asseis

Lixpendiniees for capital assets zoquired or constrecied for general Tistrics purposes are repored in
the governmencal furd chat financed the acquisiter or construcdon, The capital assers so acgpized
arc reported ar cost in the guvernmentwide staternent of net assers but are not seported in the
governmental fund fnancial starements.  Capital assews are defined by the Disteict as those costing
more than $750, Such assets are recorded 4t histosical eost or estimated historcal cost it purchased
ot consiricted. Domated assetz are recosded ar fair value at the dare of donagion.

Zapiral assets sre depreqated wsing the staight-line tnethed over the following cstmated usetul Hves:

Description Estimated Lives
[mprovemerts Other than Buildings 20 years
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 10 - 50 years
Furmiture, Fixtures, and Equipment 3 - 15 years
Mofor Vehicles _ 5-10 years
Audio Visual Materials and Computer Software 5 years

Curteni-year informazion velative to changes in caprtal assets 3 desenbed 1o a subsequent note

-
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EXHIBIT - X (Continued}
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2603

lone-Term [iabilides

Leng-teme obligations that will be financed from resources o be received 1o the future by
governmental funds are repored as labilities 1n the goveroment-wide statement of net assets.

Tn the govermmen-wide fnancial stac=ments, compensated absepces (L., paid sbsences for emplmee
wacatcn leave and sick lmv(f' are accruexd as Mabilities Lo the extent thar ie is probable ther the
henefits will teselr in fermination pavments. A Habality is seported 1o the governmental fund Hoaocial
stacemenes oaly for the cument porton of compensated absence: expected 1o be paid nsing
expendlahle svailable resoutces.

Changes 1o long-torm habilites for dhe curtest year are reparted 7 2 subsequent note.

Siate Reveoue Sources

Revernies fromn State sources for curcent operations are pomadty fom the Flonda Bducation
Finance ng-em administered Ly the Flodda Depaztment of Fducarion Departmens under the
provisions of Sectinn 1011.62, Monds Stemtes. In eccordance wish this law, the District deterrnines
and reports the number of {ull-time equivalent (FTT) students and refated data to the Diepaniment.
The Diepartment performs cortain edit checks o the reported numbet of FTE and related data, and
caloulates the aflocation of fends to the THsteiet  The DHs:ict is permicied o amend s odginal
teporing for a pesind of nine months followrnp the date of the coginal reperling. Such amendreencs
moy impact funding allocadoss for subsequent years. The Department may also adinst swhseguent
fiscal period allocations based upen an audit of the Distmet's cotmpliance in determining and
repordng FIE and elated data, Mommally, sech adjustments are treared as reductons or addinons of
tevenne in the year when the adjustments are made,

The State provides financial asastance o administer certein caregorical educanonal programs, Srate
Board of Hducaoen mles requice that revenue camatked for cerlain programs be expended only for
the program for which the money is provided, and requice that the money not cxpended as of the

close of the fiscal vear be carned foreard mto the follewing vear 1o be expended for the. same

categorieal educalional programs. The Depamment generally requeres thay cawgodcal educabional
pIogram reverucs be accounted for in the Genersl Fund, A poston of the fund balance of the
General Fund is reserved in the governmental fond financal stetements for the snencutobered
halance of categorical educatdonal program resources,

“[he State allocates gross recetprs taxes, generally koown as Public Hdueation Capreal Outliy money,
to the Districr on an annmal basiz. The DHerdct also received allocadons eader the Classrooms for
¥ids, Classrooms First, and Class Size Reduction Constraction Programs. The Districr is anthonzed
to expend these funds anly wpon applving for and receiving an envumbrance authorization from the
Diepatmment. Accordmgly, the Distdet recognizes the allocation of Public Edncaton Capital Cutlay,
Classtooms tor Fids, Classrooms First, and Class Size Reducton Constructon programs funds as
deferred revenne until such fime as an encurnbrance anthotization is cecebved.

A schedu]f; of revetiue from Stare sources for the orrrent pear is preseoted 1o 2 subsequent note.
District Property Taxes '

The Schocl Board i authorized b'_;-; Sreate lew to levy property taxes for diserict school operations,
capital improvements, and debr service.

71-
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EXHIBIT - X (Continued}
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 36, 2008

Property taxes comsist of ad wvalorem taves on real and personal property within the Dhstricr
Propecty wahacs aec derermined by the Favlor County Property Apprziser, and property tames are
vollected by the Taglor Counry Tex Collectos.

The School Boserd adopted 'the 2007 tax levy oo Septembet 11, 2007, Tax bills ate mailed in (Jcmber

and taxes are payable betweesn November 1 of the year assessed 2nd March 31 of the following vesr
ar discomizs of up to 4 percenr Jor carly payioent

Tuxes hecome o len on the property on jammary 1, and arc delinguens oo Apdl 1, of the vear
following che vear of assessment. - State law provides for enforcement of collection of personal

property taxes hy sgizure of the property to satizfy nnpaid taxes, and for eaforcement of collection of

real propesty faxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax cerrificates in satisfy unpard taxes. “The
procedures result in the collecnon of cssentally all taxes poor to June 30 of the vear following the
year of assessment,

Property fx revenues are recognized in the government-wide fnancial statements when the Board
adopts the tax levy. Properly fax revenmes are recognized in the governmental fund Bnancal
siatements when taxes arc rocerved by the Distact, except that tevenug is 2cctued for tixes collecred
by the Taylor County Tax Collector al fiscal year-end but noc et remitted to the Pistdct

tillages and taxes levied for the currenr Fear are presented iz a subsequent nots.

Federal Revenne Sonrces

The Distrct receives Federa? avards for the enhancement of vadons cdncations]l Pprogratms, Federal
zwards are generally received based on applicetions subtmizted to, and approved by, vartons granting
zpencies. For Federal awazds in which a clatm to these grant proceeds 1= based on incurming eligble
expendiiues, revenne s recognized 1o the cxtens that eligble expenditures bave been incnrred.

2.  BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

=

Budgetary Information

The Boatd {oilows procedures established by Sate stetuies 2nd State Boatd of Edveation zudes in
establishing budget balances for governmental funds, a5 described beloran

#  Budgets ure prepared, public hearings are held and ongmal udgets are adopted aanually for all
governmental fund types in accardance with procedures and dme nteveals prescribed by law and
State Board of Bducsnon tules.

+ Appropriztions are controlled at the object level [eyg, salares, purchased services, and capizal

cutlay) within each actvity g, instruction, pupil persommel services, and school adminismation)

" and may be amended by resolution at anv School Board meeting prior to the due date for the
ansmal Ainancal weport.

»  Budgets ate prepared using the same mndified accrmal basis as s uat:d e muut far
governmental brods,

#  Budgetary information is integeated into the accpmnong system and, to faclitete budger conzol,

budeet balances are encumbered when purchase orders are lssued. Appropriations lapse ag fscal
vear-ond and cocumbrances outstanding ars honoved from the subsequent vear's appropdations.

e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

# Lxpendimecs Ower Appropriations in Todividus] Fuads

RErORT NO. 2008-171

Fot the fiscal yesr ended fume ), 2008, expenditires cxceed appropdadons for the following

1ndividne] funds:
Fundid ctivity

Expenditures

Budget

Acuial

Yariance

General:

instnigtion

Fupil Personnel Services

inetmction and Curmiculum
Development Services

[netructional St=f Training Services

School Administration

Facilities Acqukitior and Canstructian

Fisoal Samvices

Central Services

Pupll Transgportation Senvices

‘Opermtion of Plant

M aintenange of Plant

Community Services

Trangfers Chet

Special Revenye - Gfther:

Instruction and Cumiculum
Develapmant Services

Instraction Related Technology
Facilities Acquisidon and Consiruction
Fiscal Semwvicas
Fond Senvices
Cantral Services
Pupil Transportzion Sandces
Community Services

¥ Deficit Fund Balances ia {Goveromental Funds

$ 13,572.861.01

1,173,435.88

750.166.38
11,792,858
1,560,786.41
34.748.41
310,237.70
254,974 65
1,768,917.61
2.903.732.59
46682412
56.600,17

138.500.00
16,285.0&

17.100.00

45.800.00
168,600.00

5 14,303,202 51

1244096511

TR, 544 60
g4,141.41

1 666,079.24
390118417
345,935 .07
365,656 37

1 B78,620.84
2932411 .45
48351280
58102 84
88,875.50

315,689.75
£7,005.01
293179
4,328 76
18,184.43
350.00
82,391 .88
207,250.85

The fullowdng governtmental funds have detial fund Lalances ac Jure 30, 2008

Elnfavorable

§ (320830.60)
(66,560.25)

(8.378.23
{52,343.95)
[5,292.83)
(4.271.78
(36.700.37)
{98587 72)
[118,503.53)
(28,679.07)
{26.788.65)
(248368
{E8.B75.6D)

(177 159.78)
{41.72%.03)
(2.531.79
[4,32875)
1.084.45)
{300.00)
{35.581.88)
{38.280.85)

Fund Chamsge in Fuad
Baances Fund Balnces Balances
7-1-0r7 Fxcal Year 5-30-08
' 2007-08
Maar Goverrmental Funds:
Genenal Fung H(865.O7BEQ)  S2TIMM127)  $(1,13888085)
Menmajor Govemnment s Funds:
Special Revanue - Food Senice Fund 16,387.73 {68,343 33) (51,950,558

23
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EXHIBIT - K {Contdnmed)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Janc 30, 2008

An eocoondc recovery plan has been developed and is being implemented invebdng staff zeduections,
nperational changes, and fes tncreases o elindnase fund balance deficits.

3. INYESTMENTS

Zection 218415017, Flodda Sratutes, authegizes the Disehet to invest in the State Board of Adminisrraton
Loesl Govesnment Sorplus Funds Trust Fund Tovesiment Pool, o any intergoveramentsl investmeat pool
authocized pursuant to the Flosda Inretlocal Cooperation Ao 2s vafﬂcd in Secton 16301, Flonda
Stamrtes; Socurues and Exchaege Commisdon registered money mazkel funds with the highest credit quality
zating from a metionally recogaieed rating agency; infevest-bearing time deposita or savings accounts m
qualified public depositories, as defned in Section 28002, Ioada Stattes; and direct ohligadons of the

Unired States 'l':-::ﬂsuiy.

Investments wilh & Bt value of $3194,900.14 at Jane 30, 2008, are in the State Board of Administeation Local
Growernmenr Surplus Fends Trust Pund Tovestment Pool with 2 weighted averagpe days o matadey (FAR)
of 2022 days. A portfolio’s WAM reflects the average m.arLLﬁ.t:.r.jn days based on Soul matudry of resel date,
m the case of Hoatmg mte Instements, WAM measures the senstivite af the portiolic (o inerest zate
chapges. The Dhstder’s investment in the State Board of Administration Local Government Surplns Frads
Trust Fund Tnvestment Pool iz rated AAAmM by Standard & Poors. lovestments with a fair value of

$171.450135 at fune 30, 2008, arc in the Stare Board of Admimstration Fuad B Surplus Funds Trosc Fuend

witk 1 weighted average life (WAL) of 222 years. A portfolio’s WAL is the dollar weighted average length
of lime until secotities hel@ reack manzricy. WAT is based on legal final marenity dates as of June 30, 2008,

The Thsitiet’s rvestment in che Fund 13 Surphis Pusds Trost fued 15 uncased,
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EXHIBIT - K {Continued)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 306, 20608

4, CHANGES IN CAPITAL ARSSETS

Charnges in capiral asscts arc prosented in the able Lelorar.

Banes Additions Deatinns Balarce
F140F 62005
GOWVERNNENTAL ACTRTIES
Capitd Assats Net Being Depredaked: .
Lard 5% 855, 153.41 L k3 3 856, 15341
Larxd [rrpeoverents - MNordepmeciable R e 204135 Z33.07241
Tees] Cepital Aessts Mot Bemyg Depreciated 1,081 604 &7 2248135 1,084, 23582
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Frrpronements Cther Than Sukirgs TH 204 65 62 549 &5 ) 137,544 33
Bagkdirgs ared Fied Equipment RESGTEEOT FAEZETE0T iy
Furniture, Fodures, and Equipmert 4,864,540 51 17 5T5.81 140, 6735 * 533,851 81 2
Iictor Wehides 3835082 25 B8 247,75 4,443 370 98 .
Audio Visuz! Matarials snd
Camrputer Softeare _ 57286 18 251.84 378153 3508357
Teotel Capitsl Assers Baing Depred ated A7 BE4 307 35 1,316, 7 55.55 144 454 54 48,528,577 75 :
Le=z Accumuziad Deprecistion for )
Improermerts Cthar Than Buldms ATBAT 3™maATE
Bukirgs aned Five Ecpiprnert 12302 707 54 77 Q0T  TRIS0E17 AL
Furnitine, Frdures, and Eruiprednt - 2ETI AR 545 16500 1a7 T8 3281 BB B _
MotorVehides 2 R0E 040 590 317 ReE 33 . 2821,64023 ’ i
Avda Visug Materigls and
Cormguter Sofbans 8705 & B45 68 3.136.48 B8 2EL T4
Totg Accurmulsted Depresiaticn 17,780 242 4 1505 43002 143 605, 14 10,253,219.84
Tota Capital Assats Being Depredated, Nst ZOR0EEI4 | {ZETHST) 3,846.7 20573457 £7
Govemnmenta Acivities Capital Assets, Net 5 WOSSEA 5 (AN F 3MBETD § 20EEFEE6S

Depreciation cxpense was charged to functions 43 Follones:

Funct on Amount

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES

Pupil Transpartation Services g 317.86%33

Umaliocated 12685 48649

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities % 180348582 -

5
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EXBEIBIT - K {Contnued)
TAYLOR COTINTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOART
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2003

5 CHANGESIN SHDRTI—TEI_UH DEBT

‘Lhe followi=g is a schedule of changes in short-term debt

Lt EETE

Balarnce Additions Died etiomnz Balernce
7147 £-30-03

GCWVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Tax Anticipation: Moke ) % o 140000000 F 140000300 &

As of “ovember 14, 2007, the Dhstder had hommowed 51,400,000 oz a evoldng Hne of credic Feom the
. Capital City Bank. This loan was repaid by the Diszrict oo December 19, 2007, The loan was obtained w

fund Drasttct apetations untl receipt of ad valorem tax revenue in December 2007,

6. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES .

The following is a summery vz changes in long-term liabilities:

Deseriprinn Balance Additinns Dreductions Exlance Cuain :

7107 B-30-08 One Yesr :
COVERMMENTAL ACTIVITIES :
Compensated Absences Payable 3 30F3GFPAT  S195.511.18 $401182.05 S2OR300035  $29585L77 :

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally quidated with resources of e General

Fuad.
7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

‘Lhe following is » summary of inferfimd receivables and payables reported in the fond fnencial stazements:

Funds . Interfund
Reeceivables Fayables
hajor:
General & 220,991.83 % 240,857 .05
Special Revenue:
Dthar . 56,830.73 27,192.45
Capital Projects:
Local Capite! fmprovement 111,054 &4 91,782.55
Crther 01, 782.58 125, 73989
Monmajor Governmental 4.000.00 195 . 586 .2%
Intemnal Service 194,588 15 - :
Tutal 5 OBTY. 25928 5 B70. 25928 !
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICTYT SCHOOL ECARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 343, 2008

“The: interfund receivables and pavables shows above represent temposary loans to cover cash deficits in cash
accounts of were the zesnlt of corrections to revenues and expendinares in the varous funds.  Amownts ave
expected 1o be repaid withia one year except that vepavment of cemain amounts due from the General Fund
te; the Specal Revenue — Othet Fend and Local Capital Improvernent Fund 2nd amownrs due from the
nommajer Special Revenue — Food Service lund to the General Fund may be delayed pending improvement

of the Enengal cnodidon of the General Fund and Special Revenne — liood Serdce Fund.

The followzeg 15 2 summary of inlerfusnd tratisfers seported i the fuesd Bnancial smterments:

Funds Interfund
Tranzfers In Transfers Dut
Ml afar;
Generzl $ 320,365 81 § 68.670.54
Capital Projacts;
Locai Qapital Improvement 888756548 52038381
Toial . % 589,241.50 % 584,241 .50

The transfer from the Local Capitzl Improvement [und to the Geperal Fund was made 1o move restricred
rovennes o offset eligible expendituses in other funds,  The lransfer trom the Genersl Fund to the Togal

Capital Tmprovement Fund was made to restote prios year questioned costs.
RESERVE FOR ENCIMBRANCES

Approprateons in governmentsl funds sre encumbesed upon dssuance of purchase orders for goods and

services, Even though appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal vear, unfilled purchase onders of the -

current year ate carried forward and the next year's appropreiations are likewsse enoumiered.

The Florida Bepartment of Educatdon xequi:eé thar find balances be reserved at fscel yeas-end to report an
amcnnt Lkely to be expended from the 2008-09 fiscal pear budger 45 2 result of purchase orders outstanding
at Junc 33, 2003, '

Becanse revermes of srans accounted for in the Specia? Revenme — Other Fund are not recognized notl
expenditures ate inmurred, these grant funds generaliy do not accammlate find balaces.  Aceordingly, no
reserve for encumbrances 1s reported for grant fiunds. Heowever, purchase ordess ouistanding for graets

accounted for n the E.Pcl:ial_Rcvtnut — Orthet Pond rotal $171 328,33 ar June 30, 2008,

_27.
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EXHIBIT - K {Continued}
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 3¢, 208

Addidonally, the Thistrict has purchase orders owtstanding for projecs acconnted for i the General Fuood

totaling $214,302.49, at June 30, 2008, 3ince these outstanding prrchase orders exceed the avaitable fund

halanee in the General Fund, an encunbrance i3 not shown on the ﬂnﬁﬂdﬂl statements for this ascount,
4,  SCIIEDULE OF STATE REVENLTE SOLRCES

The mllowing iz 2 schedule of the Distdet’s Stete revenue for the 2007-08 fiscal vear:

Scuree Arnount
Florida Education Finance Program FOBATT, 34200
Categotieal Educational Programs;
Class Size Reduction 2.850,652.00
TransporEbion T28,005.00
Instructional Matarials . 324 123,00 :
Jther . 452.028.02 =
Workicree Development Pragram 1,457.396.00
Grogs Recebte Tax (Fublic Educaton Capital Cullay) 29131800
Disoretionary Lottery Funds 136,972.40
Motor Wehicle License Tax {Capital Outlay and Debt Sarvice] 118,063 28
Food Service Supplement 32,530.00
Mabile Home Licenze Tax 11,022 08
Micellaneous o7 8. 141,85
Total 3 16,865 12313

Accounring poticies reladng to cermain State revenue sonrces are deseribed In Note 1.

28
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EXHIBIT - K {Continuzed)
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Tune 30, 2008

1. PROPERTY TAXES

‘The folfowing is 4 summary of millages and taxes levied on the 2007 et rolk for the 2007-08 fiseal year:

Wifages Taxes L.e'u"led
GENERAL FLUND
Monvated School Tax:
Regquired Local Efiort 4,70 £ &B01157.04
Basic Dscretionary Local ETort 0,910 716143349
Supplemental Biscretonary Local Effornt 022y 318,754.02
CAPTAL PROJECTS FUNDS
MNamwvated Tax: '
Locat Capital improvements 2.000 2.808.405.45

Tatal 742 F 1044445991

11. FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

All regular eroployees of the Diserict arc covered by the State-admimstered Florda Retirernent System {FRS).
Prowizions refating to RS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Flonda Stamses, Chapter 112, Part IV,
Flotida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and Flodda Retrement System Bales, Chapter 808, Flonda
Administrative Code, wherein ehigibility, contributons, aod benelits are defined and described in detail T
Essentially all remular emplovees of particpating erpplovers are efigible and must enroll 23 members of FRS. :
FR3 i5 a single retirement systemn adiminisiered by the Florida Deparsment of Mansgement Services, Division

of Retiremens, and consists of two cost-sharing, mulople-employer retirernent plans and other nozintegrated

programs. These include a defined henefit pension plan (Plany, 2 Deferred Refiremene Opuon Program

DROP), and a defined conmribntion plan. referred to 45 the Public Emplovee Optiunal Fedremnent Program

(PECRP).

Benefits in the Plan vest at sis years of service. All vested members are eligible for nomal retirement
benefits at age 62 or at any 2ge after 30 years of service, which may include up to 4 yeats of oredic for
mifitery service, The Plan also inclndes an carly wetitement provision; however, there s a benefit redection
for each vear & member retites before his of her nommal redrement date, The Plan provides retirement,

disabifity, and death benefits and anoual cost-o f-leving adjnstorents. —

0
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EXHIEIT - K {Continued}

TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Juze 30, 2008

[PROIP, subject to provisions of Secton 121.091, Florida Stanates, permits employees cligible for normsal

retirement under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while contnuing emplopment with

an FRS emplover. An emplovee tay participate in DROP for a peded oot to exceed 60 months after
electing o parficipate, excepr thar cormin instructonal personagl toy patricipate For up o % months.
Mring the pezind of DROP pardapation, deferted monthly benefics are held in she FRS Frst Fund and

ACCEC MPerest.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Smtstes, chgible FRS members muay gleet fo participate :n PLORP
in lien of the Tlan. Ddsmicr cmployees parocipadng in DROP are wor eligible 1o parocipawe in PEORP.
Yoployer coombutdons are defined by law; however, the ultmuate beneht depends in part on the
performance of investment funds. PEORP i fonded by employer conttbutions that are hased on salary
angd mmb&rshié class {Regufar, Elected Connsy OfBcers, ete).  Coatributions are direcred to mndrvidual -
tember accounts, and the indivdes] menbers allocats conteibations and account balances atnong vacous .
approved investment choives. Benefits in PRORT vest after one vear of service, There weve 40 Thistie:

pardcipazts dudng the 2007-08 fiscal vear. Required contabunons made to PEORF tofaled 11417677,
FRS Redrement Contribntion Rates

The Flodda chislamic establishes, and may amend, coneribution rares for cach membership class of FRS.

Do the 2007-08 fscal vear, comtribution rates were as follows: i
Class Percent of Grogs Salary
Employee Emplayer
A
Florida Refiretnent Ejfstem, Regular 0.0 8.85
Florida Retirement System, Blected County Cfficers Q.00 16.53
Oeferred Retirement Cpttan Pragram - Applicable to
Wembers from Alf of the Above Classes 0.00 10.84
Flerida Retirement Systern, Reempioyed Ratires {B} (B

Motes: (A} Employer rates include 111 percent for the postemployment health insurance
subsidy. Algo, employsr rates, cother than for DROP pariciparts, include
0.05 percent for adminisirative costs of the Public Employee Optional Retirement
* Program. '
{8} Contribution rates are dependent upon refirement ¢lass in which reemployed.

(-
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EXHIBIT - K (Continnad}
TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 20H}&

The Diserict's liabilicy for participaton s limiced to the parment of the required conmibution at the tates and
frequendes established by b on futute pavenlls of the District. ‘the Districr's coaribatons for the Ascal
vears eoded June 30, 2006, fene 30, 2007, and [une 30, 2008, totaled $1,386,202.12, $1 8B4 57205, and

§1,742,330.83, respectively, which were equal to the tequited contdibusions for each fiscal year.

The firancial statcments and other supgletenmaty informarion of FRS are jncluded in e comprehensime
anmual fnancial report of the State of Floride, which may be obtained from the Florida Tepartment of
Financial Services. Also, an anomal report oo FR3, which includes itz fimancial staternents, required
supplementary informaton, acreanal report, snd olher televant information, 15 avaiiable from the Flotida

Dcpartment of Managemen!: Senvices, Division of Retirement.
RISE MANAGEMENT PROGRARMS

The Trstricr 15 exposed mo vatious Osks of loss related to torls; theft of, damage to, and desmacdon of assels;
crzors and omissicns; injures b employees; and aatural disastess. “Lhe Taylor County Distcr School Board
partidpates in 4 group self-insurance program admiriszered by the Trustees of the Florida Schoo! Boarcs
Association, Tng  The Disarict’s covercd osks relared to comprebensive property and Labidity msurance,
meneral lability, workers® compensation, money and securides, and cmployee fidelity and faithful
performance ace inclnded o this g\ou{] plan. The Dstrict repors foencal wansactions related 6o these

insetance programs in the General Fund.

Emploves group health and hospitalezaton coverage is belng prosvided o a self insnred basis up to specficd
lirnits. The Ddzrrct encored loto an agresment with o correnercial insurance company to provide specific
.:::»:4.::55 covermage of caim ameunts alove the smred amonat on an ndividual ciatm basds, and aggrarate excess
coverage when total claizas exceed the Joss limir established by EC policy, The District has eontracted with
an insurance company to administer the programs under an agreemeat whezein the claims for benefits are
paid by the Insurance company, which is subsequently reimbursed by the Distner for dmms paid plus an
administrative cxpense,  LThe Distdet reports the Bnancial transacmons of us cmplu.}'::t: groap insurance

propramms 10 a= internal servics fud.

Settfed claims resulting frosn the tisks described abowe heve not excesded cotmmercial inserance covorage 1n

any of the past three Fscal years.

A claims lability of $100,173 is reported in the Internal Service Fund ar Junc 30, 2008, 1o cover estmarted

tecurred, but nor repored, inserance claims payable.

1.
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
. TAYLOR COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

The following schedule represents the chanpes in claims lishility for die past two Hscal ears for the Distrct's

self-ingurance program:

Baginning-ot Cument-Year Claims Balance at
FizcalYear Claims and Paymemrs " Fiseal
Liahility Changasin YearEnd
Estimates
2006-07 ¥ 186,562 $ 124883 & (1,416028) & 100173
2007-0g 100,173 1,220,307 (1,330,357} 100,175

OTHER LOSS CONTINGENCIES

The District recetved fipancial assistence from Federal end Sware agencics in the form of grangs and
appropoations. The dishursément of finds recctved under these programs generally requires complinnce
with specified tetms and conditions and is subject tu fnad detersninaction by the applicable ederal and State
agencies. Any disallowed claims could become a Hability of the (eneral 1und or other applicshle funds. TE
the quesdoncd costs noted by the auditor were disaflowed by the applicable oversight agencies, these

amounis would kave a material effect on ehe overall frangal posiSon of the TRsrrict
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

{n September 12, 2008, the Boatd obtaned a revolving line-ofcredir 1o the atmount of 52,000 Fran
Capieal City Bank, at » 3.8 percent fixed tare of interest  The pupose of this loan was to find Distrct
operations untl the -r.n.-‘:ceipt of tax revenne n Dccc..mbcr' 2008, bﬂ Drecember 2, 2008, the Lac-of-credit was
increased ro $4,000,000 doe to a delay in the mailing of the propesty tax bills by the Taylor County Tax
Collector. Az of December 17, 2008, the Distde: had borrowed 52830000 on thes lne-of-credic and on

February 4, 2000, the Dismet repaid] this loan.

RS LA
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EXMIEIT =L
TAYLOR COUNTY
D¥ETRICT SCHOOL BOARD
REAQLHRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY COMPARSON SCHEDULE
SENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENIE FUNDS
Far the Fiseal Yagr Ended Jure 3%, 248

‘greperal Fund
Criginel Firal achial Varimice wilh =
Sudget Tudjat Fleal Budget - E
Pasitive :
Mrgative)
Revenuees
Iatzrgueemmentl;
Fedearal Girect H A0.200,00 2 a0,2040.00 £ 5396213 5 3.752.12
Federal Thraugh Stats snd Local 114,550.00 114,550.00 87,756.58 (26, T30
State 1547808300 46,080,0597.45 - $6,280,398.18 20, 30075
Lozal
Taxes T.496.311.00 7,292 25500 T.18.272.70 10, DGR
Mizcallareous 1.085,200.00 1,083, 20400 57 1.685.85 14 4. 506,07
Tota| Rovenues 2844 Ahe 00 24.510,516.43 4 742 083,51 171, 7TEG.BE .
Expantiturss :
Gurmend - Educalion! .:
[nziructan . 12,841,820.00 12,572 661 %1 14,533.292.51 (20,6500 =
“upil Persannel Seodces 1,99,102.00 1.178,436.88 1,244, 5965.1 1 (5, 56025 .
trsiructonal hedia Serviees 318, 78000 Sad 15755 3423583 25,237 76
Inslructen ard Cumouum Davalemers Sonjoes TE0,G00.C0 T3, 16628 TSE,544.80 13,3325,
Instnietcnal Siaff Traming Senices 32.850000 5,792, 85 E+4,141.41 53,348.55;
Tnshudticn Relaled Techralogy 17220000 154.570.65 117 24828 ar. 32258
Howd of Edusaticn . T TR0 232, T62.T2 22157081 12,192.12
Saneral Administraiion 5T, 30000 AT4214T 27E,B51.53 095,455 89 :
Sononl Adminisirasion 1,644, 80000 1,650 TA641 1,666, 07524 (3,292.33} =
Fadbies Aoqusilioa 2nd Corslrucion 220000 Sd.745.41 901817 (& 2TITa) . i
Fisezal Servites 3T 200 00 31023770 ki BEBOT A6 AT
Food Sandras
Cenizal Senices Sien, a0 264,274 65 36566537 [58,891.72)
Pupd Transporkalion Services A,V 18000 1,750,017.61 187882024 [118.203.23)
Cperalicer o Plant 2892 000,00 24903732.34 3532,41745 [28.575.07) H
Mantanancs of Plams 473.700.00 466, 624,12 4935,612.E0 (26, TIE.E8) "
Adminisrative Technology Serdsaes 144,500.00 215,021.82 1ra A0l 42 o 33.5I04% B
Communily Services 510000 56,6017 £4,102,E6 12 455, 64) o
Faxed Capital OLElsy
Crhee Cagilal Outlay 147 B48,35 M7, 548.33
Tatal Expenditures 2he 353 750,068 34.458,564.396 25 504 5a4.70 106G, 0i6.34]
Excese [Detlciancyl of Revemses Ovec Ezpeadituras 131,296.00) 171.748.07 F=2.501.30 (B2, 249, 0 B
Dther Finaneing Sourcea (Uses]
TmEnsers £15,720.00 H1A700.00 520.265.91 (95,354, 15}
Treasiers Jut (34 475,689, ' (BB, BT5.A0L
Tatal tHher Fitancing Soures [Lises) 815, 700.C00 L1 6 TO0, 0 457 45012 1154 205 HEY
Nat Change io Fund Ealaneda E4,504.00 TET.A45.07 (ETL011 2T) (1.538,455.34;
Furd Balances, Juby 1, 2007 248 9500, - [BE5.578.58] (HER, 27352
Fund Balances, Juna 30, 208 5 SRALGE5.71 5 [YEEM) 52 5 (1,15E,0E49 BS) LI T o
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EXHIEIT-L

Sipacial Rewand - Giher Fund .
Criglnal Final Al \famnce with

Badpat Budget Final Budged -
Fosiive
(Mo
H 1,228 K0 £ 1,224 C00,00 5 1,273.984 .86 5 49534 86
A479,50.00 5,208 7218.84 29r2 TET.BS (30433115
Z5.580.452 E0az
13 516453 1341648
4 T3, 300,00 4 5104818 24 < 313 26951 (108,740,530
2,95 000D 2, 70541496 23 ATS.2E 124591 68 _
4,200, 00 #15,200.00 543 496501 2755490 —
5,500,000 . SA00.00 150221 4,097,700 .
122 500.00 130, 500.00 31559076 (177, 198.7E}
«31,100.02 &01,300.00 1241.731.89 27 A58.01
Vw0000 . 15.283.98 &7,005.01 41, 721.03)
A2 Q00 0 102,020.00 B5.5d1.18 43 05354
104,000,105 1&1,020.00 | 141.252.74 5726
: 258174 (2,5 1. 70
423876 [4,328.7E}
00,00 17,100.00 18,134 46 [1.C8548]
250.00 (2000,
<45,300.0% 45 800,00 E2 291,68 [3%,591.6B}
70, 500.00 TaA00.00 5T.769.66 13£30.52
153,000.0 164, 0000 207 90,86 (o2, 280.38)
205,2149.90 205.213.890
4,203,300.0% 57140 618,84 4312 069,51 198 749,55
] 0120 2] 0.00 3 0.00 3 0.0
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TAYLOR SOUNTY
ETRICT SCRO0L BOAR0
SCHEDLRE OF EXPENDIFURES OF FEDERAL AWARGS
' Forthe Fimesl teer Endit feuta 20, 2003

Federt Greran®ass-Trouch SranlaoPmomam Tills Calalog of Pgasa - Amaunt cf Amaurt
Frdural Threegh Espmaadituraz Frowddec
Cooasic Fanlare i o
Azskaianne b Sebredpers
Humrber

Upited Jeatas Dupariment of Agriculiuns:
Ird
Thid HuTTCn Sesi=e
Frrida Dagsrdmenk ef Zoucsian:

Ectod Brechfast Progrem 10551 24 % 450115 5
Hatianal Szheel Lerch Frogram 40,555 20 [T R H R B
Zummer Zood Sends= Pragrem o Childn 19,554 23 153.51
Fimide Degerimant of Agdo Hure end Sansumer Seraces: :
Hatanal Echeel Lnck 2rogram Lt ] Hane F4350.42
Trda] Upitad S1sta £ Baparmment of Ageeutum TTI6E3A0
Linitsd Simbad Dupydmaant of Educators
Jimct
Fodo? = Eram Frmam BL L A, =05,30+.35
indimeck .
Sfeclal Sduasdien Cusier
Flacica Jeoardmant ol Eduisden;
Enecial Educatod - AT o Siaies 54027 ) TITEI0.37
Sipaczal Eduizlian - Frasshoal Sranls -T2 ZET 3820344
Lran Cawrcy Disin S2wal Hoart
Specid Educution - G b Slalea Fan27 Hangz 1 275.L0
Specid Educalion - Freschoal Eramis 372 Hany 2L 28702
Tatx| Spacis] Educailon Clustar 953, 54T
Fleddn Daaanmar: e Sdusmon:
At Eduzafen - Busle Goanla kb Falas A.00% EREL 108, 44980
Tilka | Cxants 10 Loeal Educsional Ag=nses 845,010 A, R G, 23 7M. 422.50
Zar=ar zrrd Tuchniced Efutaliar - Bame s s Slabkes A4.045 151 162441862
Rabzoditalion: Serdees - Yecalonzl RekzbikSer Grants 12 Hales 3£1ZE 0E-M3-WHECS 24,0414
Sal= ard ug-Fres School and Corsesilie - Slata Crants B4. 125 133 T0nd
Evry Glprt - Etata Sducaliral Agences 84,543 218 193, 240.55
Twemty-First Cerary Sorrmriby temiring Cenlsm 4557 e 254, B 49 295 E3.49
Slaby Grartd for lnovAlva Sregrams Ad 703 113 8,955
Educalian Technokyy Sl Zrxms LER ] 121 280,455
Surnanetdrais Zehoel Feorm Oecmonsimben 94 3537 121 TTEELE
Peadrg Fosl 5ot Sans B4.357 21 T2G,EMLTI
lirprowieq Tadcnar Oualiy Slale Gants 24357 223 52 T 8
Totl tndirect . 1,008, 257 95 7557348
Total Unlted Sates Bepartment of Edusaiien 01,210 2E2 5 - I05513.43
Unted Skes Gepartment of Reatth and Humeie St
[T
Head Zart xR Hr R e 1.0 6. 57
(L EECTHH
Early Learrg <au ition of Y 5ig Band Raclan, Ine.:
“Aenperan Asakhanes far Keedy Famites ok Han= 1441493
Crde Sare ard Developra T Elack Grare 23078 Maina 45,755.50
Seaial Beeveas Heck Soant 96EST Man= 3338
Yol Indirest A5.521.0F
Tl United States. Departmemt of Helth ard Fuman Sandces 115225185
Umitad States ODepartmest af Defense:
Qimact
Ay Jurier Faparea 2¥Tgar TEkNE Cops Migrw o, 05 BR2.12
Todal Expersdiiures of Federl Awands . ’ 5 5,333, 26,31 E] 295, Fs L1

Males: {1} Bagis of Pressratics. Thy Sehatuls of SxpecEyeas of Faderal Awaers rearesents amaunts expanchd fram Fudeisl preermms cunng tne Z0C07-04 fis2l year as dulaniized
baz=d on the modifed el doeid of gedgenling, Tra ameams eperi=d on e Echeccle have baon scanided % and ana i oaiedal agreamem with cmounls mordad in
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

G74 Clande Pepper Building
Dasid W. Martin, CPA 111 West Madison Street 330-488-5534
AUDITOR GEMERAL Tallahassee, Flornda 32399-1450 Fax: 850433 6975

The President of the Senate, the Speaker of the
Hiuse of Representaties, aod the
Legislative Auditing Cotnmittes

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAEL, STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We hove audited the Snancial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented componeat vnit,
cach major fund, and the agprepate wemaining find ndormation of the Taylor County Diistacr School Board a3 of
and Fot the fiscal vear cnded June 30, 2008, which collectvely enmprise the Distact's basic financial statements, and
have izsued our report thereon inclnded under the heading INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cur report on the basic finandal statetients was modified to include a reference
o nther auditors, We conducted our andir in accordance wirh anditing standards generadly accepted in the United
States of America and the standerds applicable to Gnancial audits contained in Cosrnment? Asditing Standands izsued by
the Compuroller General of the United States. Ccher anditors andited the financial starements of the school intemnat

Fands and the discretely presented component unit, as deseribed in our report on the Faylor County Distrct School

Boprd’s fnuncial staresients.  ‘Lhe financial statements of the school ingernal funds and the Taylor County
Ederation Fowndation, Inc., the discretely presented component unit, were not audited in accordance wich
Croverament Aundiiing Standardr,

Intemal Control Over Financial Repotting

Tn planning and performing our sudit, we considesed the Distriet's inrernal conrrol over finanrial repoming as a baszs
for desigming our auditing procedures for the pumpose of expressing our opinions on the financal starements, but

not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the Pistricr’s mternal conteol over financial

reporting. Accoedingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivencss of the Distriet’s internal control aver
finandial reporting.

A conirod daficienzy exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow masagement or emplofees, n the
normal conrse of performing their assigned brnctions, o prevent or derect misstatements on 2 Bmely basis. A
significant dsfiensy 1s 2 control deficlency, of combinadon of control deficiencies, that adverscly affects the Dhatrict’s
ability e inittate, authagze, record, process, or report financial data teliably in accordance with generally accepted
accountng principles such that there is mere than 2 remore likelihond that 2 misstatemnent of the Thstact’s financial
staternents that i tore than inconsequential will oot be prevented ar detected by the Distct’s internal control. We

37—
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coasider Finandal Staternent Finding Nos. 1 theough 6, which are deseribed in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS scction of this audit report, to be significant deficiendies in internal comtrol over

financial reporaeg,

A matsrial weaknes 15 o significant deficiency, or combinaton of sigrificant deficiendies, thas results in more than 2
remote Jikelthood that a masenal misstarement of the Gnancial sttements will oot be prevented or detected by the
Distner’s internat conrral.

Chit consderation of internal control over fimpncial reporting was for the hmired purpuss described in the fiest
paragraph of this scction and would not necessarily tdentty all defidencies in interal eonrrol that might be
sipmificanc deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessatily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
comsidered 1o he marerial weaknesses, Howevet, of the significant deficiendes descnibed in the SCHEDULE OF
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS sector of tis audit report, we consider Finding Nos, 1 through 6 o
be matens] weaknesses.

CompEance and Other Matters

As part of vhraining reasonzble assurance about whether the District’s Bnancial statements ate free of marerial
msstaterment, we Perfo.tm.cd tests of its cumpliance with cértain provisions of laws, niles, regulations, contracts, and
grant agrecmenrs, noocotnpliance with which could have a direcr and smaerial effect on the determination of
financial statement amounss.  Howover, providing an opinion on complisnce with thuse provisions was not an
obieetive of our andit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opimion. The resalts of our wests disclosed an
mstance of noncomplisnce that is required o be reported under Gonenment Azafting Standards, which s deseribed in
Financial Statement Finding No. 3 in the SCHEDTULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS scction

of this report

TWe slso poted certain additicmal motters thar ate discosszed in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS section of this report.

Management's response o the findings descobed in the SCHEDLLE OF FINDIMNGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS section of this repor is incladed as Exbibt — M. We did oot audic management’s response and,
accordmgly, wo cxpress no opioion on i

Pursuant o Section 11.45(4), Floride Stantes, this report is 4 public record and its distdbubion is not lisdted.
Andliting standards penerally accepted in the United States of America zequite 13 to indicate thar this report 15
itended solely for the information and use of the Legislasve Avdinng Commirtes, members of the Flozida Senate
znd the Florida House of Representadves, Federal and other granting agences, 2nd applicable management and is
nat intended to be and should not be used by anvone ather than these specifed parties.

Respectully submutted,

S0 4] e

Dawd W, Martic, CPA
March 13, 2009
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

G74 Claude Pepper Building
Dawid W. Martin, CPA 111 West Madison Strect 850-438-5534
AUDITOR GENERAL . Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Fave H50-185-6075

The President of the Senate; the Speaker of the
Heuse of Bepreseotadves, and the
Legishtive Audidng Commimee

- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE T'O EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OME CIRCULAR A-£33

Compliance

We bare andited the Taylor Connty Distdet School Board's compliance with the types of enmpliznce requirements
described in the United Stales Office of Management end Budget's (OMB} Cirner A7 37 Comgufaney Suppbannt that
zre applicable to each of iss major Tlederal programs {or the fiscal year ended fune 30, 2008, The Thsericts major
Federal programs are identified in the SUMMARY OT AUDITOR’S RESULTS section of the SCHEDULE
OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS.  Compliance with the requisements of laves, regulations,
comtzacts, and grant: applicable 1o each of the Distsict’s mejor Federal programs is the responsibility of Districr

management. Chur responsbility # to express an opinion on the Bistder’s cotmpliance based oo our awdil

We conducted aur audit of complisnce in accomdance with auditing standards generally accepted in cthe Unired States
of Atnerica; the stndards applicable to Gnancial audits contatned in Gevermmeny Axditing Sioedards, 1ssued by the
Comptroller General of the Unired States; and the OMBs O 4733, Andite of Stater, Loa! Governmnis, and
MNem-Profit Orgenizmsions. ‘Those standards and OMB Cirwdar 4733 requine that we plan and perform the audit to
ohmain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred o
above that could have a direer and materdal effect on a major Fedessl program occarted. An andit inchides
exatpirdng, on a fest basis, cvidence about the District’s compliance wich those requiretnents and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the arcumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basils for our .r;:-p‘]ni::-n. Crur audit docs not provide 4 legl determination of the Distrct's compliznce with these
requirsnents.

As descobed in Federal Awards Finding No. 1 in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS section of this repert, the Discrct did not comply with requirements regarding Marching, Tevel of Effort,
#nd Earmarking that are applicable to the Tlead Scaxt program  Compliance with such requirements 1s necessary, in
ot ppimion, bor the Distdor to cotmply writh the requirermncots applicabale o that program

_3i
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In our opinien, except for the noncompliance descrbed in the preceding paragraph, the Disiret complied, in alf
mzterial respects, with the requirements referred to abowve that ace appheable to cach of its major Federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2008, However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed some instances of
noneomplisnce with those requiremienrs, which are reguited o be reported in aconrdance with OMB Corpdar #2753
and which arc described in the accumpanying SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
section of this tepoti as Federal Awards Finding MNos, 2 through 7, .

Internzl Control Over Compliance

Diistrict management is tesponsible for esmblishing and mainmining effectve internal control over compliance wirh
recuirements of laws, regnletions, conracts, znd grants applicable to Federal programs. In pla:nﬂf.ﬁg and performing
our andit, we considered the Dismict’s internal conrrol over comphance with the requirements that coold have 2
dircet and materzl effect on 4 major Federal program in order to desetmine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the prrpose of expressing 20 opinion on the effectveness of
internal control over cotnplisnce. Accordingly, we do not express an opindoe on the effecriveness of the Dhstect’s

internal control over compliance.

{Mur consideration of internal contrel ovir compliance was for the [imited purpuse desedbed in the preceding
paragraph and would nat neressarily idendfy all deficendes in rthe Districr’s infernal control that mighr bBe
signifivant deficiencies or maredal weakpesses as defined below. However, as discnssed belowr, we dentified certain
deficiencies in imvérns] control over compliance that we considered o be signifiean| deficiencies and one thar we

consider 1o be a maretial wealkness.

A oontrod dificiensy In the Distder’s toteznal conrrel ovet compliance emisis when the design or operation of 4 control
docs now allow management or employees, in the normal course of petforming their assioned fonetions, w0 prevent
ot detect poncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program on o timely basis. A siguifioune
asficiengy 1 a control defidency, or comnbination of contrel deficiendies, that adversely affects the DHseriet™s abaliy o
administer 4 Federal pragram such thar there is more than a remmote lkelhood thar noncompliance with 2 bype of
compliance requircment of a Federal program that is more than inconsequendal will not be prevented or detectad by
the Distrct’s inernal congrol. We consider the deficiencics in Intetpal conmel over compliance described in the
SCHEDULE QF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of this teport as Federel Awards Finding
MNes 1,2, 4, 5,6, 20d 7 o be sigmificant deficiencies.

A material weakwor 15 2 significanc defidency, or combinagon of significant deficiencies, diat results n more than o
remete likelihood that matenal noncompliance with 4 t7pe of compliance requirement of a Federal program. wrill not
be prevented or detected by the District’s internal eontral  OF the significant deficiencies in infernal control over
cumpliznce deserbed n the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS sectior of this
report, we consider Federal Awards Findiog No. 1 1o be a material weakness.

Management’s response o the findings deseribed in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS secion of this report s included as Fohibit — M. We did not andic management’s response and,
accerdingly, we express oo opinies on i
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Porsnant to Sccoon 11,454, Flonda Statutes, this report is & public record and itz distabirtion i= nor limdred.
Andidng stendards generafly accepted in rthe United Smates of America requite us to indicate that this zeport is
inrended solely for the nformation and use of the Legislacve Auditing Commirtee, membets of the Florida Senawe
ard the fflonda Honse of Representatives, Federal and other geanting agencies, and applicable maragement and s
zot intended to be and shauld nar be used oy anyone other than these spectfied parties.

Respectfidly sulxmitred,

LL0 4] e

[Daad W, Mamn, CPA
Mdareh 13, 2009
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SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financiz ments

Type of auditer’s repott issued: Uﬁq_ua.liﬁed

o M T L

Enternal contral over financial repotling:
Mlaterial weaknesses identified? Y es

Sigmificant deficiency idennfied that 13
nol eensidered to be a material weakness? Nome reported

Moncompliancs material to finanaal

statements notedr Yes
Federal Avrards
Tnrernal controel over major programs: '
Ilulepial weakness identified? Yes :
Slgnitwant deficiencies identified that
ate not comsidered to be maletial wealmesses? Yes
Type of report the auditor issned on compliance for majer programs: Unqualified for all major programs,

except for the Head Start program
(CFDA oo 93.600%  which  was

qualified.
Any andit Andings disclosed that are zequired to be reporacd
in uceotdance with Section 310/z) of OMB Cerwdar 4-7337 Yes
Tidentification of major progoans: Federal Pell Grant P'ropram (CFDA

Mo. 84063, Specld Education Cluster
{CFDA Nos. 84.027 and 84.173), Title
I Grams w™ -Lecal State Agcnoes
(CFDA No. 84010}, and Head Start
(CEEYA Mo, 936007
Diollar thieshold used to distingush berween
I'ype A and Type B programs: §300,000

Auditee qualified as low-nsk auditeer No
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The Districls financial condition contnued to decline dudng the 2007-08 fiscal year, In governmestal funds,
resesve accoumss are used o indicate the porton of fund balance thar is restrcted 1o specific puzposes and not

awailzble fur general appropriation by the Beard, while the woreserved fund balance is designed to serve 23 2 measure
of per corrent financal resources available for geperal approptiation by die Board  The unreserved portion
represents the ammoual that can be used with the most flexibilicy for cmengencies and unforcscen situations.

"The General Fund is the chicf operating fund of the Dismict, During the 200708 fiscal year, the District’s (eneral -
Fund unceserved fied balance declined from a deffcit of $1,033,808.88 to a deficit of §1,405.131.22, a decline of
537134234 A summary of the total fund badances and noreserved fund balances for the District’s Creneral Fund
for the pase four fiscal veazs 15 shown belom

Fiscal Year Total Unmesemnved
Ended Fundg Fund
June 30 Balances Bakinoas
2005 £ 25116544 - 3 A2 S44 65
2006 (12,5345.11} §180,114.42}
2007 {565,978.50) {1,0:33,808.88}
2008 (1,136,535.36) {1405,151.22)

Such defirit financiz] position recquires commiment of fumre sesonrces to meet cnrrent obligations. Failure to
severse the decline of the Disrict’s financie] position could cufminate in an mability on the part of the Distoct to
et current fiscal obligadons, The deficiencies powed in Financial Statement Finding Nos. 2 through 4, regarding
finaneial reoorfing, monitoring, and recondliadon procedures have not been conducive to cifectve management
control over the Districrs sesources und may have contributed o the find balance deficits.

The General Fund uareserved fund balance could be further reduced if the Disttict is requited o repay cetfain
questioned costs noted in other findings. These questioned costs are discussed in more deenl in Financial Statemennt
Finding Nos. & and (0 with total guestoned cosrs of $159.752.14; Additional Matters Finding No. 11 o propedy
allocaie interest income, totaling approximately $47.000; Federal Awrards Finding Nos. 1 through 3, and 7, with net
combined questioned costs of $1,015,855.23 (Federal Awards Finding Nos. 1 and 3 are act); and in our report Nes.
HW7-161 and 2008-131 with Federsl Awards Findings’ vnresolved guestioned costs, tomaling $341.69320 In
addition, farrher reducdon of the fund balance may ocour since the Distmice reporeed o $51,950.58 deficic fand
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halance in the Specizl Reverme — Tood Service Fund at Tune 30, 2008, and Creneral Fired sesources may be needed
ter supolemeent the Food Serdee Fund,

In our report No. 2008-151, we noted that the Distrct cxpemenced a deficis unreserved firnd balance, and
recommended that the Board and Supedntendent develop and implement a plan of action to ensure that an
adequate fund balfance is maintzined in the General Fund. Because of the deficit fund balance, the Tisricr noabed
the Cornmissioner of Bducation and Lepishtve Auditing Commitres that 2 Anancul emerpency condinon had
veccred, and requeswed assistence from the Florids Association of Distoer School Supenntendents (FALIXSS) in
developlog a plan to itrprove the Thstrict’s financial conditon, FADSS issued a veport, dated Marech 2008,
comidning 4 number of recommendations for cost reductions, including eliminating %9 stoff posttions, closing one
school, clmmating bus routes, tplementing enetgy cost savings meamres, and cleminating overtisne papmetis. In
addidon, the FADSS report tecommended that the Dismict use the infortaation in the repor to develop an
econnmmic recovery Implementation plen with steps and timelines that will lead w0 cconomic recovery, and further
indicated thar if all recowmmendations were dccepred and carred owt, the Distder wonld reach a sute of cconotmic
soundness with an unreserved fund balance of approximately thres percent by the end of the 2008-09 Hseal vear

The Board, on June 3, 2008, approved an economic tecovery plan which included the ehimination of approximately
30 staff positions and reductions n the work time for 50U other pusidons, estimated £ gencrate anneal savings of
approximately $1.% milioo.  Other measutes approved E}r the Board mchided the consobdabion of bus routes;
prrment of certain operatng costs, 43 allowable, from restrcted revenue sources; and increazes in vanous fees.
ITowever, hecanse most of the Dustdet’s cost saﬁng toeaswres were uot implemented uotl oear or aftes
June 30, 2008, the impact of these measutes maf noe be Fully tealized undl the 200809 fsead veat.

Recommendafion: The Board and the Saperintendent should continee ta implement and monitor &
plan of action to ensure that an adegunate fund balance is restored and maintzined in the General Fund.

Cine of the principal methods that a schoal distdet uses o dociment accountabifity for the public resources tharir
receives for its operativns 15 by prepadng its annual Pnancial repor. Distact personnel shonld ensure thar the
report s acourste and containg requited presentadons and disclosures 5o that wers, such as the School Board,
Superingendent, Districr management, and othet interested parties, can appropoately evabuare, among other things,
Distrer operations, hodgetary compliance, and financial condidon.  Secton 1001.51, Florida Smamates, a.ud Stare
Boatd of Educaten Rule 6A-1.001, [fonda Administrative Coxde, reguire the Superinteadent to keep, ot to have

leept, accerate records of all finandsl fensactons. Srate Board of Edueation Ruole 64-1.0071, Flotida Administrative

Code, and related instractions from the Florida Department of Bducaton (FDOIE) prescribe the exdubits and
schedules which should be prepared as pare of the Distdet’s annual financial teport Lew and rmules require that these
exhibits and schedules be prepated in accordance with generally accepred accoundng priociples {GAAT.

GAAP require that bngncial statements contain appropgate prm‘cnﬁatiﬁxlﬁ and disclosures relaring to fnandal
statement amounts. GAAP also requite the Divmict to prepate 8 management’s discussion and analysis (MDE&A) a3
supplementary informatdon to innoduce the basic financiat statemenss and provide an ﬂml}’[jcﬂ. averview of the
povernment’s financial activities. Simndlaely, Staie low 2nd mles regquire ceztain exhibits and schedules be induded in
the financial teport package so thar they can be andited in accordance wich generally accepted government aurhtng
standards, Or review of rthe Disthcs's HM7-08 fscal vesr snnnel financal Iep-::rrt presented for audit, discdlosed
material errors and omizsions. Foe example:
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The District failed to ptepate notes o the financial statermests o the propeietary fund statemnent of cash
Jowrs, which are required elements of the District’s basic Enancial statements.

The znnmal financial report did ot include the teguized MM section, or the Schedude of Expendituzes of
Federa® Awards required by Usited Stares Office of Management and Budget Ciradar A1 53, Auditr af Stater,
{ aeal Crosermgents, awd Now-Profft Ormeniseifons,

The Iiistrict’s povernment-wide statetmest of net assets was ot of balince approdmately $25.8 mdllion, due
prtmarly to the Districr’s faiture m teport net assct balances.

Op the Disthet’s government-wide staternent of actvrtics, general and progratn revennes were understatod
aporoximately §21.3 million, czpenses were understated approimately $7.4 mullion, beginning net assets
was voderstated approximately §.7 milion, and coding net assets was understated 2pproximarely 514.6
toillinn. These misstaterments mainly occurmed bDecause the Distrier did not accumulate the appropiace
revenue and expendinure rransactions from the fued statements, and apply the corvrect conversion entrics,
for presemranon on the governmentwide staterments.  For example, the Distrer only reporred
sporoximately 380,000 for grants and contribudons not restricred o specific programs; however, when
aporopOare rovenue transactions, such as funding from various Federal and State nonspecific grants, are
comnlined from the fond zmtements, these tansactions totad approximately F20 millon.

As further discussed in Financial Statement Iinding Mo, 4, the District dd not properly reconale its bank
zcconnt balinces to the peneral kedger conaol accounts, resulung in the bask halance excesding the general
ledger by 51,010,000 ac June 30, 2008, Dudng our audit, we identified the causes for §960,000 of the
differcnce; however, as of February 5, 2009, the Disoict bad not been able to ideatify the cauzes for the
remaining difference of apprommatcly $30,000. Addionally, veported cesh oz the povernmental funds
balance sheer was incomectly allocated henween funds, inclnding an overstatemnent in the Capital Projects —
Local Capiral Improvement Fund ($1.7 million) and undetstatements in the General Fund (312 million;,
Spedal Revenue — Other Fund (3.6 miltion), along with other errors (5.1 million).

The Disttict did por properly #dendify and repom comaen Legislative capital ouday appéﬁpria’r_'rnns on the

Bnancial steterrents. As a resuls, a recelvable and relared deferred revene of 303 milkon each was

underreported in the Capitsl Projects - Public Fducation Capitel Chislay Fund, and a receivable and deferred
reverne of $1.2 million each was unaderreported in the Capial Projects — {ther Fand for Classtooms First
ard Classtooms for Kids constraction allocarions.

While District staff focnsed much of thefr attention on developing and implementing ae economic fecovery plan, 23

discussed in Finsnaal Stabement Finding No. 1, District procedures were inefective 1o ensure the zecuracy of the

finarrcial starsments.  Addmonally, we noted nuwmneronss journal entdes which were erremecusly made in an effort 4o
record prior audit adjustments and othet activides relared to the 2007-08 fiscal year tnsacions. We were able 1o

extend our audit procedures w detectnine the adjusements necessary for the faic presentation of the Pisrrict’s basic

financial statements and certain supplementary informados, snd Distrier staff accepted these adjustments.

However, our cxtended sudit procedures cannor substitute for management’s responsfnlivy o implernent adequate

contool provedhares over financial reporting,

Eccommendation: To facilitase necessary financial repordng, the District should establisk procedures
ta énsure the accuracy and completeness of its annmal financial teport.

The ptocesz for adopring and amending the budget affords 2 governmental endry with a mechanism o plan 2 level
of cxpendinmes to meet its obligations while temaining within available finzncial resources. 1F the budger is poz
properly monitored and amended to meet changing financial dreumstances, there is an increased sk that zn eatity's
~ expendimres will exceed available resources. Section 1011.03, Florida Statuees, provudes that the ofhedsl budser shall

nor be altered, amended, or sxceeded except 43 authorized  Farther, Scction 1011.06, Flodda Sravetes, provides thar
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expendritures shal? be Imited to the ameount budgered under the classification of accommis provided for each fund
and to the rotal.aroount of the budger afrer the same have been snended 25 prescobied by lvwr and rules of the Stare
Board of Fdocacon.

Stare Board of Bducation Rule 6A-1.008, Florida Adminisiatve Code, reguires that monthly Onancal statemenes Te
prepered und sobmitted 1o the Board, Board Policy 920, Hissusied Records, provides that the Supetintendent shall
submit to the Boand each month a financial statement o a form approved by the Board, and shall include 2
cumulative teport to date of all receiprs and expenditures for the school fiscal year. Our review disclosed that
improvements were needed in budgetary controls and compliance and in the prepacation and wsefnlness of the
monzhly finandal informadon presented e the Board, 25 disarssed below.

#  Alshough the Distdet's budg&l:. process indicated thet the onginal budget was prepared and approved in
accurdance with applicable laws and mles, we ooted that at Jane 3, 2008, pdor 4o the School Board’s
approval of the fral budpet amendments, the District had .overexpenditures, roteling 51,389,74231 1n 12
fanctionat expenditute categoztes and ansfers out in the General Fund, and toteling H302488.56 o eight
furectigmal éxpﬁlditl:l:e catcgodes in the Spedal Bevenne — Other Pund, Distoct records further indicated
that the Board did not approve any hudget amendmests prios to June 3, 2008, even though, 2s Indicated
above, sxpenditnres incurred through Jume 30, 2008, significantly cwcceded the budget a: amended.
Subsequentdy, the Board approved finad budget amownts included in the antmal financal weport on
September 9, 2008; howeves, the General Fund badget remained overexpended by a total vz §1,338,614.76
in 12 Functional expendinire categones and ransfers our and the Spedal Revenue — Ocher Fund had
rvcrczpendimres 1neght functional Expeﬁditﬂrc caregodes totaling 30248850, A sumular finding weas
noted in out previoms audit seports, most recenily Na. 2002-131. '

3 Finandal teports were not presented o the Board each month, conteary o State Board of Edveation Rule
#4-1.008, Floride Administradve Code. As poted in Financial Statement Finding Mo. 1, the unreserved
fand balamee for the Distdet™s Generat Fund was a defiot $1.405,151.22, 2 decline of 337134234 from the
deficit unteserved fund balance ar June 30, 2007, Without monthly fenencial statements that cleatly present
the fnancial condition of the Dhstoct, especially in this ome of finandal crisis, Board members may have
limired understanding of the fnancial stams of the Districl, which could lead m fpsrances of financial
mistnanagernent, suthorzing purcheses when funds ave noc awailable, and oot identifying or remedying
ceiical budpet shortfalls in' a timely menner.  Monthly financial swatements that provide pracneat and
understandsble summary financial information, such as toral revenues and expendimres by fund, projected
and revised smdent enrollment counts ansd the effects of such revisioms, and cutrent anticipated ending fund
balance ameunts, would allow the Beard @0 dmely menitor the financial condition of the Distdet and
provdde information for Bnancil dedston-making.  Simdlar findings were noted 1o previows audit veports,
st recently No, 2008-151,

Recommendation: Peocedures should be enhanced to ensure that cxpenditures ate limited to budgered
amounts as required by State law, mles, and Boaed policy. Also, the Idistrer should provide accurate
munthly financial information to the Board in a fimely manner, so that the Beard has practical and
understandable snmmary information for menitoring the overall financial condition of the Dhstrict.

Effective internal control procedures zequite that reconcilistions of badk and investment 2ecount balences with the

Districr’s general ledger balances be preparcd in a tmely mannet to provide assurance thar the Distziet’s cash

-4g--

i
-
1



MARCH 2609 REFOET N0, 2009-171

colleciion arnd disbuscment records ate in agreement swith bank and nvestment records, The Dhstrict tratrimined
13 bank accounts and six investment zccounts during the audit pedod. The Disttict maintained marmal records of
transactioms, teferted oo as the cash and iovesenent books, which Dhztricr staff wsed to record cash and invesoment
transactions and o monitor cash oeeds, Trassactions entered in these cash and iovestment hooks wete periedically
entered in the general ledges.

Chir review disclosed that, while the Distder teconcled the June 2008 bank accouat balaaces o the
manwally-maintained cash book, the cash book wras not maintmned by meporting fued and was nor reconcled
monthly to the balances tecorded oo the Distdcr’s general 1tdge:r. The June 3, 2008 cash bock balance was
$1,010,000 more than the cash balance per the general ledger. Through the applicaden of extended andic
procedures, we were able o identty the causes for appromimately 3960000 of the diiference, inchding ehe double
recording of workers’ compensadon cxpendinires and orher erroneans enrries in the general ledger. Flowever, as of
ficbmary 5, 2009, the Distder had not heen able to identi®y the causes for the remaining difference of approximately
$30,000 and, due io the volume of transactions, It was oot practicalls for us to &2 20 on poszandir.

Becanse cazh book tramsacdons were not propetly enered inte the general ledger and accounts properly tecoecied,
Anancial infurmanos ohrained from the general ledger throughout fhe year was incomplete and may have impaired
the abilicy of the Board and Distoct staff relying on this oancal infermation to cffecovely monitor the Distrier’s
fnancial positon. Timely posted entdes ingo the peneral ledper and prompt reconciliations of bank acconnr
balunces ro general ledger sccomnss would provide for Hmedy detection and correction of uarecorded or improperly
secorded transactions and would ensure accuracy of he financial records for mositudng District opesations
throushout the year. A similar fnding was noted in previous audit reports, mose recently No. 2008-151,

Recommendation: ‘The District should enhance its procedures to timely enter transactions into its
general ledger, promptly teconcile bank balances to general ledger accounts, and maintain records by
roporting fund.

Section 9d) Article KT, of the Constition of the Sute of Flotida provides, stmong other mazters, for the allocaden
of moter vehicle liconse reveanc o school distders for the patpose of funding capital outlay projects ondy in the
order of pﬁom*y' of needs, as shows by a surver or survers conduced by the school distmict  Fuether, the Otffice of
Educational Facilities ((OEF) of the Mlodda Department of Education has published the Siny Reguiremenis for
R ducational Facfithes — 2007 (TREF,, which, in patr, inchides requirements for expending these capital cutlay and debt
service funds. Seclion 2.175) of the SR states thar school dismots must prepars a list of projects, m poorty order,
to be the bhasis for expending capital cutlay dnd debt service funds. To implement this requirement, the District
subrairs 2 form ({OEF 217) to the OFF for approval showmg its projects in order of prodry. Section 2.1(3 ) of
the SREF states that eapiral curley and debe service fonds shall only be expended by districts on projects in the
established order of prioriy.

i{n our scport Mo, 2008-151, we noted a wansfer of 351,103.14 from the Capital Projects — Capiml Outlay and Debt’
Service Fu.ud o> the General Fund  Ddzorict staff indicated that the transfer was to reimburse the General Fund for
tmaintenance of planc costs, and the only tmaintenance of plant-telared project on the project priority Hst was for
correction of safery-to-life, health, and sandtation deficiencies idensfied 10 the snnual safery inspections. However,
General Fund expenditures for this project were nor idendified in the Distrder's accounting records, and District
recozds were not provided 1o evidence thar nse of the mansfer was for allowable purposes. We recommended thar
the Distoct docurnent the allowability of the questioned costs, totaling $81.103.14, 1o the Flovida Depamment of
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Fducation or restore the costs to the Capital Projects — Cepitad Outlay and Debr Service Fund  As of
Febrary 5, 2009, the Distdct had informed the Flotida Depariment of Education of these questioned costs, but a
Enuf resolution of this matter had net been determined. Withour such, the $81,103.14 remain guestioned costs of
capttal cetlay and debt sesvice funds, .

Recommendation: The District should document the alowability of the guestdoned costs, totaling

$31,103.34, to the Florida Depannremt of Education or these costs should be restored to the Capital

Projects — Capital Ounday and Debt Service Fund.

Section 1011.71, Flooda Staruses, as amended by Chapter 2IH8-2, Laws of Florida, allows the Distner to levy ad
valorem txes for capital outly purposes within specified millage rates subject to cortrin precedent conditions.

Allowable nses of capital outlay mllage levy proceeds include, atmony othet things, funding aew construcdon and
temedeling projocrs; mainterasce, renovation, aod repair of exisiing school plants, school bus prrchases; purchases
of newr and replacement eguipment: and property casualty Insurance preoeus costs,

The Distdet eported 2 combined total of approammarely 525 mwillion, for expenditeres and transfers out of its
capital culay miflage Jevy proceeds during the 2007-08 fecal year  Owr tesis of Distder records supportng
31 pavments, totaling approximatcly 570,000, disclosed expenditures, rotaling 323,515, from the 2007-08 fiscal year
capital outlay millege funds for band uniforms swhich were not specifically inclnded as an allowable use of capital
outlsy mtﬂage proceeds.  Addinonally, we nomed that the Distdet made purchases from ies capital outlay millage
funds, tomaling $55.133, for Instruchonal cotputer software licenses. In October 2008, the Flonda Department of
Education tesposded o another school discict regarding its purchase eof computer softwate noting that “the
expendivete of capitel improvement funds for computer softwars 13 not authonzed in Section 1171, [lopda

Statizes.”

These expendinures, fomling 378,049, represcor questioned costs of the capital outlay rillage  fonds
Section 1011.7144), Torda Statnres, provides that the Distict is sabject to having an equal dodlar redncdon 1o
Flodda Edvcation Fingnece Prograss funds approprizred under Secton 011,62, Flonda Statutes, in the Hscal year
follauring this andit citation.

Recommendation: The Disteict should develop and implement procedntes to cmsure that exﬁen&imr&s of
such tax levies are Emited to the putrposes sct forth in Section H11.71, Florida Stamtes. The District shonld
also restore questioned costs of $78,649 to the Capital Projects - Local Capital Improvement Fuad.

The Dhstdct provides for emplovee healsh and hospitabzaton mnsurance theough a self insurance plan purseant to

Secoon 11208, Flenda Statwres.  Secton 112.05(2)(b), Florida Stamtes, tequires the Districe to submet its
self-insured plan, along with certification as 1o the actuarial :oundness of the plan, to the Flonda Office of Insurance
Reguladan (OTR) in order to nbmin approval of the plan. Flodda Stamites further state that the approval of the
selftnaured plan will not be grasted noless OIR determines fhat the plan is designed o provide suffiient revenues
to pay curreor aod futere lisbilities as determined according to generally accepred actusnal ponaples.  Afrer
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implementation of the approved plan, each district school board must annually submit to OIR a2 repert which
izcludes a staterment prepated by a= acmary as to the actnazal soundoess of the plan.

The anmat report 15 duc 30 days after the close of the fiseal Feat of the plan, and since the Dhstoet’s plan year closes
on Septembez 30, the annual zeport shonld be filed by December 31 of cach vear. However, the Districr did noc fle
its arrnuzl report for the plan year coding 2008 untll Febmary 6, 2009, or 37 days after the required fling date. The
District informed us that this happened becuose it did not receive the actusry report dimely,. Without lj.].’}:’i-ﬁ.l_“:-"ﬁliﬂ_g
znnual reports, the District may lmit OIR's ability to propedy moeitor fhe Distder’s plan.  As noted: in report
Mo, 2008-131, offictals from the OTR noted that the plag’s estiroated surf;-ius at September 30, 2007, did not appeas
to be adequate to provide for 60 dags of anticipeted cleims. In such ciseumsmnces, the dmely filing of the required
annual teports becomes more codcal to coable the Board and the CIR ro effectively monitor the acmuaral
soondness of the plan and belp ensure the Distmict’s ability 1o meer its selFinsmrance obliganons in the firture

Becommendation: The Disttict should take appropriate action to ensurc that the Group Health
SelfInsurance plan amual report is dmely filed with the Flotida Department of Financial Services, Office
of Insurance Kegufadon.

The Legislature has acknowledged in Section 119.071(3)ia}, Flonda Statutes, the oecessity of collecting social
security nirmbers (S5Ns) for cemain purposes becanse of their acceptance ovet (ime as a unique numeric identifier
for idennty verdfication and othet legitimars purposes. The Tegislantre has also recognized that 35Ny can be used to
soxjuite sensitive personal informadon, the release of which could result in fraud aginst individuats or cause other
financial or personal harm.  Thetefure, public entines are required o provide cxra care in muintwining sech

informatdon o ensure its coo fdenrisl srams.

Fffecrive Cctober 1, 2007, Secton 1.19.0?"1{5}(3], Flonda Statutes, a3 amended by Chapter 2007231, Laws of
tinrida, provides that the Distoct may not collect an individual's 33N unless che Distrct has stated in wating the
purpose for its collection and unless it is specifically anvhorzed by low to do so or imperative for the performance of
the ThHstrict's duties and responsibilifies as prescibed by law. Additionally, this section zequires that, as the Thserder
collects an individual's S5M, it must provide tee individual with a copr of the womtten statetnent indicating the
purpese for collecting the nurmber.  Further, this section provides thar 38Ns collected by the ThHstrict may not be
used by the District for any purpose other than the putpose provided in the written smtement  Ihis section also
requires that the Distticr teview whether its collection of 55Nz 1= in compliance with the ahove requirements;
immediately discongnue the collection of 85NNs for purposes that are 0ot in compliance; 2od cermfr to the Presidens
of the Senate and the Spraker of the Flouse of Representatives its compliance with these requirements oo later than
Janwary 31, 2008, Further, by this date, the Districr wes required to file a repore with the Executive Office of the
Gavernot, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatves listing the identity of all
commercial entitics thar have requested S5Ms dudng the preceding ealendar year and the speafic purposes stated by
each commercial entity regavding its need for $5Ns. 1f oo disclosure requests wers miade, the Disrrict was required
to 50 tndicate. .

[zrocr personnet indicated that the Distdor eoflects 55Ns from employees, applicants for Cmplﬂymtnt,.ﬁtuﬁ&ﬁfs,
and vendors who do not have a Federal identification mumber. The Distnct has assigeed employee idenrification
tumbers o each emplores, but mainsins the 83N for income tox and social seonriy reporming purposes. Howewer,
contrary to the zbove law, the Disttiet did zot conduet the required review 2nd cvaluetion of the reasons for irs
collecton of SSNs or prepare written statements notifying individuals of the purpose for coflectton of the mumbers.
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Further, conttary to the above law, the Distdct did not certify o the Legislamre ehat it complied with
Sectinn 119071 (31%), Tlorda Statutes, v eport to the Govetnor and Legislature the identity of all commercial
enotics that requested SSNs duting the preceding calendar year, Lffective cunrmals to propetly monieer the aeed Sor
and wse of 55Ns and ensure compliance wigh stetutory requirements reduce che risk that S5Ns may be wsed for
ntauthorized purposes.  Subsequent to our inguities, THstricr management mitated actions to comply with the
requirements of Section 119.071(5)(z), Florida Sratutes, by sdopting = policy in Seprember 2008 rclared to the
collecrion, review, nocfcation, and reportog of S5Ns. . '

Recommendation:  The Disirict showuld .take appropriate acton o ensure compliance  with
Section 119.071{5)(2), Florida Stamutes. Such action should inchide an evaluation of the reasons the Distrct
collects $5Ns from Individusls. In thosc instances In which the District determines that collection of the
85Ns is not imperative for performance of its duties 2nd responsibilities, the T¥strict should discontinne
obtaining such nunmhbers.

Section 1004.02¢3), Flonds Statutes, defines adult general education, n part, as comprehensive instruerional
programs designed to itrprove the emplovability of the Stanc’s workforee,  Chaprer 2007-72, Laws of lleoda,
Specific Appropriation 123, provides thet cach school districl shall seport enrollment for adult general education
progeams idendied in Secdon 1004.02, Florida Stamtes, in accordance with the Flotids Department of Fdueation
(FDOE) instructiosal honts tepertng procedures, Procedures provided by FDOF o the school distacts stated that
fendable mstmictional contact houts ere those scheduled howrs thar acour beoween Zee date of earaliment in 4 class

and the withdtawal date or end-of-cless date, whichewer is sooner.

Our review of 0,302 hones repamed to the FDOE for 20 studenes entolled I adolt general edecation and GEID
prcparation classes disclosed that fnproserments in controls over cnrollment tepordng wets needed. W noted
excepdons in enrellrment reporting for all 20 studenrs wested, as follows:

¥ Tor 15 students, the District veported total potendal cozrse hours rather than-acmal contact hours, resnlng

in the Distacr ovemeporizg 4 totil of 1,938 hours.

#  For three students, Distder personnel could not document that the smdeats ever attended cass, resulting
900 hours overreported.

#  Hours were inadvertendy reported for two smxdents for taking the GED tess, resaling in 30 hours
- overreposed.

Given the excepdons cted above, the bl extent of the conrse bours overmepatted was not readily available. Since-

future fimding may be based, in part, on carollment date submitted o FDDOL, it i impostant that such duts be

subritted correctly 2nd be accurately presented in FDOE s records.

Recommendation: The Distriet should enhance its conteals over the reporting of instnetional contact
hours for adult general education conrses to the Florida Deparmment of Educadon. Further, the Disoce
should determine the cxtent of hours overreporied and report the comcct information v the Florida
Department of Edocarion,

Pursuant to Section 1009.22, Flotida Stattes, and Stare Board of Education Rule 6A-0.084, Florids Admimstradve
Code, the Dhstrict assessed and colleered fees for sdult studenrs enrolled ar the Tavlor Technicsl Insttute (TTE).
TTE accouneed for student fee assessments, collections, and ourstanding balances using » computetized student fee

-50-
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svarem.  Doring the 2007-08 fscal vear, the Disteet reported student fee revennes of approsmately 3163000 for
studenss attending adult and vocational education clezses at TTL As also aoted in ooz repott Nao 2008-151, the
Diserdet conld enhance control procedures over these revenues as discussed belomw:

# The Studest Services Secretary at TTT was responsible for enteoeg foo assessments and collections in the
student Fee' system, collecting fees, and preparng prenutnlwered teceiprs. Under these comdrtions, one
LJIII:ID}-L‘:I: had controd over the t2ansaction pIﬁCE‘H guch that creors or frand, shoold they occar, may not be
detected in 2 dmely maoner,

¥ FEffective internal controls over the student fee collecton fonction are mecessary to promote the
safeguatding of assers and the refiabilicy of acconnmnng records. Chir resdew disclosed thar the Distrier
performed foo andits reconcling registtadon formns with fee teceipts for only two students cach semester,
a_.thﬂugh TTT setves approwimately 330 sindents per scmester. Without adequate fee audit procedures
coveting a sigoificant pordos of the student entollment, the sk inereases fos errods of Misappropoations ko
ooour and not be derected in 2 timely manser.

¥ Our teview of fee assessments 2nd recorded collections for 20 students dsclosed taro students with unpaid
tnivon fecs toraling $388.50 for the Spring 2008 sernester. Further ingniry and remew of Dismict records
indicated that the fees for these two students wounld be paid by therr emplover, a private company; bawever,
as of llebruary 5, 2009, oo payments had been recetved Frorn the company for foes, totaling 37 326.94, owed
for their emplm‘eeq actendmg TEE dudng the Fall 2007 and Spdng 2008 semesters. When collection cfiorts
are not dmely, fees may nemain uecollsched.

Reocommendation: The District should strengther contrels over student ke sevenues by separating fee
collection and record keeping funcdons, and appropriately aceounting for vocollected fees.

The Tistrict did oot propedy allocate inrerest caroings on pooled investments to the respective funds owmng the

investrrents, Section 10M1.09(1), Florida Stetutes, zequires that distdct school boards credit interest or prolits on
investrrents 1o the qpeuﬂc budgeted fund that produced the earnings. The Disteict invested temporadly idle fznds
in 2 pocled account with the State Board of Administsation (SBA) and in an interest-beadng account in 4 Jocal
depositoty; however, Districr records did not evidence thar the inrerest allocations were hased on the respermve
fund’s ownership intercst in the iovestmenrt balence. As a result, inferest earnings on sipnificant amounts of
restricted moneys were not cotrectly allocated o the forids that owned the investments durng the 2007-08 facal
year

Ve extended our audit procedures to estimate the interest earnings allocations by mnd which showdd have been
made based on the respective Bands ownership of the investments, These esdmarey izdicated that nterest income
was recorded it the (General Fund toteling approximately $20,00H which should have been allocated 2o the Capuial
I'rojects — Local Capitel Improvement Fend, and approsimately 527,000 which should have been allocated 1o the
Specisl Reveaus — Othet Pund  Further discussion relating to Federal interest earnings 5 provided m Federal
Awards Finding No. 4

Recormmendation: The District should properly account Fie and allocare the interest earned cn its
investments ta the appropriate funds that own the investments.

Earch information techoology (TT! fuecnon needs complete, well-documenred policics 2nd procedures to desctibe
the scope of the funetion and its activiries. Sound policics and procedures provide benchonarks zgainst which
cotnplisnce can be measured ard contobure to an effective contrel eovitowment.
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The Drsteict lacked wrren polices and procedutes for the following I'T funcoons:

#  Adminstenng vendor-supplied identification oodes (ID3), wser 1Dz, admuimistrative passwords, Guest

accouats, and securty devices {such as frewrells and routers),

#  Tlefining network administration msponsbilites.

Y

Trohibiting administratos nghts on the workstations of eod users.
Defining access privileges and responsibilides of end-user support statt.

Resetting wser passwords, including positive identBcation of the nser.

L G

Defining termination procedures, inclnding timely notification of serminations and reassignments and
revoling the access poivileges of funpet or transferred emplovees, consulrants, and vendoss.

Without written policies and procedures, the risk iz increased that IT contrels may not be followed consistently and
i # tAnmer PUIHANE i MEnapement’s cxpectations,

Recommendaton: The District shonld cstablish wiitten policies and procedures to document
management’s expectations for the performance of the above-listed T functions.

A comptehensive scondty awareness training program apprises sew cmployees of, and reemphasizes to carrent
cmiplovees, the importasce of preserving the confidennality, integrity, snd availabilicy of data and FF rescurces
entrusted to them. Significant nonpublic recotds (e, student tecord infosmanon and other recurds thar consin
sepsittve information) are included in the data mammined by the Distdet’s TE spsterns. Although the Dustrct
provided a securicy training session and Acceptable Tse Policy o fl employees and required emplovees o sign 2
fotn regarding acceptable nerwork use annually, the Distticr’s security training was not comprebensive in that it did
not facilitate emplovees” ongoing educarion and trainieg on certsin securly responsibilittes, such as acccpfablc or
prohibited saethods for storage and transmission of data, maliciovs softerare and wims threats, workstation conitols,
znd handling of confidentizl information. The Distzict’s faiture to addzess certaie issues in their security awarcness
traiming progratt incteases the risk that the Dissdet’s IT resources covld be intenmonally or unintentionaliy
compromised by employees while performing their assigned duries.

Recommendation: To minimize misuse of IT resources, the District shonld improve its secuwiny
awareness training program to cnsure that all employees are aware of the impertance of information
handied and their responsibilites for maintainiag irs confidentiality, integrity, and availability.

Security controls are inteaded to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of data and TT resources. Our
aadit desclosed certaln secudey conerols related to wser authentication that needed improvemcnt,  We A oot
disclosing spectfic details of the issuc mn this report to avoid the possibility of compromusing Distret dara and 1T
resources. However, we bave nodfied appropriate District manapement of the specific iasue. W’iﬂ‘lput adequate
scouniy conols, the confidentiality, integrity, and availabilizy of data angd 1T resputres may be comprormised,
increasing the risk that Disoict dara and 1T resources may be sabject to improper disclosure, modificarion, or
destruction.
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Recommendation: The District shonld improve security controls related to nser authcotication to cosute
the contnved confidentiality, integtity, and availability of District data and IT resources.

S R R

i : ' b
D e R S

Federal finpncial assistance granted under the Tlead Sratt program shall not exceed 80 pergent of the toral costs of
the program, unless a greater percentage s approved by the United Soates Department of Healdh and Human
Services. Based on the presisions of the grant documents fot the Februaty 2007 thraugsh Tamwery 2008 guang award,
the THsbet was responsible for matching 20 percent, or $209.858, of the otel cost of the projec award
(31,349,287, Title 43, Secoon 130132, Code of Federal Regulatnons, provides that allowable costs for developiog
and adminmistering 1 Head Statt program may oot exceed 13 percsal of the ammual toial zpproved coss of the
progeamn, including the requited non-Federal contribetton to such costs Le, marching), unless @ woaver hay been

pranted.

Drstrct records Jid not evidence that the in-kind matching contribetion sequiternent was mer, azd the Dismct did
aot file the 5269 annunal boancial stanes report for the pecod eeding January 31, 2008, dee Apnl 3, 2008,
evidencng the amuvnt and percentage of development and admdniserative costs ncwrred or marching expenditures
claimmed by the THsittor  District pessonnel indicated that the Dhsorict had requestec 2 watver of the marching
requireroents from the United States Department of Health and ITiman Services; however, ar the rime of our
izquity i February 2009, no such waiver had been tecetwed

In the absence of venflable deumentaton suppoming the amouats of matching or in-kind costdbugons and the
percentage of developmen: and administrative costs ncumed, all expendiniess charged to the grant, totaling
F59,492.38, represent qrestioned costs subject fo disallowance by the grantor.

Recommendation:  The District should develop and implement procedures to document compliance with
percentage Emitatons of development and administrative costs incunred, and with maching requirements
of the Head Start program grant. Also, the District should documeat to the grantor ageney comphlance
with matching requitements and development and sdminisarative cost Hmitations or restore the Federal
program costs, totzling 5989492 35,

Disteict cotwact persen: Vickt MeMams, Directar of Hinance
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Reporting. The District needs o make improvements in momitoring and seporting Federal expendinizes for grans
roccived through the Flodda Deparmment of Education (FLMOR). Reporting and administrative requirements for
such grants are govetned by the FINOFE publication ttled, Projas Appfator and Awemdmant Progdurer for Pedera! ennd
State Progmees. Sccoon O of this publicaton provides instmctions w disteict schoal boards relative 1o requestog
advances of Federsl cash, teporting expendineres of graat funds, snd prepanation sod submissten of Fomu
[M3E 026, a repor used to recondle the Federal cash bataoce shown on the FDOFE THsoibuove Aid and Cash
Advance Stanus Report o the Distter’s accounting tecords. Fxpendineres of prant funds are to be reported as they
occur theongh FDOEs On-Line Disburscment Reporting Application, and distdets are (o subtmt a Final Project
Dvisbursement Report (FA-399% by the date specified on the sroject award notification

Ot teview of Discrics veconds disclosed thar expenditwes, totalng approzimately 107,400, were recorded in the
Dhsteict’s gencrel ledger dudng the 2007-08 fscal yesr, but were not reported to FIDOE through the Or-Line
Disbumsement Reparting Application ot the fingl FA-39%9 subooitted for the granss, A simifar Anding was noted in
our report No. 2008-151 nvolving nnreported expenditures, totaling approxitoately $73,940, which have oot yet
been reselved  Consequently, as of February 2009, FDOE™: tecords do not agree with Distner records by these
amounts, and the avalahility of these funds for Disorict use 3= uncertain, [o addion, we noted grant expendifures
reported to FIMOE for the Special Bducadon — Grans to States program exceeded the zreunt expended per
Distrct records, and thetefore the Disthor was over-zeimbuzsed by 322,940.85.

W further noted thar the EXstrict had ot prepated or filed the Distabutve Aid Cash Advanee Reconciliacion with
FI}OE as of Feborary 3, 200%, more then three months after the required filing date (November 1, 2008). While we
were able to materally reconelle Distrct reconds with the FDOE Federal cash balznce shown oo the Dismibudve
Ald and Cash Advance Stams Report, the failure to timely prepare penodic seconciliations of the FDDOE cazh
advance balance and program expenditures with the balances shown in the District’s records hemits the District’s
ability to dmely detect and correct errors in the arcounting records or Federsl Ansncial repotts.

Recommendadon: The Diswict should improve its monitoring of Federal expenditures to ensure that
amounts recorded in the genctal ledger are appropriately seported to FDOE and to ensnre that the
requited cash advance reconciiadon is completed and filed within the established time petiod. Further,
the District shenld contact FIROE regarding nccessary action o resolve the guestioned costs, totaling
$22,940.85.

Diistrct Coarsct Person: Vicki MedManns, Ditecror of Finance

S



MARCH 2000 i REPORT NO. 20408-171

dertermining allowable costs of Federally-funded grant peograms.  Head Stam is a Federally-funded program that
promates school readiness by enhancing the social and cognitive development of children through the provisien of
educational, health, and other services o ;ﬂlﬂ]lt:d childien and families.

‘T'he Dismict budgeted Ilead Start program fuading for a pordon of health service costs provided by the Laylor
County Health Teparmment at Steinharchee School. While the program funded paymenss, roraling $18,637.02, for
heaith services 2t Steinhatchee School these payments weluded costs, toteling $13,629.57, {or services at the Taylos
County Blementaty Scheol which were not related o the Head Starr progran. Accordingly, these paymenis,
totaling §13,629.87, represent questoned costs subject (o disallowanee by the grantor,

Recommendation: The District should enhance its procedures to ensurc that expendimres of Federal
funds are for purposes authorized by the grant award. Additenally, the THstrict should document the
allowability of the questioned costs, toraling $13,629.87, or these moncys should be restored to the Head
Seart program.

THsrrtcr Contacr Persorn: Eroc Scoit, Head Start Dhirectot

Cash Management. LThe Distrct recerved advances of Federal cash to fund expenditures of the Federal grants
recetved through the Flogds Department of Edneation (FDOE). Title 34, Section 0206, Code of Federal
Rezuletions (CFR), establishes prerequisites for cash advances that include a requirement that the Distrier adept

procedures which minimive the tine elapsing between the drew down of cash from rhe Sate and s disburscment
by the Diistdet. Title 34, Section &0.21, CHFR, provides that fathure to comply with such procedures could result in the
termination of the advance cash pavments to the Distget. Fuorther, Title 34, Secdon 3021511, CFR, provides thar
subprantees shall promptly, but at keast quarterly, rernit interest camed on cash advances w the Federal agency. The
subgtantes n:'m,}' keep interest amonnts up to $100 per veat for adpinisieacve expenscs. TDOE instructed disorict
school boards to remit interesr earned vn Federal cash advances 1o the FDOE Comptrollers Offfee

Lffeerive forecasting procedures should inchide a compenson of actual cash balances and dishursements with the
draw requests on at least 2 monthly basis and prompt communicabon with FIXOE amending cash advance requests,
23 needed, tn provide safficient resources while svoiding the zeeummilaton of Federal cash in excess of immediate
needs. Char seview of Federal cash advances received throngh the State to fund vadous Federal programs inclnded a
commpatison of the monthly beginning cash balance phus draws (available cashy) to disbursemeats for that month, for
each month during the 2007-08 fiscal year. The review indicatad thar on the last day of cach month, the Distrier had
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cash balinces in excess of the entire next wmomth™s expendimares in amounts ranging from §404.233.00 o
F248,09253,  Further discusstons of inadequate finencial moeitoning procedures are discussed in Hinancial
Sraretnent Finding No. 3.

In addition, we noted that, s of Tune 30, 208, no ingerest earnings on cash advances had been allocarsd or remirted .

by the Distriel during the 200708 fscal vear to the FDOE, However, a3 disoumssed-in Additioms] Matters Finding
Moo 12, our audit analysis indicated thar approsstuately 527,000 in inrevest earmings was carned oo these Federal cash
eelvances in the 2007-08 fistal Fear which should have been semitred,

Recommendation:  ‘The IMstrict should enhance its Federal cash balapce mositoring proceduores, as
necessary, to antcipate disborscments so that such balances are kept at appropriate levels, and timely
remit intcrest earnings on the balances as required. Also, the District should determing the amount of
interest earned on excess Federal cash balances during the 2007-08 fiscal year and remir it to FDOE.

Distoct Centact Person: Wicki Mebamas, Director of Finance

ITead Start cash was aceurately reported and in apreement with Distoct ecords. The Disoict recerved funding

directly from the United States Department of Health and Fluman Serviees — Papment Mansgement System for it
Head Szart program, The District is reguired o Ble gquarterly a Federal Cash Transacton Report, Form PRC 272
which veports cesh on kand at the end of cach quartes. Dumnng oor review of the Form PSC 272 for the guarer
cnding fane 30, 2008, we noted that the cash balacce for the Head Srart propram was not specifically identified and
tracked in the general ledger.  Accoudingly, we calondated the cash balznee which should have been repored naing
beginning cash, plus cash draws, less Head Stert expenditures, and celondated 2 posstive cash balance at Tune 30,
2008, of 91,1536, The District reporied 2 deficit cash balance of $17,639.80 on the Form PSC 272, 4 difference of
FI02,A12.80.  Tn several previous andits, mosz recently No.o 2008-151, we noted similar differences.  Distner
personnel indicazed thae they have been anable to idendfy the canse of the differences.

Recommendation: The Disttict should implement procedures to easure that the Federal Cash
Transaction Report, Form PSC 272, is accurately filed and reconciled to the District’s recerds. Also, the
District should implement procedures to ensure that the sctual Head Start cash balance is identified and
tracked in fhe District's general ledger.

District Conbact Person: Vicki ledlanms, Director of Finance
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Alloswahle Costs/ Cost Principles — Compensation of Persnnnel Services The Office of Mznagement Budger
OMB) Cirwdar .87, Attachment A, Section C.1, provides that charpes to Federal awards for salaries and wages be

based oo paytells documented in accordance with generally accepred practices of the governmentsl wmil aod
approved br z responsible offidal of the unit. Where emplayees are czpected to work on multiple activitics or cost
chjocdves, o distdbudon of their salaties or wages will be supporied by monithly personmcl acovity Tepotts or
equivalent documentation These reports must reflect an after-the-fact distobution of the actual activity of each
emplovee and must be signed by the emplofee. Where employees are sxpected to work solely on a sinple Federal
award or cost objecnve, charges for salencs and wages are to be suppotted by perodic certineations, prepared at
Jeast sermiznmually, thar the cmployess worked solely on that program for the peried of the cerrificadon.

The Distrct recorded salary and benefit expendimres for the Head Start and Special Edueadon proprams, morading
aporosdpately 5925000 and 5643000, respectively. We performed audit wests of these expendinares, tomling
aporoximately $289,000 and $238,000, respectively, and determined thal enhancements were reeded in Distdct
prucedutes for tnaincaining documenraton to support these costs, as follows:

¥  While employess prepared annual certificanons to cvidence the time devated to Federa! progratms, we noled
ghat the [Mzrsicr did nov obtain the requited semiznmal certificanions for six employees working solely on
the Flead Stert program to suppore salary cxpendimres totaling $288,500.12 of o theee cmployees working
sotely on the Spocal Education progrem 1o support salacy expenditires totahog 51401081456,
¥ Dme o oversights, the Distet did not obiain the required pessonnel activity repotis for two employees
with 90 percent and 3 percent salarics charged, respectively, ta the Special Hdurahon program 1o support
salaty expendizires totaling 397 870,83,
Absent the required cercfications and persooncd acdwity teports, we performed addional audic procedures,
including obtaining confirmatiops from applicable employees and interviewing supenzsory persommel, and
determined that the emplovees” salaries charged to the Federal program were comunensurate with the ime actuelly
spent un Federal program acewities by these cmployees, A similer finding was noted in previous andit reports, mast
recently Mo, 2008-151.

Recommendation: The District should enhance proceduses to ensure that documentation to support
salarics charged to Federal programs is maiomined for cmployess worldag on single and multiple cost
objectives,

District Contact Person: Vicki McManues, Director of Finaznce
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Allowable Costs/Cost Principles. The United Stares (Mfice of Management and Budget (OMB) Chrwlar 487,
Atlachinent A, Section (01, provides, in parr, that costs must be adeguately dommented 1o be allowable under
Fedaral awards, The Distoct rocorded expenditures, totaling approximately $788,000, for the Special Educarion
propram, and we performed lests of expendimres, torabing approzimetely $238,(00, to detetmine thetr propriety and
allowability. These tests disclosed thar Distdict records did not conmsin siga-in/sipn-our sheers or other cvidence o
supporr cettain houss worked by one vendor, paid approximarcly $40.000, that provided consulting and chetapy
' services for the Special Educaden program  Documentadon imfally provided by the Distrcr in [uly 2008 to
suppor enounts paid did oot contie adeguate suppott foor 38,860.73 0 semaces (14925 houts) charged o the
Diistder. On Jamuary 18, 2009, the District provided addidoeal documentation w sapport services bilied totalng
3543875, which inchided addifional fmeesheets not previously provided to support 56.23 hours, znd copies of
timesheets previously provided in July 2008 which were altered to support an addilional 33 hours. Dommentation
lr evidence the propriery of the remaiming 60 hours was not provided. These hours involved travel tme which was
net being charped correctly per the conmact, and consequently, relared payments, totaling 3342200, reprasent
questoned costs sulyect to disellowance by the grantor. A similar finding was noted in our report Mo, 2008.1 a1,

Recommendation: The DHstrict should stzengthen monitoring procedures by reconciling fime records for
purchased services to related charges before payments for such services are made. In addition, the District
shoukl document w the grantor {Florida Department of Education) the allowability of the guestioned
custs, toraling $3,422.00, or these moneys should be testored 1o the Special Education program.

Distrer Conract Person: Shone Murphy, Exceptional Sudent Education Coordinatur

Hxcept as discussed in the preceding paragtaphs, and the SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT
FINDINGS — FEDERAL AWARDS, the Distoct had token comtective actions for findings included 0 our report
Mo 2008-151.

T

BPS RESPONSE:

R P

The Disinct’s response is incleded as Exhubit - M o dus report,
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MARCH 2009 REFORT NO. 2000-171

Management Basponse — Taylor County District School Board
Repaort for FY 2007-08
Finding # 1

During the 2007-08 year, the District did take measures to reduce expenditures. Included in these measures
were halding vacancies, reducing travel, overtime, the use of substitutes, and materials and supplies. If these
measures had not been taken, the deficit would have declined further. As nated in the audit report, the
District worked with the FADSS team to analyze operations and determine where positions could be
eliminated and costs could be reduced. Errors in the FADSS report overstated the number of positions that
could be eliminated, and closing the Steinhatches Schoal would likeby reselt in the loss of all students to Dixie
County and as a result, the loss of the FEFP funding for those students. A cost analysis was performed to .
determine that with the implementation of the plan approved by the Board on June 3, 2008, continuing to
oparate Steinhatchee School would be a break-even proposition. The approved changes wers implemented
7/1/08, and savings are exceeding those projected in the plan. A FADSS monitoring team meets with the
Finance Director ane to twa days per month to develop and validate revenue and expenditure projections for
the remainder of the year. We are continuing to monitor and reduce expenditures and are now on track to end
the year with an unreserved fund balance of 2.2%. We are developing a plan which builds on the current y2ar,
takes into consideration the expected reductions for 2009-10, and will produce a fund balance of 3% or greater
by the end of 2009-10. '

R

Finding # 2

We agree that the AFR was not complete when submitted to DOE. Due to the learning process, lack of
decumentation of procedures, time and perscnnel resource constraints and condition of the finandcial
statements when the new Finance Dirsctor was hired, the focus was on controlling expenditures and
monitaring revenues, not on the balance sheet partion of the AFR. We brought in assistance from FADSS and
other Districts; however, that assistance combined with significant unpaid overtime by the Finance Director .
was not sufficient to allow the accurate and complete submission of the AFR. We continue to work with FADSS ks
and other District Finance personnel to correct balance sheet entries 1o begin 20028-09 and to improve :
reporting procedures for 2008-09, We review all Purchase Orders and invoice payments in Finance to ensure

cading is correct and that grant funds and capital funds are being used correctly. It should also be noted the

absentee rate in Finance due to serious heatth issues of several key personnel was significantly higher than

normal and adversely affected operations in Finance.

Finding #3

We agree that sufficient financial reperting processes were not in place in 2007-08, resulting in reports to the
Eoard that were not always timely and accurate. The prior Finance Director did not load the
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comnplete budget in TERMS. Bue to the known Ssues with the financial statements, the fund balarce in the
financiat system could not be refied upon and efforts to enter audit adjustménts in TEEMS with the assistance
of another District Finance Officer were not successful. Therefore, balance sheets were not presentad to the
Board during the year. Reports of revenue and expendi'tureg and projected fund balance were presented to
the Board beginning in April after the audit report was received and the data could therefore be carractly
presented. Under normal circumstances, hudget amendments would be submitted to transfer funds between
categories to offset unfavorable variances. Since there was no source of funding for the overmuns, it seemed
futile to submit budget amendments. n 2008-09, we are presenting monthly financial reports 1o the Board
and also submit those to FADSS and DOE. We have also submitted budzet amendntants to the Board for
approval and budget amendments are placed on ihe agenda for every Board meeting, even if not used.

Finding # 4

We agree that bank statements should be reconciled to the cash book and to the general ledger on a moithly
basis and have implemented procedures to ensure this eccurs in 2008-09. We did receive assistance from the
EADSS team in reconciling the 2008-02 bank activity to the zenera] ledzer; however, the reconciliation did not
agree completely with the audit reconciliation. We have obtained the reconciling items from the auditors and
will make correcting entries in the General Ledger.

]
s
i

Finding#5-

We have cantacted DOE and recently provided additional documentation on the gualification of the noted
costs from the Capital Outlay & Debt Service Fund from prior year audit 2008-151. With this added
documentation, we beligve that 2]l of the questioned expenditures are in support of safety to life corrections
and are allowahte, We will follow up with DOE to obtain a final determination letier and will restore funds if
reguired to do so by the end of April 2009, As stated above in finding # 2, the PO review has alsa strengthened
conteols in this area, as no findings for the 200708 year wetre noted,

Finding # &

We agree that band uniforms and instructional computer software licenses should have been purchased with
General Fund, not Lecal Capital Improvement Fund, and will restore those funds in March 2009, These errors
crcurred due to a misinterpretation of the statute.

Finding # 7

The required insurance reparts were filed in February 20039 and have been provided to the auditors. During the
year, the representative from Arthur I, Gallagher, our Biue Cross Blue Shield carrier, provides monthly states
reports to the Insurance Committes, including claims, premiums collected, excess claims, and projected year-
erd fund balance. This report is bazed on monthly data provided to them from our financial staterments for
premiums collected and Board contribution as well as data on claims fram BCBS,
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Finding #2

The District was not aware of this law prior to inguiries by the auditors. As noted in the audit report, upon
notification of the law, the District immediately researched, developed and implemented procedures to ensure
compliance for staff.

Finding # 5

We agree that proper procedures and controls were not implemented for this new requirement. The
corrections for hours that were overreported have been input to the Student System and submitted to DOE.
Procedures have also been put in place 1o ensure calculations are accurate for all students regardless of
whether they withdraw early or complete the course.

Finding #10

This finding was the result of holding 2 position vacant far over & year and falling to perform sufficient testing
to identify potential problems. The separation of duties recommended has now been implemented. We will
also increase the number of fee audits to reflect = statistically valid sample size.

On the cutstanding amounts for the twa students, we agres that collection efforts should be made on a timely
basis. TTI did bill the eraployer in gquestion on multiple dates and has now been notified the company is in
bankriptoy. We are obtaining a legal opinion on the best course of action. In the meantime, we are
researching whether the two students in question would qualify for scholarship funds. Iif they qualify, we will
use scholarship or waiver funds to reimburse the District for this debt,

" Finding #11

This finding is related to the account reconciliation to the general ledger by fund. Based on the procedures in
place to draw down Federal cash, we initially believed that the high Federal funds balance was in error.
However, with the assistance of FADSS and the auditors, we now agree the balance was carried forward from
prior years, and should have resulted in interest heing credited to each fund. We will remit the 52?,0@0 in
interest for 2007-08 to DOE in the 3/31/0% check run.

Finding # 12

We agree that written policies and procedures would reduce the risk that IT contrals may not be fellowed
consistently and in accordance with management’s expectations. MIS is in the process of consulting with other
Districts an thelr pelicies and developing written procedures to address each of the areas noted. We expert
the procedures to be completed by £/30/049.

=
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Finding #13

We agree with this finding and are in the process of devefoping this program, to he implemented with the
2009-10 school yeat. :

Finding #14

We agree with this finding and are implementing necessary controls,

Federal Award Findings
Federal Finding # 1

The annual 5F 269 repart for the period 2/1/07-1/31/08 was filed on 3/3/09. This report reflects expendiiures
of $924,019, in-kind contributions of $230,288 for a total program cost of 51,224,307, The administrative costs
included are $177,100, which 15 less than the armmount allowed of $183,646. The nan Federal in-king
contribution amount of 5 230,288 is higher than the 20% required amount of 519,804, We will provida the
back-up docu mentatian for these costs to the Regional affice of US Health and Human Services and request a
final determination letter.

We have also implemented procedures to ensure that reporting for the period 2/1/08-1/31/09 is up-to-date =
ard submitted on a timely basks going forward.

Federal Finding # 2

We agree that 2 monthly reconciliation of Distributive Aid Cash Advance report would improve the District’s

ability to timely detect and correct errors in the accounting records and Federal financial reports. Our ability

te do this bas been hampered by the lack of institutional knowtedze of this process and conflicting priorities. _
We agree that procedures need to be improved in the area of monitoring Federal expenditures. The District .
grant writer has been assigned to work with the Fiscal Coordinator to ensure budgets are input te TERMS on a
timely basis and that has been working well in 2008-03. We requested assistance from FADSS and a
neighboring District Finance staff to better understand the Distributive Ald & Cash Advance Systam {DACAS)
pracess, The reconciliation for the 200708 vear was completed and submitted to DOE on 2/12/0%. We will
investigate the discrepancies noted in the audit report and submit corrections to BOE. We are also
implementing procedures to reconcile the en-line reporting to the DACAS report on a monthly basis, and are
setting up a meeting with DOE to resolve the pricr year difference.

Federal Finding # 3

Whe will investigate to determine how the coding errar accurred and establish procedures to prevent
recccurrence. We will restore the funds in March 20092,
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Federal Finding # 4

This finding is related to the accourt reconciliation to the general tedger by fund. Based on the procedures in
place to draw down Federal cash, we initially believed that the high Federal funds balance was in error.
However, with the assistance of FADSS and the auditons, we now agree the balance was carried forward from
pricr years, and should have resulted in interest being credited to each fund. We will remit the $27.000 in
imterest far 2007-08 to DOE in the 3/31/09 check run. We have modified the procedures of drawing down cash
for Federal grants to ensure this does not reaccur. In addition, we gdid not draw down any cash until the prics
year excess balance was expended in 2005-05.

Federsl Finding #5

We agree that procedurss need to be established to ensure acourate and timely reporting of the Federal Cash
Transaction repert for Head Start. Dur ability to do =0 has been hampered by the lack of institutional
knowledgze of the prucésses and the availability of resources to perform the work. A member of the FAGSS
team reconciled the beginning cash balance back to' 1996 and was unabile to identify the difference. We will
contact HHS and those responsible for the PSC 272 report to determine how to carrect the balance in the
reporting systerm by the and of April 2009,

Federal Finding # &

e agree that payroll for employees working on Federal programs should be properly docurmented, and were
tncerrectly working under the premise that the annual certification was sufficient. We are working with DOE
and taking steps to ensure proper procedures are fellowed and Personnel Activity Reports are completed a3
required.

Federal Finding # 7

We asree that documentation to support payment of invoices should be reviewed prior to payment to ensure
paymeants are consistent with the contract provisions, and that the documentation should be attached ta the
invaice in support of the payment. We will implement procedures to ensure such payments are reviewed prior
to submission to Finance. In addition, Accounts Payable will perform random testing of selected invaices ta
ensure complignce. We are currently pursuing a refund from the vendor that improperby charged for excess
driving time and will restore those funds in March 2003,
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Foreword

This studly was promptsd by a severc ceonomic crisis curmnily and reeeatly befng
exgerienced by the Taylor Couty School District, and was focased almost entimaly
cireumstances and jssuss relating to fhe economic disiress and fofmmlation of posential
reredies and recommended stepa and practices designed by a feam of experienced
oduested professionals to allzviste the crisis and returs the disiict fo s dostred statz of
econamic wellness. 18 is a focus stwds and not 2 comorchensive osgamzalicn sod
managsment stody which wouald have presanied s tmch broedsr piehes of the state ol the
sekoo] gysiem and T acoommlishments. For instance, the &striot’s and schools’ geades
resulting fror aoplication of Florida's Accoumabliiity System show a qurent positive
sicture of incredsing efeclivencss in teaching and leamning over the past five yoars,

The study does nat dwsll oo cavses for the cument ceoromic disioss. Gbvicushy high on
the list of canses wozld be tmaveidable personnal chanoes in the past that cavsed loss of
instutional knowtodee, a distoried picturs of the systses finmmees, and ditficalties
operations and. commusications. I seems pbvious also, thet financial conditions dave
heen worsenod by the breadth of well-intendeé practices and services to the comeauriiics
of Taylor Counly cifizens which the sysiem no longer can afferd to mnder. Also,
seems clcar that the econcmme probloms in the Districl have heen exacerbatod by the
declining economic pictore stxewide. :

The Taylor Ceunty School Disinict roust take strong measares 1o recover from ils styong.

pattern of econormc decline, It is to that exd faaf {f1is repor: of a Focus Sady oo
" Business and Finanoeial Operations and the recommendations therein o presescd.
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Focas Study on Buasiness and Financial
{Operations in the Tayler County Scheol District

Introduction

This techiical 2ssistance service was requested by the Superintendent and Sckool Board
of Tayior County School District and by the Flogida Commrissianer of Educatior. The
iission of the Stody Team appointed to camy out the scrvice was 1o condact a siudy of
the disirict business and fmancial operations, to determins fhe {imaocial statoa of the
schogl district, provide findings ard recomrnendations relative o busmess and finavce
operztions, alignment and deployment of staff personmel, Lo desigs an BCONINT TECOVErY
plen end o Tevommend & monitoring plan dedicated to reteming the school sgstem o a
stese of economic wellzess.

The shidy differs frors the customary Orgenieation and Management Stogy In that the
request $or fhis azststance wes borne cut of the sigrificant snd vrgent economic prodlems
and sysiem dishoss being sxperienced by the Tayler Connty School Distriet. Thersfore
e ecmphasis of the suzdy was to loceie and descrtbe the ceonommic problems that exdst,
and to recommend sound solufioms lo fhe probiems and’ Eeprovement o systenos
slignmeant, human  resourccs  Geployment apd  mznegewent  pracces. The
rocomasndstions  fis report arc tended 0 musisl te Superintendent and School
Roard to Teturn the scheol district 1o a state of healthy scomomic condifions and climate.

The Swdy Tears was comprised of pamsons holding expesiise fn the various flmetieons of
the school system by vireae of their fraiming mmd cxperience in their respective fields. The
intent of the team was to provide iaformation 1o 1he requesting parties (hat clearly aad
accurately describos fhe generation and proliferation of problems and to Tecommend
sound solutions te the peobloms and improvements in the systems opcrations and
finencial managsment practices.

In addition o fnciom-specific procedsmes wsed by team members, the following guide
Juestions weee stnphasized in this study:

o 15 thete evidsmce that %he school district 1s operating from a systoms

parspeclive?
° Is there enidence that systems integration 1s tking place?
w Considering cirent economic conditions, is there evidence fhat sysicms

fallurs has cocprrad?

a Is the budsciing and spending plan broadly distributed, widely enderstood,
and operatng eificiznily?
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15 the Tzakane hetwsen the hudgel znd the strategic plan clearly visible in
the day-io-day operations of fie systerm?

Az the stite roquired finetions harmerdcafly disinbuted among sta

personnel?
Are all potential seurces of revenue kogwn imd appropriately accessed?
Ts thers cvidence fhat covernance Zilure hus securred?

s there evidence that decision-making i the district is based on sound
data refmieval apd anztysis?

The report of this stady is orgamzed in the following meanes;

trirodnetion
Financia! Statas of the Taylor County Schooi Bstrict

& Comparative Statistical Analysis of Tayler County School District wilk
Six Florida Scheel Distict of Similar Size snd Circumnstances

Findings and Resommendations on Organizational Adiapment and System
Funcuors

fiindings and Recommmendations on Respective Service Operations
A Becommended Salfing Plan
A Proposed Economic Recovery Plan

A Recormmended Morttormg Plan

Tn tae Initizl maesing én the stady process, Saperimtendent Oscar Howard indhicated that be
fas baleen o is faking the fellowing stops fo redoce expendiberes:

NN

Cuz on travel

Pomnii ne purchases exoept for absoiute esscrtials.

Pt strong Emies on the substifute worker plan

Consciidate somge of the bus rovies

Take Furthor Tossasarss (o eSS sadtay

The Distriet will institie a four day weork week for employess when the sfodent
year ends.
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Feonomic Status of the
Taylor County School District

Tavlor Conndy’s popalaiion is about 21,000, They live on less than 1{%% of the CORINTY’s
1 042 squere mile arca. Approximatsly 90% of the land is in forest. Major smplayers in
fhe Dhstrict ate Buckeye Florida, City of Pery, Consolidated Forest Produects, Dxaciors
Memorial Hospital, Marén Eleotronics, P=rry Lumber Company, Taytor County
Correetional Tnsttution, Tayler County and city governmontal agancies, Tayler Distict
Szhool Board, Tem's Foods, and Unsted Waldng,

Fropesty valpations huve increased from $1.082 billion in 2005 v nearly $1.393 billion in
2907 or zhout 28.7% due mostly to the sharp toercascs jn the appraised valoe of non-
bemesicaded properly. However, the 2007 vaination &s caly about 10% higher thar 2606,
Property valnations are expected to semain level over the nexi five years duc to the
passeam of Amendment One which mereases exemptions from maxes and caps TMCTEEEs
rropety valuations For fux prIposes.

The District is experisacisg declining emollment =i a tate of about 6% from 2001-02
throush the prasent The numbors of neweighied fulltime equivalent (FIE} gudsms
kave dropped fromu 3389 ia 2001-02 e 3092 in 2008-07, 8 drep of about 5, Forecasts
through Z010-2611 are for 2,987 FTE contiming the dowawsard irend by ar additional
&) from 2006-2007 . ' :

The adopicd General Fund Budgst for Fiscal Year 2007-08 i4 524, 718,085 ofwhich local
taxes and state funding provide $8% or 524,322354. Planged loced acorces will provide
zhout 34% of the budpet while state souroes add abgut £0%. X is e Disinets policy to
pminmmin @ rosérve for combngencics of $1,000,000. However, the adopted budget
provides for a fund balanse of $364,000 for Fisqul Year 2007-0%, ehovt 1.5% of iotal
estmated Geperal Fund revenacs,

The Anditor General"s Proliminary ané Tentative Avdit Findines for the ysar cadiog funs
31, 2007 indicais an mreserved fund bakence deficit of $1,033,809. Tiscal Year 2007 is
the fourth comssoalive vear fhat the District hes expexicared a declming fund balance
from 4.84% at the =nd of 2003 to a wires 430% at 2007 year-cnod fsee Tablc 5). The
District is ateo o doficit in the Healih Insurance Trust Fund by 545,698, An additional
$R60,152 of findings e Hsted fhat could resnlt in the THstrict being requmed to repay the
guestionad costs further increasing the estimated find belance defics 1o SEU30.65%,

Fiseal yemr 2008-20090 revenues will comtimue o reflect the siate-wide geonomic
dlowdown and the contirming dowmsvard frend in emollment, Preliminary projecled
reverue [or Fiseal Year 2000 i $22.756,734 or shom $1,680,000 Iess tham projected
mevenue for Fiscal Yoar 2007-2005, -
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Finapzig Status & Dutlock

A roview of adopted badgsts, snmial finensia] reports and financial aadis for the fiseal
years 2004-05, 2005-06, and 2006-07 (sec Exkibils 1,2 & 3} revesd a sipgnificant declime
in financial condition. The silestion begins with the adopted budget In which the achal
beginnizg fund balanee is coasistently overstated. Furthermors, thers was a SETICAIS
weakness in budgstary controfs as exhibited by actua! expenditurcs sxcosdmg adopi=d
bedpet levels by $088.000 for Y2006 and 51,400,000 for FY2007.

The adopted budgst for the 2007-2008 Gseal year conlinged the practice of overstating
the bepinning fund balance. Tt must be stated here that the person responsible for tkese
budeel and tinancial reports is no longes with the disirict. The cimrert Status for 2007-08
(Txhibit 4) indicates that the distict may end the current fscal ysar with curcent revenacs
squel to cmuvent mxpeadimres. However, this can orly cccw o the distzzef is able lo
maintain Its cEment freeze on hiring and purchasing ard collect additional mscclianeous
revennes - expected but not callectod, | ' ' - )

3 this wers to ocour the district weald stil have a negative fund balanes of $1,033,509,
which still Tamst e sobved. In addition the Auditor General's report dafed Febnaery 21,
2008 mdicates additiona® liabilites of $850,153 from guestioned cests in capital outlay
and feders] progwmms. The [Heaith Tnavrance Trust Fond alss reflected a deficit of
345.69% as of Time 39, 2007, Thus by any messurs the Taylor Counly School Disirat
Faces o crftical ftaancial cisis.

This is likely 1o worsen for FY2008-09 (Bxdibit 5) should budger reductions fo solve
Floride's budest woes come to fuiton.

Exhibit 3 refiecte thet f no action to signtficamily reduce costs oT increass revenues is
jaken, e deficit eould bafloon to more tham $3 miliion. Tentetive liakdlitics Som
(estioned costs mentioned above, $860,153, zlus 3% of projected 20082009 General
Fund revenus, S682,702, will require & total reduction of expenditmes of more fhan S4 £
milliom.
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Exhibit i Adopted Budget Variance Analysis — Fiscal Year 2004-95

i Figesl Year 2004-

: Balances

33524,425.54 |

35

Adopied Bedgst | § Actaal | Varisnoe

i i Rasulis ’

- Revenucs T
Federal 205000.001 27265313 | 65,653.13
Smle 15.706.160.00 | [2,.850,568.28 | (855.591.72)
Tocal 5.54¢.404.00 | 6,09290984 | 552,505.84
Andit Adjustments | {118,753.61} | (118,753 61)
Total FRevennas 21 445 654 00 1 21097 467.64 | (352,18636)
{rher Souzces 124 744 00 120303 14 4 84716

{ Beginning Balanccs §50,027.54 | 75896578 | 10893824

: Total Revemuzs, Diker Soutces & 31,08602¢.58 | (238 ,400.26)

dE;:pmdjﬂms
Expendifurcs } 21,642.500.09 | 21,734 855.14 | {92.355.14)
(Yher Uses .00 .00 (.00
Required Rebuderts . :
"l'otal Expenditures & Other Usas 21,642.500.00 | 21,734,855.14 | {92.355.14%

Fndine Baiances

58L.925.54

251,368.44

(330,756,101

S s e
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Exhibit 2: Adopted Budget Varisnce Analys
!.

I

is — 2005 - 86

1
H

Fiscal Vear 2005 |
Adoped Budgst | Actusl Varlance
| Fosuls
Revenucs
IFaderal i7%,548.00 27461921 20712
State 15.611,543.00 | 14.789.263.04 | {1,312,679.96)
' Looal , £352,364.00 | 7.496,85032 | 1,144.401 23
Andiz Adjustments (3596,477.38) | (296477.38)
Total Revenies 22,142,839.60 I_.Elff?-‘-l-,zﬁit.ﬁ? 368,504,091}
Other Sources (3,06 68 B0.5L 208,090,545
Begnome Balances 50037000 | 25116044 | (258,200.55)
Totz! Bevenues, Other Sausces & 22,652, 229.00 | 22,233,524.07 | (4118,704.933
Balances - :
i
Exnepditires
[ Expenditures 212574000 | 22,045,860.18 | {958 469.18} |
! Other Uses i 00 000 400
LRaequh'eri Rebdees ' g ]
: Tolal Cxpenditures & Other Tsss 2125740000 | 22,245,859.18 | (98846918}
|
Fndme Balances 130482000 | (12.345.11% | (120717413} |

B 11 [
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Exhibit 3: Adopted Budget Variance Analysis — Fiscal Year 2806 - (7

Feoeal Year 2006 .
o7 a :
Adcoted Budset | Acual Results | vanznos o
: :
i :
Revennes
[Federal ) 13485000 197.51225| (3733775} L
State 16,354 418.00 | 15.511,123.3 156,703.32 j
Lacal 7AZ1,56400 | 7,165,384.55 | 34372033 :
Audit fd]ustments (417,124.65; . (417,124.63)
Total Ravenues 3481093200 | 24038,893.27 45,963.27 |
(ther Sourees 364000085 S20.426.72 25442672 | z &
Beginning Balsuces 32033033 | (12.345.11) | (33265544}
Total Revenucs, Other Somees & 460528253 | 2456497688 | (30,305.43)
Balances -
| Expenditues
CEpenditures 23.967.000.00 | 2559551012 | (L428.510.12) ¢ -
Other Uscs 1 13544533 | (13544535)] - L
Reguired Rebudgasts 157,830.29 T o
Tatal Expendimes & Other Uscs 33067.00000 | 25,698,785.76 | {1,563,95527) |
Fuding Balances 728 28233 | (1,033.808.88) | (1,762,091 21)



Fxhibit 4; Adopied Bedget Varianee Apalysis -Fiscal Year 2607 - 08
E .

e

Fizeal Year 2007

Adepted Bodzct Prc:j coted Varlanoe
L. f Fesubs ]
_}_Ex:vcms ]
[ Federal 164,730.00 T30,50000 | (34,250.00) |
Stars E5 878,053.00 16,262 517.34 384,424 34 |
| Locak _ $27951140 . S043,8E9.76 1 123569134 |
t Audit Admstments {60 3
Foul Revenses T 37055400 | 26436,837.20 | 11448310
[ Oiher Sowrces 615.700.0¢ 0.00 | {615.700:00)
Topimming Falanoes (219.558.8%; | {L033,308.89) | (813.834.99) |
Toml Rcvenmes, Other SoTces: A TIRG8511 F  25.405,02822 § (1,315.056.8%) |
& Balanens '
Txpendibmss
Exnendiiures 24 35UTS000 1 2464235020 5 (288 600.22)
{her Uses i .00
Requited Refndpets :
Tosal Expemhivrss & Other - 24 333.750L00 | 2464235022 | (R83,600.22)
__Esss
| Ending Balaness 364335111 (3.259.322.00) | {1,603,657.11) |
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Ex]}jbit 5: Preliminary Budget Variance Analysis — 2008 - 8

Fiszal Year 2{08-
: By
2007-08 2008-09
Projected Results | Prelim Budget | Yanance
feoyemues |
Federal 130,500.00 GO 20000 | {70,360.80) ¢
Staz [ 16726251734 | 14,767,838.02 | (1,554,68030) ¢
| Eocal R(43.819.76 | 7988706391 (35,113.37)
¢ Audit Adjusiments ] i 0.6¢
Tatal Revernns 04436,837.10 | 22,756, 734.41 | £1,630,102.69)
Other, Scurces . 050
Beginning Balances (1,033.808.88) | (1,239,37200) | (205,513.12} | .
"Tolal Revermes, Other Sources & 3A0%028.22 | 71,517 812.41 | €,885,615.81) |
Balances i
f Expenditures
;
Txpanditures 2464235022 | 24,642 356,22 0.00
{Otker {ises, 000
Reouired Rebucesls .
Totsl Expenditures & Other Lises - 246472 35022 | 24,642 350,22 (00
i -
. Endinge Balances } (1,239,322.00) : (3,124,937 .81} | {1,885,615.81)
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A Cemparaiive Statistical Analysis of the Taylor

County School District with Sefected Florida
Schos] Districts of Similar Size and ¥cenomic
Circumstances

This analysis is a part of & focus stady of business and financial services of Taylor
Comnty Scheals in Aprit 2008 conducted by the Florida Association of District
School Superintendents. Taylor County was comparcd to six olber Flosida schoal
digtricts of smmilar size andé econornic circomsianeas

FInances
Tax bhuse

The talile below shows the amount thet Taylor and the six gomparison disiricts can
generaie por FTH using the 0.310 discretionary millage.

[Disitiot | 2007 Tax Ball | Value of 0510 ; 200708 Valus of L Col. 6 £ol, 7

| Aipha ' Mills | Lnwetehted | 0.510 Aot | Comspross
ot E1R Mills Per | Below | to33731

FTE 33731 | per TIE

Baker § 537 498,645 5405768 | 480055 | $¥442| SI52.89 | 51215536
Brudlond 909,339,495 " T4aps75 | 538926 129.95) 207321 702661
Gilchrist 690,011,481 333311 | 732 | 120681 216.63 | 600,134
Holmes 446757265 2164541 3,346.63 668 | 21183 912,39
Madiuon 124,076,293 330815 | L7464 | 12553 2178 | S9L,849 )
Tavior 1 404,202,731 GR0A36 | 04053 | 2O AG | J142f | 348287 |
Tnion 238,224,371 115420 | 247.09|  SL36| 28305 | 642355

Tabls i: Poterzial (510 mills) Discretivaary Funds per UFTE, Source: Flerida DOE

Dyisoussion: For cach 0.510 mll, Baker has the ability 1o generate $84.42 per UFTE
for 200708 in discsctiopary funds. Ths comparison disiricis Tange from a low of
§84.42 for Paker Counly to 4 high of $223.10 for Taylor. The staie average is
$337.31 pev UFTE. Columin 6 represents the differsnce between fhe stafe gverzge
and the amount each distrist can gencrete, Coluzna 7 represents what eack diswict
mocives if it is below the state gverags of $337.31. For the comparison districts,
eack is befow tha slafe average.
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Histrist - Value of 0.510 | | Dismiet Vaue of 6510 ; o
Mills Per FTE MiHls Per FTE -
Monzoe §3.729.9% | Lzop $245.66 Eo

Franklin $1,660.90 ;| BEcrnando $243.74 -
| Wallan $1.246.82 Tuval $237.63 -
| Collier 3050.06 Alachus $226.61 | .
! Barasola 72152 . | | Tawnor $223.30 : £

Charlotte | 3654.50 Hillsborough | - 8232.72 : E

Mariin 3622 A6 Pasco 521087

Culf $611.74 Levy 319273

Toc 8585731 0 | Escambia L1RR.A42

Indian River | 85662 | | Hamiltn $186.39

Palm Beach | . $489.30 Hendry $184.20
" Flaster L §488.76 Pol. 1 %8332

St.iohns  : $432327 SamtaRosa | $iR2.45 :

Manatoe S397.62 BeSoto S17827 -

Sutor 533920 Pulnam 517782 3 Lo

Citus $37705 ! | Okecchobee | 317278 -

Nazsan $369.06 | 1 Hadoe $170.14 £
" Pinellas $362.32 Washinpion $148.55 |

Mismi-Dade T $346.96 Wakuila $148.90

Bay i $338.60 A Swwmmnee | SE46.72
Staie $337.31 Dixie S145.4% :

Rreward 333488 Clay Si4321  §

Volusia | $31149 | | Bradbrd TEE R
. Bi, Lacie 31145 i |-Colurshia $127.50
- Dkalonsz $311.39 | Madison 3125.53 :

Drange I 0459 | Gilohwist 312068 Pk

Lake i 527423 {3adsden $115.87

Brevand F26%.66 Lafayetts £111.10
| Hiehlends 526540 Jeckson S100.00

Marion $261.79 Liberty 58837
- Juffersan: §252.54 | | Baker 584 42 :

i lades 25241 . | Calhoun 38251

Semmolg §251.77 Holmes 854,68

Oscenia ;o X245 95 { Chrion £31.38

Tuble 2: Putentiol (518 mills) Discrconary Funds per UPTE, 200708, Al

districts, Sgree: Florida DOE

_ Disrossion: Taglor and the Statc are in bald. The other comparison districts are in

ialics, Twenty Florida districts are above the staic average; forty-seven distriots zre :
lower than the siate sverage. Monros gencrates $1,729.98 for each S5i¥ mill, e !
highest rate. Union generates $51.36, the lowest. Compared {o other dismicts, the -
comparisan districts r2nk low in property valnes. fo-



Financizl Condition of Tayler County School Disiric

The following mme the genemal [md balances [ 20062007 for Tayler and ths six

comparison districts of Baler, Brasford, (Hlechrist, Holmes, Madizon, amd Unton

Teble 4: Changes in Ceneral Fand Befances for 2000-97.
Sqorce: Data frorm the Office of Funding and Financial Heporting, Florida DOE.

_ Noge Taylor’s totel fand batamos in Teble 4 mcreased by 1681.83%, but & was a negefive
fitnd Palznce to begin with, Their balance was a nagative $12,345 o ths end of 6/30/06
ané dropped suother $207,624 0 a nagatve $219,969 gt the and of &30/07 (unandited).

Note thal the figares for 2006-07 were wnendited when recetved fom the DOE. The
misin sechoen of the fegort wall sddress Auditor (raneral’s Prelinnary and Tentetive
Audtt Peelings for the year coding Jume 30, 2007, which were relsased after this section-
was prepared.

T Tistict | Aodited | Unandited | DolarIre. | Andited | Toendited i Dollar Inc. T Unaudited ; Umansdited
] Totul Total (Bec.) Genarzl Geuual | (Dl Crenersl | Firancial
: Algher | f3eneral General Telal Famd Fund Genersl | Fund Total | Condition
I Heart Lol Funil Generul | Ulmreserved | Urressrved Turd Rovenass Eatio
Balenos Hahncr Fund Fud Fimd Trgesaved S30/07 &30AG7T
AI5006 G307 Baiun: Ralanee Bolance el
SaGAt [ BABIA ES0007 B lemaa
LA 30705 1o
: BT
| Balker $4.514,027 | 34850021 | TA4.00d 3,557,628 | $4007. 5341 FROS13 534 535,692 10.86%
[Eadford | $2.197,767 | 32,032 8F% | (5164,390) | $1,357.428 | 51,208,572 | (SEU.A36) $27 IThA0E | 4.51%
| Giichriz | 5977531 | §1.091.7234 1 5134305 ta70579 | F7R748S 115307 | 530,987,088 3.73%
| Holmes 51830332 | B9a7.302 | (389627100 | 51,814,958 $950,634 | (EBALEE3Y | S2R.07I0EE i %
Ieadison | 53,503,527 | 34070667 | BA2G 144 | SETHM AR $3,390,688 | 575270 | S21TVEZ0E L6 A
i Taylor FF1Z.3050 | ($239.969) 3 (5207.624) § (S1a013 | ($328,531) | (FE4RINTY goLaranoy | O 34
D Umion - 52198530 | 82583200 | sa24.647 | 51,530,347 § S[.99%,781 | BA6RAT4 F16.58T7, 160 1240%
Tuble 3: General Furd Balmwes and Fmaneiel Condition Ratlas for 20006-07.
- Dhaginict Dooflay Imo Paent Toc. - Broltar Tae. Terernt e,
. Alpka Sore {De)y Totak (D) V'otal {Tree.) Creneral Pesh Genoral
i Ceneml Fund | Fumd Balince' | Fand Unreserved. | Find Unresarved !
| Bafancs 30/05 | &3006% Fund Baanoe Tund Balanes
by BFS0HEY S/30T B0 to SS008 to
&FF0AN EI0A7
Baker 4L 004 N.93% 250 513 £&.77%
Beadford T510.339% {7 AEBG (% 104,856 (& 14%)
{Ricimiat $114 595 11.609% §115597 17.43%
- Halmes (FER2 T200 fa6.6200) (S3543E) (47,6205}
Madisun 3428, 144 LL66% ] SmsIt 23454
Taylar (S2C7 624 IGRLEIRe P (SMEIIT ¥2.28%
Thricm 5% BT L& i LEG0 L H5e

B L
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Tipancit] Conditfor of Taylor Coumnty {continu:dj

The General Fund is fhe chicf operating fand of the District sod the [olowing
nferzmation provides an analysis of the haiances and transastions of this fing. There
is 0o satatory requitermest for a district 10 3t aside & minfmum perceniage of its
reneral fund. howsver, the Olfice of the Audltor General recommends that {he
minimum percentags for 2 distict’s uncommitted peneral fimd balance range from-
3% to 5% of 14 zoneent Amd.

Tn 2 renort dzted Noversber 1, 2003 — October 31, 2004, William ©. Monzos, CPA for
the OFies of the Auditor General stated that

Maintaining suffcient levels of wrreserved fimd balence is imporid Sfar several reasons.
Three frequently mentioned reasons are:

s Sehool district revemse peatterns ofier do not match expenditure patterns.
Suffivient levals of unreserved fiowd bulance permil school districis fo marage
coxh fow flscinations withoui having to Sorrow meney.

o Fith an adequate “ragay day” flind, school districts ora batier peepared 30
mangge unexpected evanis, such a3 reverue shartfalls, uninsured dumages crmesed
by rctnral divasters, ard negative claims experience from self-imsurance
OPETEiOnS, _

a  Credit rating agencies view a moderaiely-sized smreserved fund balemce o3 aa
indicatar of good fnaeiol noney menagement, whick may gnkance ine sehoo!
diatrict’s evecdil reting

The following teble and churl show frve yoms of financial condifion ratios for Tayler
County Schools.

_| AtEnd of Financial Condifion i Greneral Fued Urnroserved |
| Resio : Fuizd Bylanos
| Juze 30, 2063 4. REYh 2035,042 Audited
Juns 30, 2004 _ 2% $408,583 : Audged
June 30, 2065 i ~ 0.25% - 352,945 : Audiied
Tume 30, 2006 £LR3M) ($189,114) Aundited
Jupe 30, 2007 {1.34%%) (5328,351) {Upandited) |

Table 5: Gemerad Fand Financial Condition Raizos for Tavlor County and Funmd Balances
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Taylor Einanéizl Candition Ratio Juna 39, 2003 - June 3G, b 2 i
41,200,000 - R ' *"- 4.00%

:

| 51,600,000

b
8
&+

$800,300

e RL LR

T L LRI

Luk
3
i

£530,000

!

T

PeMEAARLIEEEELIEEERL IO 0 Er

D S4ADCO0D - --' A0

| =2A0.000 F 1.00%

: X R
i 5 3Nt

:

) i

{328,313

[ T

LTLTTRT

'
[2A00,000) - i {2 08
Iit Senera Fundt Horsserved Fangd Balence = Fipraytenian] Congrdee Ratkn

Chart I: General Fand Fisaneiol Condition Ratins for Taylor County and Fund : -
Budances, fume 308 of each year, 2083 through 2007,
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Tinancial Condiien of Taylor Comniy (cortmucd)

District | JAme{ Nhme: June | Tume| Jans Jume i June | Jume 30} hne30
30991 3000 3061 | 3002 3003 | 30843 3005 06 07

e

Taylor | 0.88% | 2.08% | 2.98% | 3.88% | 4.86% 2.92%3{).25% (0.83%) 1 {1.34%)

State | 4.85% | 5.09% | 539%% % SA0% | 6.18% | 5.62% | 6.89% 1 F.28% | T48%

L

Tabiz 6: Tavlor's Ustreserved Geneval Fumd Balanee compared Jo State ﬁvemgés.

- — PR - . S — ey
: Taviors Unreserwed Fittad Bxlance compared to Sixde Averzges ;
: {2O0£-2007 is unsrdied} :
_ F TR e e it s R S s eree——— %
e B
i £.80% T o - S EEE e T
i TSl Br :

&, 0055 : —t—— smtmtinn = Qi‘—ﬂh-a-—

: . -ﬁ;;----ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ%
5.00% Fgyree s g3 SEaewm T

n %
=
: E v 3
A 6.00% ; TR e
£ :
- : ol . H
I R R R s warmm e
, § 2.00% 4 X tm e e _%:&m%..,..,-._._.m-_.__um_..;
z E E _5" '-_ :
ey e e VL. S, e B
1.26% T s " i
.k a 25T :
0,06% < % :
P g npm e — M ------ :
N d L o h
: Tigemi
POt e er—— - : -
p Jpe Re 28 1L:--3:r::n 2pe 310k ymsunz X WI0Y _ne3ao-s JuneH0 85 Jare I A5 dune FFOF G

H Linrvmerved Fund ankhw ax Yeak End E
: ’ =i Taylor o Stete :
H

Chart 2: Taylor's Unreserved General Fund Bodance compared fo State Averuges.

Note that 2007 s wnaudited. Prier years erg sudited. State averages were caloelated
locally based on tolal furnd balance and avatlable unreserved fund balances from state
FEROTES.
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Finandal Conditian of Taglor Coungy {contimed)-

Finnnpciat Condition Ratias of the Ganeral Fund
1350 - 2007 Juns 30 of each year

L — = R R A S — A LR

Diseict |Rado | Ratio | Ratic | Ratio | Ratio | Rao | Ratio | Rawo | FCRafio
1950 | 2600 - |2301 |2002 |2003 | 2004 2008|2096 | 2087(Unsadied) .
Rk S5 027 ThT | 554% | 1L.93% | 16.01% § 15.75% | 12.54% 11.85% |
Sindfod . TEI% | 5.75% | 5013 | 7.05% | 6.89% | 5.26% | 435% ¢ 538% ! 3529,
CGllchdwt | 847% | 11607 | 9.67% | 8ATh | 9.75% | 2.36% ] 056%| 353% 3.75%
s | 005% | 100% T L30% | 107% | 243% | 13.50% | 3.44% | 8.63% 4.16%
Mabson | 537% | 447% | U951 221% | 7.60% | 9.41% | 1431% | 1407% 16.46% |
5 -
g -
Tapler | DRE% | 200% | 208% | 3R89 1 436% | 202% | 825% | (U83%) {1 .35%)
; ) :
Union | O89%) | BAGYK) | 7.87% | 1473% | 2161% | 20.92% 13.50% | 19.41% 3067
Condition Raiios of the General Fund, '

| amace T

B dy  — ke =Eedadtn IRk On —Frdmes e hdwion L

Chert 3 Faencliel CondBtion Rotles of the General Fund
Disenssion: This table and chart prosest Mestoricel financiat condition ratios of Taylor and
the comparison districls Fom 1999 through 2007, Union was i fineagizl distress (1999)
but mads 2 Grmareusd, receiving assistance from the DOL and FADSS. Smce 2004,
Taylor has bad the lowest finansial condition raka among ihe comparisor: group.
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{'inuncial Condition of Tazler County (continued)

Data for opevating costs end expenditures was taken fom Flerids School Tndisator
Reports {FSIR) for 2005-0% and is presented ia the following tables anyd Charts. The costs
in each table are soried o high to lew : '

1 Finanes - Operating Costs |
 Vear - All Progrars 2005 2006 :
Madison F6.59% £
Tavior 6,513 =
Birzdford i BE206
Cridchmat - 56,295
Iinlmes 56,128
L pion 35,538
Baksr 33,404 !
Tablz 8: Operating Costs, AN Programs, 2005 - 2004
: Finencial Gperatirg Costs - For All Programs 2005°2006 ;
L sy one - - - | : =
i | #5550 4gs13 _ | :
| i IR e, £5,20 55,195 :
' | ' AL H :
| 56,002 :
| %5000
o
| 54,000 - L
_ §3.500
! S0
i |
i 51,200 f
]' Madisan Tayior Bredior?  GRchfst  Holmas Lmon l

Chart € Operaiing Costs, All Prc}gmrﬁ.s, 2005 2008



Tinancial Conditien of Tayler Coenty (cortinued)

[ Fimancs — Per Pupd
Year Expendituies
Rezular Programa 2005 2006
Mudisen 55,826
| Tuylor : $5.687
: Holmes $5.4650
Tradford $3,235
Flchriat 35,651
Raker 274
Tmion. S 821

Tabiz & Per Pupil Expenditures, Regular Programs, 2005 - 2008

Expergtimres - Regular Frograms for 2G25-2006
T

A

43,0600

P T L L L L

$4,000

EEAMY

RS PR TIE R

| $2,000

i og1,e00

i

; i

{ = :

] Taylor  Holmes meferd  Gllchrist
1

Chart 3: Per Pupil Expendifures Regular Programs, 2003 - 2008
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Financial Conditisn of Tayler Connty (onfinued)

. Fmoanes — Per Pupil :
Y car zpendiures At Rask Frogruns
2005 -2006
: Grilehrist 313,224
| Taylor $12,978
| Holmes 5712
Madison S5.072
Bradiprd $4.765 ]
Baker 30
| Uniom 10
Tebfe 10 Par Pugil Bxpenditures, A-Risk Programs, 2005 - 2006
_ - E‘.:pen:iitwa; - AbkRick Programs for 20052004 E
| £14,000 - — i
: foid 24
5 =12, 000 - i
» : i
| 10,009 - o
B |
, 43,080 + E§ o j

i 54,000

% 2
Togzoen

5

i £ GEEEEER L _...$EI..._ e _EE__ ——

i Gilchris? Tyl Hrlres Madizon  Bradied Bakar tnign

Cheri 6: Per Papil Fvenditures, Ar-Risk Programs, 2005 - 249
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Financial Condiion of Teylor Coanty {zoniinued)

!_ _ Finanus - Fipancs — Per Popil
P Yem Expenditurss '
FSE Proesares 2005 2006 | :
Baler - 59,653 :
[ Holmes T oA :
Sradford 59,033
| Taylor ] $8.595 -
®adison $8.516 £
Gilchrist LR AR0
Trran FE411 ]
Table 11: Per Pupif Expenditures Exceptional Stusdent Dducdtion Programs, 2065 - 2000
Expentiteres- Excaptienal Stderit Education Programs ;
: 20052006 i L
L 59,830 - -
| $5.600 Lo
38,200 - - :
. $3,000 ¥
5,600 Eor
. $2,400
' ez ann
, $8,000
L ey an0
57,690 + - - . : :
Bakar Maimes Bradford Taylor  Medizen  Gllehrist  Uaion
_ Chare 7+ Per Pupi Fxpendditures Preeptional Student Fducation Frograms, 2003 — 20068 :



Fisanciat Condition of Tavlor County (contlmed)

Finance — Per Pupil Exgenditures
Year ) ' Vpcational Progzame 2005 -2006
Tayloz S £12.337

Madison $6,531 o
| Holmes - 56,261 o
Baker $6733 -
Gifchrist s&4a14 E 1"
{ Bradford $6,534
i Union ) $3.252
Tehle 12 Per Pupil Expenditures - Yocational Programs, 2005 - 2006 :
e e . ) e . :
5 Cynenditsres - Vocational Programs for 2005-2505 i -
{512,040 : v - - ; .
: ; i Do
12,000
i : Tk
| P
| 20,000 , :
[ gm0 A - - j
%
' 45 850 :
i 1 i
oo :
i
i £2,040
‘ = R L
1 Giichrist  Brafard 2
Chart 8- Fer Pupil Expenditives - Vocationad Pragrams, 2005 - 2096
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Comparative Erergy and Fuel Costs

‘the BBowirg tblzs arc
Depariment of Edugation in 2006-07 for district snergy cosis an

dieset fizel costs.

prepared Gom cos data sabmitted by districts to the Flonda
d in distiet zasolioe &

Alpha | Naimeal | Bottled Heaging
District | Merghership Gas Gas Elsciricity ol |
Baker 4,974 S0.00 | $30,648.73 | $[,144508.30 |  SL.00
| Bradfze 3.657 | S15065.71 | 519084 $693.450.10 5000
| Gilchrist 2886 ¢ 30.00 [$29,750.00 | S573,293 87| $2.003
Holimes 3,351 SO.00 | 94729359 | $892,23830| $0.00:
hedison 2739 [ $47.798.15 | $6,551.97 | $677,320.72 $0.00
Faylor - 3,108 | $35,753.49 $0.60 | $998,159.13%  S0.00 ¢
Urion 2,222 SO.00 1 8235914 | $493.842011 SGOOK

Table A1 Expenditaes in Energy Costs in 2006-07 for Taylor and the Comparisin
Jiisivicts

ol overy categnry hes expendilares in it Fer example: Baker, Gilehrish, Uolmes, and
Uinion had no sxpemses for nateral was; Teyler had oo bottled gas expenses and nonz of
[esc districts had heatme off expemsss.  The student membemship counls are fidl
arrollments For the 2006-07 fom e FE0S report. A per student cost was caiculaled for
total expendithres on gus, bedtled gas, electricity, and heating oil. This is showm in the
[pilowing tabls,

[ 2005-07 Toixl Uiy Lo tor Hight)
Bistrict EmemEiures Per Stadent
Breelford $713,706.45 Fi25.16
Hobmes $739,531.89 522069
Stafc $597,029,222.78 S225.7T i
" Undhn 531750115 533290
| Baker 3L IR425T7.12 $ZIRN9
Madison $T31.670.84 F207.13
Tavior S1,033,912.62 L332.60
Gilchrise 51,003,043.87 5347 56

Tebie A2: Per Student Expenditvres in Energy Costs ir 2606-07

[scussion: For wility costs, Gilchist had the Inghest per sludent expenditurs af $347.505,
Tavlor had the second highest per stadent expendilare =t 5332.66. Tayler's cos was
$55.53 higher per student then Madison, the third highest expenditure, aod S137.50 per
student Meher than the Jowesi per sladent cost (Bradford at $193.16) wmong the
comparison digricts, Note thal Bradford md Hobnes wearg below the state average in
cOsis i uhiity coss.
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Besed on 2006-7 enmilment figures, if Taylor's costs had been i line with faose of
hadisan (the ihird highest exponditee), a §203,657 savings sonid heve been malized. 1
Teylor's cosis bad beem i line with these of Bradford, the lawest among e group, a
477,350 savings coukd have beca realized.

The following are the gasoling and £lesel costs mported for 200607 for Taylor and (ke
comparisen Gistricts. The membership is taken fFom the fall EEQS reperts for 200607 a3
walk

Disirizt | Yembarship | frssclive TDicsel Fuzl
: Baber 4yl S23894.70 1 $230,219.13
| Bradfed 36571 51684579 1 $143,64554
Gilehest - 2286 5000 | 8145,319.94
Holmes 3351 | 33060043 | 515448546
Sfadisen 273¢ | $33,884.93 | 3153,569.04
‘FayloT 3108 3525726 1 BFG1659.23 ;
[thaion | 2272 | $23.080.75 | "S89.254454 |

Tuble A3- Erpendinures in Gaseline and Diesel in 2006-07 for Terplor andl the
Comparison Districss

Usiag the stedent membership counts for 2006-07, a por stdent cost was csiculated for
fiie 1otal cost of gasoline and dieset fucl expmditures combinad for Taylor and lhe
comparison disivics. This is shown in the Bllowing iable.

2¢06-07 Total Gascline {Fow t¢ High]
apd DHiesel Fucl Gagallpe and Diesed

Distriet Expenditares Hependitores per Slodent
Stete Aveape  §lo(,681,135.30 138775
Bradford : 3160,451.33 34589
rton 31 14.944,21 240,03

{ Gifrhrist 314531984 53033
Baker C%254,113.02 531.09
Helimes 518508689 w5323
Madison i S1E7 45357 o84
Taylor ] 167,595,498 | SHEZ0

Table A4: Per Studert Expenditeres in Gusolme and Diesel i 200647

Discussion: Taylor had the highest per student expenditare at $86.20 for gasolive amd
diosel fuels. This sras 54231 per student higher than the lowest por studert cost
Bracford’s at 43.89} among the comparison districts. It was $17.76 per student mghar
fhan Madiscn, the next Mghest among the comparison districts. All districts were above
fae state average i this arca.

Tasod on 2006-7 enrollment figures, if Taylor's costs had been in e with thesc of
Madison {the nexi highest expenditovas), 2 $55.189 savings could have been realized. If
Tayler’s costs hag been In line wilh those of Bradford, a $131,49% savings ceald have
tean reabized,
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Staffing Information fer Tayler County

Thistriets submiz counis of employees to the Peparment of Education wsmg a prescribed
Staff Survoy format often zalled the EEOS Report. The following discussion is besed
uron dats submitted by districs for the &l of 2007-2008 on the EECS. Below are two
sibles comstracind using data submied to the Depacient of Edacation for the (&3 of

200708 for broad classes of fill-time employees for Taylor, Baker, Bratford, Gilchrst,
Halmss, Madisopn, and Lnien. .

[Distrist | Envell. | Distict | School | Tofat i Tzachers | Totsd Fl{Nem |FT
Aipha | Admin Admin | Admix Ipsiract | Instruct | Staff
S 4 Saff :

Bakor 4521 11 14 3 k3 346 244 23

: Bradford | 3343 | 12 i ;BD 266 291 251 I 552

GRichest | 2888 [ 15 W 27 183 207 73 405
Iiolmes | 3385 |13 13 28 233 253 1C3 491
Madion 7 2622 | 13 1 27 158 194 173 JoL
Tavlor 3079 14 11 2% 229 262 ZED 547

[Craon | 2271 | © 7 16 w05 215 156 1387

" Table 13: St Data ’
1atricl School !  Distrct i Alladmins | Studenrs Stirdents Stademds
Alpke admins a3 % | admmsas % as % of per inst per non per
Sort of emrcloyecs | of emaployess | cmpioyess saff mststafl | employee
Raker 223% 1.77% 4131% [4.1 198 7.9
Bracford 3.20% 2.17% 543% i2.2 153 6.4

| .

| Gildhrist 2.69% 3.91% A.60% @10 L 165 7.1
Holmes 5 65% 30555 5.7 0% 12.8 i1l 6.9
Madison 345% 3.81% 6.85% 13.5 152 &7
Tador | 201% 2.55% 437% N s 56
Tmon 1.81% 23304 £.13% we 45 39

Table {4: Staff Data {rontinusd)

TR

SRR




St'aﬁ'i:uig Tnformation for Taylor County (contigued)

Discussism:  While Taylor is staffed morc leanly in tzrms of sckon! adminisirators and
Tevlor soffs Hille more richly un district adminisiratoss, fhe zeal difference shows up 1M
the instruetinsal stff to stadent and ihe nop-instruclicaal steff-to-siudeat mtins, Taylor
iz secongd from fac Towest o the zumber of sludents per imslructional stall {113 students
pez imstractional suaff), COnly Uslen is lower with a 10.6 siudent to instruciional staff
e, Taylor is lowest m (he number of stndents per non-instmctionsl ataff. Taylor has
11.8 sipdents per non-instructional staffl. Mot enc of the comparizon disiricts statfs s0
richly. The next nearest ratio & Union with 14 ¢ students per nen-instrnctional stalf, The
district wilh the fewast pupils per nen-instruetional staff member is Baker, with a 19.8 1o
1 mano,

“ate, hecamse the pumbsers are rounded to the nearest tenik, Taylor apparcatly has the
wemio pasios for bofn stedents @0 nstrictiona!l st and stdests to non-instrechonal staff.
The achus] studenit to Fstryctonal ratio 7 11.73; the actwal student to-non-instruciional
staf ratio is 11.84. The table below is a history of Taylor's staifing using the students Lo
mstructional staff snd students to non-mgctons] slaff ratlos.

Studenis

[District | Yer | Student | Non- | Al démins Studenis | Smdens
i Nirtes Growoffment | mshuct | as % of perinst | perEon T
siaff | emplovecs gl inst il | cmploves
Taylor | 9980 3411 | 219 5.08% 141 15.7 7.1
Tezlor & 06-Bl 3495|218 £23% - 131 15.1 6.7
TTaylor (0102 | 3395 1217 450% 132 143 61
i i
Teylor {0283 | 333C | 213 4.65%, 13.8 145 5.
Taylor | 03-24 3281 | 224 5.14% 13.5 138 6.5
Miayior 0405 3515 | 231 5.16% 12.8 13.1 6.1
Teylor | 05-06 306F | 240 4.69% 12.0 120 5.7
Taylor | 0697 L08R | 240 4.40% 117 128 37
Taylor | 0708 3075 | 248 4.5F% 11.8 11.3 5.6

Fabie 15 Swffing Retios jor Taplor over Nine ¥ears

Discussinn: Although stodent enrollment has been declining in Taylor from $2-00 w0 07-
(8, the number of non-instructional staff hag increased from 212 to 226 during that time.
&s 3 tesult, the mho of sudents per non-instractional siaff hes decrsased fom [5.7 to
11840 1. In other words, Taylor may be hiving mors s{aff than enrolleacnts warrand.
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Staffing information fer Tayler County {conlmecd)

Twio ofher seby of data were w&ken from the Florida $choel Indicater Reports for 2005-
2006 thal imwact salary costs: Ghe mverage years of cxperience of teachers and the
pereenizas of teachnrs with advanced degress.

skt | Teachers - Averags Years of Bxpenence !
Bradfosd ' 254 ;
Baker 15.1 ]
Madison 145 - ]
L Gilehrist 115
i Holmss 112 |
Union ALY
Taykoe 0%

Teblel6: Average Years of Faperience of Teachers, 2003 — 2006

Discussion: Serted fom hieh w0 low. The wordercs 10T ayler, Gilchrist, Holmes, and
Eniom have Teiatively lass sxperience. Taylor's teacters hed an average of 3.8 wears of
sxpericane in 2005-2008, the leas nong the conuparison grup.

District | Teachers - Advanced Deppecs £54)
| Liolmes 306
: Taylor 286

Uniga 280

Gilchrist 214

Baker 22.4

Eradford 19.2

Madison 12.1

Tuble 17: Pméztgge of Teachers with 4dvanesd Degrees, 2005 — 2046

Dhscussicm: Discussion: Sorted from high fo low. Taylor and Holmes are near the stakz
averape of 303 years, with 2pproximaicly one-thisd of their instrustioaal gaffs having
advanced dogrees. Bradfued and Madison reported the smallest porcentage of toachess
with advanced degress.

Socic-Feenomic Tata os the District

e methof to determine the scononmc background of students’ families @ to use the
stident eligibiity in the federal Free/Recduced Price Limeh program as a measurs. Shown
o the ible below are the pereartages of stadants that were eligible for the FreeReduced
Price Lunch programs in 2006-07 ard 1o 1957-95.
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| Disteict - 200607 Pescent 1997-98 Perceni Change
Membership Eligible | Membership Eligible
2006-87 199798
(Soxted)
Wadison 2933 72.90% - 3.556 £0.70% 12.39% ¢
[ Taylor 3420 58 20% 3,834 47.80% 10.59%
| Holmes 3,384 $5.80% 3562 £0.30% 4.59%
Dradford 3,483 53_10% 4150 54500 -1 4%
Silchist 2,889 51.50% 2,630 S2.T0R% -1.29%
Unign 2265 | 42 T0% 2314 42.20% 0.50% ;
Raker 4975 | AT 50% 4.7333 38.70% 2.80%

Table 18: Change in Percentoge of Stwdenzy eligihle for the Federal Free or Reduced
Price Lunch proprams ' 1997-98 and in 2006-07 @ Taylor and comparisan districds,

Dhscsssion: Taylar had the second hizhest m=te of smdents eligible [38.2% io 2006-07),
second only to Madison®s eate of 72.90%. Tayler bad the fonrrtk bowest rate dizing 19%7-

Q2.

Transportation Datz (from Transsoratien Profiles for 2005-2000)

District Tl Adjnsted Tetal Trangportation
Alpha Sort Transportaton Trensported Exgpenses Por Student
Bxpenditaes students

Balker PO51.989,154.3% 2 B03.00 §702.62

: Bradiord i 51.373,811.66 | L9563 5605.42

. Gilchrist 31,024, 74217 1 49827 Sed4.£1
Holmes 33,409.551.44 2,148.50 SEH0.0%
Madison $3,675,166.80 1,886.50 $966.14
Taylor $1,938,14331 1,836.01 £1.224.73
Unipn $531,227.12 1,169.50 $RO9.06
Stale Average * 508457

Fable 19: Torel Transporition Expanditures per Adjusted Transporied Smdent. Source!
Ammual Financial Report and Final Transpoviation Calculatitn 2036, :

The mate classifles disiticts scoording lo the number of busss m daily servics, Mega

districts have 400 or more buses in daily service, Trban districis operale hotween 207 and
369 buses, and Rizal districts have fewer than 169 bases, "Tayler is claanfied 25 2 Rursl
Aisriet, 25 e the siX other comparison distnicts.
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| District - Total Transportaion _
© Alpka Sorf Gzpenditres 2s part of Total | Trensporition Cpemting
; Digirict Expenditircs Exacndimres per Mile
Baker 5.88% $2.29
Bradford 4.43% $2.39
Gilchrst ' 4.76% 8236
Holmes , 561% . 52,79 ]
| Madison 6.96% S99
| Taylor 6.76% $2.73
Union 5.52% 5259
Stata Averzpe 5.20% i, $2.53

Table 30: Toid Tramsportation Expendires ns pert of Disirict Expsnditures &
{parating Costs per2dile. Sovrce: AFR and Final Transpoirtation Carcdetfon 200506,

The Florida DOE Transoortatice Profiles for School Year 2005-06 repost states that that
the average iramsportation opereting cost for rural dEstricts was 32,53 per annudl mEle.
Taylor's ransporiation aperating costs are mers than the stefe average for raral districia
at $2 73 per znaval mile. Madson roported the highest with operating costs at 3259 per
amanal mile. The lowest was Baker at $2.20 per ammual refle.  3fany fhotors affect
opermiing costs including ealarics of employecs, age of Duses, road conditions, zad
gensity of population.

‘Pransportation Data - Trmsportation Profiles for 2005-2006 - (continued)

Faslors that mey exphin Tavlor’s fransporlatipn costs per siudent Jnslude (hs etilization
of their huses. The table below Jascrihes bus ocoupancy. Taylor is lowest amosg e
somparizen disFicks,

Digtrict Bus Ocenpancy, Bigh o Low

Raker 65.60

(Echrist SR.T%

Drica 5456

Bradferd 5153

Holmes ¢ 19,74

Madison 48,73 ]
“Taylor | 32.21 |

Tadde 21: Bus Geoupancy in Taylor and somparison Districts. Sowrce: DOE
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The vumber af inelipikls riders is snother possible fctor.

Dismc: | Eligible | Ineligible | Total Parcontage
i : Inefigibic
High o Low |
P Teyler i 1,378.50 471 | 2,045.50 22.98%
“TReadfond ; 1,840.00 | 49751 2.337.50 21.28%
Baker 282350 3915 | 3.215.06 12.18%
Halmes | 2,039.50 2655 | 2308.00 11.63%
Gilchri=t | 1.587.00 102 1 1.686.00 £.04%
Madizon | 182750 25.5 1 1,923.00 497%
Union 114150 51.511,193.003 4.32%

Tuble 22: Inaligibls Riders tn Taylor and comparison Districs, Sowwces DOK.

Amncther factor 18 the disiribution of the population.
residents per square nele, :

Tayvlor has G lowssl aumber of

Desiriot Pap Sg Mile: High to Lew

Bradfort g0 B

Uinien 58 )
- Giichrist 42 |

Bakar 39 }

Vohoes 35

Mfadison 27

Tavlar 19 i

Tuble 23: Populetion Density in Tayler and comparison [¥stricis. Sourct DOH

Traznsaortation Data - Tremsportation Profles for 2005-2005 - {continned;

Taylor ranks sixth ow of the perceniage of urpaved roads among comparisom districts.

Ses below,
District | Miles Paved | Miles Unpaved | Toml | % Unpaved
i ! Highto Low
Tlgbmes 205 575 | 780 T
_GalcErist 148 364 | 512 1%
Madison 5 483 | 728 6%
Baker F341 440 | 74 5T%
Boadiord 218 2821 459 Z6%
Tavioe ] 381 424 7 BO5 53%
aion 184 | 276 | 33% |

Fuble 24 Paved aud uapaved Roads in Tenvior and comparison Disiricls.
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Chart 91 Pereentage of Lnpaved Roads in Taylor and Comparison Distviets

Additional detail on historic and current stalf counts for Taylor aud the comparison
Sigtricss years 1999-2000 throtgh 2007-08 arz presented fn Appendix B

The information is summmarized from fio Siaff Survey 2 (EEQ-5} files xeceived For ths

Floridz Denartment of Hucatior for 20(7-08 and from historical data collecied fom the
SRITE SOUTCES.

Organizational Alignment and System Functions
Findings and Recommendations

Statns

The ways the leadership fanctions are aligned and the leadership prrsonact are deploved

are ezaential to effbctive systems infegration. Systems integration is essential 10 efficient
and effective operafions in 2 school distriet  The stedy fcam reviewed the cument
mproved organizational chart For the Taylor County Sehool District {3es Anpendix A)
The omrent Administrative Organization Chuzt was apmoved by- b Taylar Couty
School Beard on Jangary 16, 2047, ' :
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Findicgs

Thz Team goncluded that changes are resded i organizaiional lignment and persornch
deploymen in order to strengthen orgamzationsl integratian,

The t=u4m conclusions & besed en mdicstions that the follvwing improverends n the
sysiem are aeeded:

s There must be a well-developed strazegic plan and there oust be a stionger
linkage betwoon the stralegio alan aed budeet devslopment

e Management skills must be ntegrated tiwonghout the leadership strostirre. This
noed especially applies % business azd Gpancil operations, safing and
persarmel practices, collective barzalnmg, {zaching and learning, and schoel
operations.

o Mmagement rights and responsibifiies mest be belier protecied o tha collcetive
hargaining procoss,

s A sironger systomn of cantrols, cheoks sad balances must be in place to emsure that
the staffing plan zud the spenéing plen are followed m copespt aud practice.

= A giropger sense of “feam™ roust be in plece smong the executive atdministrators
and ihe team must be mons sugaged in the day-to-day operations of the schoot
S-SR

» Thers most be & commitment to changing the cuffuze of the sysfem to be mmore
accepting of changes necessary to achizve solvency and cognenuc wellness. This
inelodes & determmation, e muke hard decisions, unpogular decisions, decisions

that are essential 10 econcmic recovery. ‘The system musi beceme egresable to .

doing things diffecently when nocessary, to begin some pew practices and
alwmdon non-oroductive or low-yield practices that are not eascifizt to SweCess m
quality performance of teaching and tearning,

e Thers must be 2 yTonger systsm of commmumication amomg and between
stakchaldas of fe schoo! svsiom, and that sommunization mast be based on

tmowlsdee deawn fom acowraie, tmnely, and completz performence data from
ataff mnd shadents.

Recornnendations

The eam Tecommends chagges in the current Administrative Organization Chart {322

Appendix B). Sems of fic recomminded changes we in position title 1o reflect more
aceurately {he fonctions zssignment One of the major actions perlatning to
ovgamzational aligmment By the study teain was Lo realign finciions sRsential to sysieins
opergiions according to cest ceater. Thess ara dapicted in Appendiz C.
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% is recoramended that the Superimendent form a sironger Sepermicadent’s Exccutive
Leadership Team ang that the feam be charged with responsibilitiss o Irad the Taylor
fomty School District out of the eutrent seoncmic orisis it is experioncing end to creaty
:mé sustein & enmcilion of economic wetaess foe the district

The team shoald be comprised of:
Sepesintendant
Dircetor of Finehas :
Executive Director of Personmetl and Adnuinistretive Servizes
Tiractor of Instruction
Representative School Prinsisdl

Schoet principals should be Totated to membesship on the Team at three months mtctvals
oT as maticrs vader special consideralion by the Team warrand based on fhe respective
skills of the school-based leaders.

Puties of the Supenintendent’s Execative Leadership Teamn should inchuda:

» Establishing a system of monitoring the performance of the respective cost
centers using datz hased on accurale assessment, enalysis aad reporting,

» PBeing resnonsible for systsms zccountability with spectal cophasis on brsiness
and Fiancial operations, staffing of scheols and offices, and sound mamagement
praciices.

» TDslaplichizg and implomenting 2 syssm of cross-mainieg and prepazing
srcesssion plan io gussd seaiast the logs of msiiutional memory when key
workess Jeave (he school systeme.

s Monitoring the dav-n-day eperations of the schools ané offices of the istrizd.

s Making knowledee based decisions and solving problems timongh seleciiop of the
bast manazement fraclicas, '

o FEngaging and leading employees of the sysien ebd communiry sizkebolders & a
commiiraent fo and in practices of econdimic TRoOVEry.

> Fnsuring that communication practiees are canprehensive znd effective.

» Recommending the revision sad update of School Board policies. Recomrasnd
romoval of administrative proeesses and praciices fiom the policies, and place the
admimistrative processes and prachieos in an Admrnistrative Procedures Marmal
Thiz man:tal should be used as a gvide for daily operations, for cross-training of
smaloyees, For geovral in-sstvice imining, and for erisntation of new employees.
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Findings and Recommendations of Business
and Financial Operations

Fipance

Stafus

The Finance Department consists of the Finanee Office, and Foed Sorvices The Finance
Depurément is staffed by the Director of Figancs, ome Adrinisteative Assigmnt, one
Puzchasing Techniciaa, one Accounts Peyable Teehnician, oot Peyroll Technicizn, one
Payiofl Clerk, end a vacast Froperty Records Teckzician. The Ceordinator of Feod
Services iy gapervised by the Director of Finsnce and supervises a Secretary, Feod
Sorvices

The Admimdsirstive Assstant accoumts for and menages cach advances, wire famsfers,
Pafl grant cash draws payroll fuxes and maintaies e Cash Book. The Cask Bock is used
0 recoroile bank sletemants.

Tae dudes of ihe Fixed Asset Menagement [mction am o Bc distribuied to other
amplovees leaving the position vacact, Proliminary plans are for sahistmg existng school
based stafl i assist with the anmsl inventory of furnitire and cquipment.

Findings

The Finance Deperiment has 2 Property Records Technician pasitdon thet has been vacant
since July L, 2007, :

The Administrative Assistant position is mappropriately clssified aecording to the duties
znd responsibilities vequired of fhe position.

Recommeadations

1L is rocommended that the Dismiel dolete the Property Records Techmictun position and
distribute the duties and esponsibilities to other positions within the Finaace Depaziment,
Cost svoidanee savings will inclode salaries amd benefits, caleulsted =t ®io begirnng
salary rate, of about 519,800

Tt It recommended that the Admemistraiive Assistant e ciassified as Fiscal Servicss
Coprdinaior. '

Facilities and Maintenanse
Statos

The Coordimator of Tecilifics and Mamtcpance teposts to the Excousive Directos for
Persontel and Administrative Services and has a siaff of one Custediar, assigned i the
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cemirel ofice, owe head sustodian and ope mechanic. Local venders provide repair
servics for dectrical, plurnbing, Toofing, and HVAC,

The Facitlies and Maim=nmece Dopartment is responsidle for maietaiming all school
buildings and grounds incleding the Dersest Stadium/Pervy-Face Field aifilefic complex,
new congruction, renovations, safety-to-liks inspoctions of building ané grounds,
perchasing chemicals and supplies [or custedial staff, custodial staff training in the use of
cleaming chemicals and sipphiss, gnd equipment and supplics uscd by inmate crews hat
assist with groueds Xeaping.

The distriet assumed the responsibility for mainiainiag the Dorsclr StaéiuraPery-Peze
Fisld comeplex in Febmuarg 2007. The Tagler Comty High apd Taylor Couaty fiddle
schools nsc the fasiBty for foothall and buseball games and soccer matchos.  City
resreation Jeagees 2lso use the fecility. Tnmete crews are Tsec to maimain groumds on
days end f iimes when studenis ars not prescet,

Fiudings

The District spent $998,000 for electiciy and 535,750 for natural gas during the 2006-
2007 fiscad vear. Compared with the six comparmbie districts for wtility costs {see Tahle
A2), Gilchrist had the highest per stadent expsnditure at $347.56, Tayler had the scoomd
highost per student sxponditze m 332.66. Tayler's cost was 36553 highor per siudent
than RMadison, the third hichest sxpenditwe, and $137.30 por sindent highes fhan the
lowvest per shrdest cost (Bradford 2l $195.16) ameng the comparison districts

The 2008 Legislatnre is tking ender consideration some scomome reliel mladng 1o
paving property and casualty inswrunce frere the “{wo-mil money”. The proposal, It
passed wil allow disticE to spend wp fo 565 yer FIE for property and casualty
INEIIMERAC S, ’

‘The THstrict has nat sstablished 2 cost of mainmining the Dorscit Stadium/Perry-Pace
Ficld complex upon which fees can be determined for the vae of the facility. Taylor
District Scheols are not regquired o pay a use fee for albletic evems thal sre held at tha
complex, mod even for those evenis for which adméssine foes are bemng charged. - '

Recreation lague teams sponsorcd by organizations other then the Districn are not being
roquired to pay for thoir use of the faciliry.

Recommencations

Tt is recommended that the disiglst implement & cost savings progzam for utihtics; an
meentive of ellowing a school fo carry over funds equal to 10%, or mors, of money saved
in energy sesis as compared to the previous yeur for that school. The schoal shewtd he
allowed to expend fhe inceative fimds for any lawful purpose as approved 1 advance by
the Supermtendent and School Board. The goal for the total amoumt of savings for the
first year should be at least 20% which will gogerats savings of about 5205800, less
frenitve or anet of $184_500.
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It is recommondsd that the district stay abremsi of Legislutive actioms i order (o
reaximizs any flexibility providad to districts durisg ecomotrdrally stressful times.

Tt is rscommendsd shet the District 2dopt 2 policy esteblishing a fes schedule for allusers
of he Diogset: Stadicm/Perry-Pace Field complex besed tmon the exient 1o whick e
focilities mme 1o Be used. As e mmimum the foss showld offsel the cost of electricizy,

water and sewer, suoplies such as replacement light buibs, scaps and paper zoods, .

groumds Keaping, Insurance, and genczal mamtemanee and tepeirs, 1 cost sevings of
the spplicatica of fumate labor 2t the ity sheauld be resognized and included in the
calculations,

1l is recommended that the disidet esmblish a policy that scheols sy pay thes Diorseit
StadunPers-Pace Ficld vser fees from their micmal accounts e disaBow the s
[rom being patd from scbool opersting hldpeis.

It is recommmended fhat agrmements bo pegotiated with the City of Pary and Taylor
County Tervemiion dspattmments, 25 appropriste, fo estgblish “[gir.ghara” cost sharing
aromts to be applicd toward the cost of maintaining the [exfliy and Lhat will smuble te
pistiiet lo open the facility o the public,

Food Servies

States

The Superviser of Schoosl Food Services reports to the Directar of Finance. Thers is ome
Schoot Food Sezrvice Secremry. The 1epariment coordinatos fve cefcterias and two
satelliic schoels. Aceording to the National Sthoot Lunch Participation report located In
the Cotld Nuirition Program websits at the Degaronent of Education, appraxamately 31%
of children sliglle for ftes, Teduce price and paid meals partcipated In the National
School Loach Progrem for the 2006-07 school year.

Fieding

The District could oot confirm that a1l Sood scrvices cperating cosis weee haing charged
to that fanction. For cxample, only $684 3 energy costs for the sanrs fisca] year 2067
weve charged to food ssrviees. Indirscl sosis payable to the Geomeral Fund wers nod
assessad Sor Bscal Year 2006-2007 and kave not been assessed to-dale in 2072008,

Recorrmendation

The food servies dirsctor should work clossly wiih the district fmanes oificer o proposs
o model for accoumale allocation of opersting costs end insure that indirect cosis are
asasgued

Finding

There are corrently 39 positions ™ the fod service department with 34 posifions fifled
and five vacant positions. :
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Recommcendation

It is recommended that these vacancics not be Glisd. This world result mom cetimatzd
cost avoidence of $39,530 (staring salary at Level T ot $7,866 times five).

Finding

The schoof nutrtion program telies on fevenus from paid scheol meals and fedoral
reimbutsement,  School meal prices were incmassd approximately fwo yeam aga.
Broakast was incrcssed by $0.10 far foe primary, clemeniary and middle schools and
50,15 for the high wioel. Lunch wes increased ondy For the high school by 30 20. Adult
nrices were increased by $1.00 for brealkdfast and Tunch. Helfors this jncraass, {t was over
ten1 years 2go that thero was an increase in meal przees.

Recommendatiot

It is recommended that meal prices for breakfast and unch for paid studenis be Inereased
by S025. This contd increass revenus for the food service prograc Uy approsamately
%24 500 (53,000 total paid meals claimsd for relmbusement for the 2006-07 school year
fimes 25}, Becanse oaly 51% of cligible wudents perticipate i1 the Natonal Schaol
Fuach Program, il is recomuuended that the Distdot survay the perlicipeting skdents as
well z= {bose not participating as g springboard do developing promotonsl campeigns
scarad toward incroesing participation of studsnts for breakfzst and lunch

Transpertation

Findings

Presenily there are forly-eight bas roules mn daily with all schools opsnimg al
approximately the same time. The buses that nz: insids the ity limit transport students
cateporized by the school thet they aiend (e primary, slemertary, suiddle and high
school}. Busts outside of the zity Limit franspert 21l lsvels of stedeats.

"Fhere are approximately 200 students Fat are befng trenaported that wre not gligible for
state trapsportaton categorical funds becamse studerss Iive less than fwo milas from the
schools they attend. Also, there are roules whers theze are 23 Iow as 14 stadents ridmg 8
65 pessenger bus.  The avemuge ridemship for Taylor County 3 epproarnately 72
DULULRACY.

According to the Floride DOS Tramsportation Profiles for Schoel Year 205506 w=pert,

Taylor County’s average ansporation npersting costs af £2.73 per mile me more than
the state avemge for rueal districks at $2.53 per mife. Many factors affect oparating costs
include salaries of employses, age of buses, road conditions, and density of housing.

The District axpendad $267 826 for motor fuels duving Fiseal Yoer 2006-2007 o 556.20
wer andent,
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Racommendafions

It s recommneaded that courtesy busing be climivared.  Although she courtesy bused
cidents ride buses fransporting calsguricel funded cligible smdems, the pructics of
courtesy busing imterferes with cfficient routs planning and afmindstalion.

Tliminating twelve rouiss, or 25% of lbe routes, s recammended.  This gan be donc by
We comsolidation of roues. By consolidating, an approximete eost savings of 5210,556
wonid be moogmived. '

The eliminzton of 12 bus roulss will significuntly redusa the cost of fuets to abour S64 to
365 pez studernt

It is also Tecommended that the distriet apply the same ridership critera districi-wide
wilthrespeet to grads levels of students.

Recorsmended Additiozal Cost Bavings

Cost avoidance for bus Teplacement and mamtaance,
Cost avoidance for redacing cost of maintaining enties bus flest.

Findings and Recommendations on Information
and Technolegy Services

Niztus

The Tevlor School District is = member of the Gutewsay Siudent System Consorlinm and
e PARC Gawwey Staff and Paveolf systems for siats dala reporting. Gatowey providis
sapport to the merdber disiens, The meinframe hosting ths TERME {The Ecucaticaal
Resowee Maragement System) applications and daa s locafed at the Nogth Wost
Regional Data Centsr (NWRDC) 1 Tallzhasses.

‘The Goazee snd himnan rosomvess staff of Tevlor uee the TERMS® FimancialHusran
Resourees Sysiem applications. Smiitacly, Tayler’s MIS deparlment, district depariments,
a4 schools uss the smdent appHcetions within the TERMS sofiware as well.

Diistrict offices and schools access the TERMS systom vshag deskiop computers. The
following sysiems @ availdble Jor use by GECC bumness clients: Payroll, Pssommcl,
Finance, Tnservice, Facifiies, Food Servies, DOE Surveys - Stafl, laservice, Finances, and
DOE Cost Reportmg,

The information processing services provided by membership in Gateway is of sreat
veluz to the distiet. Tt allows ascess to extensive tesoarces with a selatively modest
amourt of suppert locaBy. The Gateway staff is highly responsive to Tayler's requests
for assistance and locz] reporlime, : '
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Finding

Curiently, respomsibility for techeology and the pse of the siudent data system are mder
thws Coordinator of MIS. The Coordimater of MIS repests o the Dirsctor of Tnstruction.

Feepmrmendation

The Dapazﬁmnt of Management Tnformation Services should be reorgarized to incinds
aiditional functions and bg ealicd the Department of Technology & Tnformetion Bervices.

While the prmery fimctions of MIS and reportiog remain, other fupstions of this
deparimert would be oversight of admimisizative wchnclogy for the district; network
munagement and security; serving as a laisoe o the msmetional deparirrent {o A88ist in
the implemeatieg sducabonal tochiolgy in the disidet; technology iraining, stxic
meporting; intérpretation of repors and use of dala systems; selection and acguisition of
tecknolopies; and records and fomms coniyol.

The posifion of Coordinetor of MIS should be twvised o thal of Coordipater of
Technelogy & Information Services. This posifion i3 critical to cosure thal the
séucational wekmologies axe eppropriate md cperational t moct district administrative
ard cladstoom peeds, mmd that the aufomated inforrahon systerns e aroperly and iy
wilized., ‘The Coowdinater of Technology & formation Services would report to he
newhy zecormmended postiion of Bxecotive Divector of Information Services. While this
recemmendation remmoves e position frum the insiraciional area, an esgentiat compencot
of f1e Coordinutar of Techaology & Information Scrvices would be Jo serve as liafson to
Tostruciion fo overses miplementation of edacational technologies.

zeneral Usc of Hata

Finding

There appears (o be no syslemaadc use of data for syskm Improvemwnl &mMCRg the
depertmacais. The infonsity with which it is colleted ent examimed varias by depastment.
Some dala appcars 1o be kept localty and not shered,

Recgmmendation
Dhata should be collected for a parpase and analyzed to that cod.

A systemic reporting formet that kighlights crifical way station poists With progmess to
meeting thase goals a5 well as the eventual farpet(s) wonld be of great beriefdt t6 decision
maksrs, It could be customized for the persomnel srea, the fnence ara, aod the
imstrpction ares. The less comphicated the system and the means to genezate %, The betkr
such o gystem could wmke data from TERMS and food into summery formais for
distribution to masagement and the School Board.
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Finding

Mot all capabilities of the TERMS systemn are used. For example, siaffmg reporis
showring which positions were flied and which wers unfilled By cost centex were kept In
2 wotd processing fanmat uskg a templats kepl ocslly on a porsondl computer. There
wers sorne gaps i the dats, for example, rissing Zob ideatificaion nombers.

Recommmendaiion

Roports oF this naturs shonld be gencrated directly from the TERMS systert. £ the repomt
syrmat pecds fo he changed 0 5t o partiswlar local femplate, the staff shoutd wark with
Gateway staff 1o design sech a format.  The TERMS system fs Ofly capabls of
nroducing files that 2an be extrzcted locally Jor either presantation in raporis or for local
snanipulation in spreadshests.

vindizg

Pho Taylor disirict staff relies exicnsively upon fic Gataway siaff for reports. Over fime,

this Toliance on the Gateway strfl may cause prblems, showld scnior Galeway staif be
unavailsble or should they oventually rative.

‘there is ample knewlodee among some Taylor pérsonne] o bow 1o wse fic THERMS
systern, not jost within the MIS deparimont but also other departrnent=] amess, This
inowledge should be gharsd. -

Reecomamendaiion

Disirict staff should wosk with the proposed Department of Technology & Information
Scrvices 2o tike Fif] advantage of he extensive docurentation md training provided by
Saleway staff for sudent as well as bosiness applications. Techuology & Infoymeation
Services should confinue to provide taining so that the clerical staft and adpinistrative
arat will madimize the use of fic TERMS software. Technology & Information Services
showld similarly mrovide raining in the use of Microseft Offce sujte of applicetons fr
maxirarn produstivity.

Findigx

This cenwalized information syslem represente the sofe means by wioch the district
manaies its siudert, fnence. and persomnel reporting meeds. X also zeprescnts the
reposiiney of mformation from whick to maks decisions. Data tzken From the TERMS
syswrm is the best taol fo monitor district expenditures. The data should be stadied to
emirtize effisicncy and effectivensss in all arcas of district operations.

Recammendation

Only through iraining and excontive suppert will admimistraiors and schools [sarn to st
and roly on the data ihat is on the system. Breawse of the size of the district and Tirdled
staff, custornized training wilt offen be nesded, in small group or one-on-ooa2 selimg.
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Permapent Stadent Records

Finding

Parmancnt stadest meeords dating back many decades are slored in lockable file cabinets
5 the district MIS offica 1 ¢ e room. Those records are requested by former students
for various preposes whers birch and idenify verificetion 18 needed such as smployment,
callege, snd pessport applications. At ihe presant time, 3 staff mermber for MIS Is gomg
through these thonsands of recurds and purging nonessential coutent.

Rerorzmendation

Flosida Stalutcs povern all records Tetemfion and disposition pulicies and subseqguent
precedures for school disiriets.

Asthose are the criginal studest reconds for the connty, the Coovdmater of Teckmology &
(nforeaation Services should imvestipate options sad costs (hat wounld permit microfche,
" microfitm, or conversion of the records ko 2 secure electronic firmat. This wosld sreate a
copy of these records for accesy by the distriet recosds custodian; address the issue of
secarely storing the original student records in 2 secure and Areproof location; and permit
recerd Tequests to be handled more efficienily,

After poteniial sotutions o cither microfiche or dighze records have been ddentified, the
Cocadinator sheuld vist Flomida school dismicts who actualfy use suck solutions o see
sirst hund whether it wonld work for Taylor Cowaty. 'The idcal system would permit
other departments to use such a sysiem as well or dher owm conversior from paper.
CHven tbe cerent ecoomic sats of Taylor, this i not a crificad fmding at thig ticoe, bt
packgrommd research sould be done now, As casts can be fleshed out and funds becorne
mvailable, the records conversion would he butlt into flsrs bodget(s).

Fnding
Cost savingd sheald be zeafized in Technology and Iaformetion Services
Recommendation

The Steighatches School has a Secretzry 31 and 2 Dety Fniry Operator position. Dac to
lo% stodent eavellment, we zecommend the eBmimation of the Data Eniry Operator
Position. Daily éala cofry needs such as recemding tendmnce and making demographic
chenges for the school cam be bandled by the Secretary position, white cne of the fdl-
time operstors uh the middle school or kigh schosl or the districy MIS Data Ermry
Operator can hendle grade zeporring and oeher periodic proecsses for the school
Projected annnal savings bassd on average salacy of school dasa etiry operators in
positon: $28,000 plus retirement, social securiy & health bemefits.

A foarth technology specialist was added o central MES prior to the implementation of2
large laptop initiative a year ago. Despite tac full tmplementation by MIS of this
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snainment into classrooms, (ke lapiop projest cuarently aposers to Tanguish & the schools
e to Tack of use, snd thus a5 mrxch technology support s zot needed. We yecomnend
the elimination of one of the fonr fechnology swEpport positions al the district MES offiee.
Projected anoual savirgs hassd an average salary of technology specialists in pesition:
$27,000 »lus ratiremenl, socie] security & lrealth beacfits.

Findings and Recommendations on Human
Resources Services

Siptms

T'he Hunan Resourcss Department provides » comorehensive series ol sarvices o mors
then six hundred (600) Lull ime enployees, These £l hundred {609) enployess are split
Famrly cventy belweca instrectional apd non-instroctional with imstrucional being slighily
larger. The district cxperiences a small decline in stdenl vopulation cach year. Dach
acheol year i s necessary to hire new icachers and son-instractional employass duee to
norrsl attrition and retiverment,

Fendings

The Department is supervised by a Director of Porsorne! who 18 suppested by one office
ssgistant.  The Depariment also supsrviscs several adéitionel sfraibisiralive foactons
meluding exceplional stdent cducation, alforoative céucation, trsnsportation and
fcilifesfmaintenance.

Recomonendations

1 is recornmended that the Sstict establish a |Jumse Resouras Servises Division under
“he leadoranip of an Dxeewtive Diroctor.  The process of identifying, recrulting, amd
~cteining a vihls compeient work Torce is clearly mission catial to the Taylor Schoot
District and fisthez a major division sters fimstion.

The Division should provide state of ke art services by 2 classical human resource
defnition zné cperale with a sirategic orfentation to growth, demosraphics and fmre
noeds. The division shoutd never be surprised by an emerging program af service arca
which requites & uniques set of cropioyes capacity skills. Thereture, contimuous zpplicant
pool analysis and a comprehensive mogrsm of zmployee and orgznizalion developmant
must be desiened, centrzbzed and implerwnted wilk doe hasts. '

Thke recormmended chad iz Hustrated on the.ﬁ:lllawing page. The chart includes the

leadership stracture and assernes that the distriet witl £l in the techoical and suppott
positions 28 nccessary fo remain tmely and efficient regarding prowth and other needs
tnigue to the huruen reseurce fomction. To specifically cobance this division cerzin
sigpificant findings and rocomirendations are provided.
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Fmdings

Currenily the personnel deparimeat staffing is Imited. The Director position sarves afl
dic basic Ametons melading retention, recruitment, selection and equuty. The departmem

also marages eoployse discipling, imvestigations and sevigatization. The labor agreerment -

containg extemsive presctiptive procedures regarding meetings, thimelines, reduction in
Fares, ¢se. which are highly rostrictive and completely nonfimetional, ‘Jnr'—mstm,tmnai
smpioyees, a5 a cxample, serve a probatopay pexiod of c«ne—ﬁmﬂ:@d twanty days as
sppased to ilhe typicsl {hrec year period.

Recommendations

4 The Drstrict should modify the system to eomply with Jangpage and tntent of Florids
Statgics which sssumes the mansgenes fdghe and exclusive ssponsiblily of e
school prinaipal 3o conduct peformance appraisal for atl employees assigned o e
achars..

¢ Tac Distict should tansfer the respensibility for perforroance apprusal o the
personng] diviston under the loadarship of the Execistive Director for Personnel] nd
Adwimistrative Sorvices.

Finding

Soth liber coniracts contsn lenauage which severely restricls the right to menage the
schoe! distret 28 proviced by Flonda Lasy,

Reesmmendatisn

The Distriet shonld contract with an. onfsids acency o conducl a mapagement roview of
botl labor contracts and provide allemative langasge which is practical, fonctionat und
may be proficiently mananed,  The Florida Scboo! Labor Relations Service may e of
asgistunce m (s regard.

Fizding

Apprmtaty 56 schoo] districs employses will becomme eligible to retire effher by
rezson of years of service or age within the next fve years. "This is a significant portion
of the 1abor firee and will dramaticaSly mmpact the masintmamee of insifiutional memory

and suceession planning.
Recommendation
It is recommecnded that The District design znd impléwen: a progam of suscesston

plamming that wiil proteet {pstiufional memory and maintam 3 compehat, rahle work
foree In a marleet of changine competition and wehnelogy reguirements.
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Pinding

Camrenily the school district docs not heve in place a slaffing or position CoRtTed syt
I'striet lovel staffing is conmolled hy the budgel, and school kvesl staffing is shinply
comnzlaive fom vepr to year based on special needs snd unique program requirencnts as
identified.  This has resulted T overstafficg and plays 2 magor dimension m fhe
contenmorary firancizl orisis. '

Recymoenidstion

The crclosed siaffing plan based on unweighted FTE by program calegosy by scheol
stould be Implemented.

Finding
Reenuitmant is assiened o the Tircetor of Personsel and at $is time & fairdy limired.
Rerommendation

Plamring ané meruifing is a year round stratagically-grounded fimetion. TEis function 28
others s misaion critical and needs additionad enmphass,

a  AH participants in the plerming and mcnaimg should be trained m a formal
interview system soch as fargeted seloction, focused perceiver, wacher perceiver
t ofasrs

s The advemlace of a paperless applicant sysicm should bo explored. These systers
provide for application review st remote locations and engoing inlezaction with
the applicant. Most sysiems ore ntegrated with job descriptioss for posting
surposes and inchads acoess 10 Eansoripls, references and other cnticel docwments
For sclection decisions. Several cxcellent systems are @ the makel These
systems are affordable and cfficient. One school distyict received more than 200
teacher spplications wih 30 days of rplementatiar,

Finding

1 neating, morutting, and relsining minority toachers 2nd administrators showid be high on
the district priority liet,

Recommendation

The District should cstablisk a misority affairs advisory recritment sommittes to assist
1 collegs identification apd shorl-fertn comphimentary  bousing with local farniltes.
These techmicques bave besn fomad to be offectve wils new employess. DOther

enbangernenss such as providing moving expezses and signing boruses’ for catical
shortage areas should also be consideged.

e T

B 2 1 [



Employee Relations
Finding

Currently zmd perhaps for many years the chief spokesperson for callective bargaining
has been & contracted service [mictior. The attoroey also serves 2x the School Board
attorney. The negotiator is supported by & district representative eam which includes te
Director Yor Persormet.

Recommendation

The District should contimie the practics of contracting for a chief negotiator.  The chdet
negotiator shonld be welt-tzained in the field of publie sector collective bargeining and
supportsd by an cqually trainad team which represerds the varios divisions ard echonis
withiz the diskicl During pegotiations the segotiztor sbould repert 1o ik
Srmezmtendent. ' :

Finding

Tke hisiory of the bargaining process in Taylor has seen the il scope over Lme.
Contact lagsuage has Hkewise cvolved over an cxdended period of dtme through
pimgrons chupges in leaéership with profound differemces i phifosophy reganfing
Schoeol Based Maragement, schaot autoromy, shard decision makmg and others,

Heconmm enﬂaﬁ{m

All langungs should be revisitsd wher open to detsmmie the compatibality with the
carrent system of student acconntsbiliy at the staie and federal level.

Retnain specifically awate thes the Board, Supermterdent and schools are focal painds of |

socounfability.  Sfie based decision teams porhaps enfiance comomenications,
collzhoration end bring decision malking cleser to pofnt of Inpiementation. Howsver, in
inday’s envirpnment, cumdenlam content, Hring, and budget resources must be driven
with consistency according to distriet wide standards, Decigion making oy be shared;
aceonmability can only be disiribated to these who caa be held directly responsible.

Findings and Recommendations

on Teaching and Learning
Status
The Department of Ciricuhm and Instruction is carrently administered by a Dirctor of
Instruction wha sopervises three admmistrators:  Grant Weiter, Coowlimatur of
Management Information Services and an admmistralor or Headslarl. The tollowing
changes in aligrmment mé fonctions assignment are recommended. }t is vecommended
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it the position of Dropout Proventionfbalety Coordinator be elecated to the
Doparment of Teaching snd Leaming sl Te-titted g3 “Coordinetor of Dropogt
Provention”. Tt is socommendsd fast the Coondipator el Magagerent Iaformalion
Services be redocated to the Persommel amd Admimistrative Services Depariment and
titled, “Coordizator of Technology and ¥ nformation Services”, Tt is recommended that the
position of “Exceptiorat Chitd Supervisor be te-tifled as “Coordinator of Excepticmal
Strdent Edusation end refocated o the Deparment of Tesching and Learmmg. It is
recommended that (he Grant Writer position be 2c-titled, “Coordinaiar of Ressarch and
Development” sod Temsin [m the Depariment of Teaching and Jeaming The
eommendsd composition of the administrattve staff for the Deparlictm of T=aching
ani] leazming is as followa:

THractor of Instructor

. Comdingtar of Exceptional Swdent Edacaton
Caordingior of Research and Davelopment
{oordinatar of Dropane Preyeation '

Theae changes & edignment ase desigesd to clarity assignment of frnetions, fo deploy
persopnet ina more stratoaic way, znd iitle posiions mers aceimstely.-

Finding

The Tzvler Disthcs Supermtondent condncis a monihly mesting with all seheol and
Jisidict admimisirators to review and plan Frojess Ang programs for the disiick
Fallowing fhe monthly Superinendent’s mesting, the Diirector of InsEuctor meets with
principals 1o specificatly address issues relaling 10 the schools, Ta atdifion to the monthly
meclings, the distict admimistrafors SOTIMUmICAZS through e-mal end tefeshond
messazes, Becanse ol the prowimily of the schools o tha distriet effies {excops for-the
‘Steinbaichee School), the sompymicalions procedures have Deew sufficient to
corpmuricats egular ftems of felexest or imporiance relating to programs.

Az the time of the review, principals and district staff were aware of fhe cuTent Fipancial

sizlog of the district, but seme did noi recognize the severily of the silugiion, and some:

4id uoe realize that fhe diswict hed expericncsd a dsficit fand bakmce for more QAag ons
yoar, Because of the lack of speckfic comrrunication comcepning Gnances it 2008,
come schogl-leve! adminisraiors hed oot made zdjustmerls in spending. Thase
adjnsiments which had besn made wers o discontimie ovcrtime pay, resinict fravel, leave
vacemt positions unflicd, sad purchage oply essetial supplies agd waterizls, Af the e
that the gosi-saving tmoasures weme inatiteted, {he district had glready staffed wmost
positions, and instructional programs had been inffiaged

Communication
Recemmendation
It is impesative that the Direcior af Finance inform the Supsrintendent and Excoutive

Trirecior for Adminisrative $esvices on 8 SgURE basis of the district’s fimemeial situabion.
A meeting shenld be held with the shove two administrators weekly to disouss baoth
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revenues and xpenditares, and the Director of Fipance should also brief the diswict and
«hoo] agrimstrators ot the monthly Sypernicndent's mesiing s0 that progrem
admimsstrators are nvolved in lorg-range finsciel planming.

‘The distict’'s Swatceic Plan shoold establish specilic godds to addzess the deficit fmd
balagcs, and program end staffing objectives shoukd bs revised periodically duzing the
fiscal Tear o accomplish & goal of soumd [inancial managemend.

¥edera] Funding
Findicg

It was perceivsd by some employees of the district tha: peneral find deflars are bemy
spent i oxomss on Exceptional Student Educasion prostams. There was mot wide-spread
Knowladge by school administrators of the mannsr i which JDEA funds supplement the
general progran with specialized smrvices for exceptional students or of the Federal
recuirements for additional services Tor disgbled stirdents. There was some question by
district employess of the need for non-<lassroom insiruetional personnc] o assisl disabled
simdents,

The district providss gencra] fimd detlars for ESE classroom teachers and mdes, one
saffme specialist, one job coach {reimbursed by Medicaid and Vocatioral Rchalnlitalioe
Zunds), and 8 pat-time personalbehevioral agsistant {reimbersed by Medicald). The
disimet does nol aze 8 fonmule based on FTE finding to determming the level of staffng for
ESE classtooms.

(EA Fmnds n b distict total showt $8060,000 and pay for six addineng] aides, bus
aides, ome Injerventioniesource spocialist, one staffimg  specralist, ome transiton
speciglist, cme job coach, Imtervention/resoutce compliapes  spocialisia, and
pessonalbchevior assistants. I sdditdon, Redere] IEA funds peovids fur 25% of a
rcading coach and $9% of a parent servises snployes

In. a comparisor of fhe geoeral imd costs of the district’s TSE program with thet of six
olbeur distriots of simflar size, the cost of the Tayler BESE program & lower than three of
the other gistricts and comparable with the zcmafming thres. %19 also lowsr than tke
avezape of the other six districts, and lower than (he avemge cosl of ESE prograrns i the
stafs.

Reenmimendatiens

The districr should contime o expend geasval fond dollars for Fxcepliona! Studeat
Bducstion teachers and aidos to meet the raquared mairtenapce of effort for federal IDEA
fmds. The Direstor of Finsnes and Dirsator of Excepiional Stedemt Eduocation should
ioiptly consult mith the Flonds Depariment of Education comeerning the reqursd
Tmintepancs of effort as enroliment and geacral fimd dollars ars decrsased in the district
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The ;:mpuséd walfng fomula for 21 Mstrucaomal programs, inefding BSE, shonld be
implemented so ther the distnet can be assursd of the appropriate Tatio of teachos aod
wadea to siidents.

The staffing specialist that 75 fiunded with general fond dellzs snonld ke transferred w the
iDEA pranmt, and the specialved ESE persommel who zre pad from Mcegicald of
v yoztional Rehsbilitation reimbursemsn: fnds should remain @ the peneral fund oply ¥
e Fatriet is assured of the eimbursement dollars.

The distict administrators of fedorel srapts, including ESE azd Title T shoulc review the
gramis with schaol-lovel adminismators in the mority Superintendent’s meskng (o
epsure that the fzads zre bemg aliocaisd to schooks = the most elficiont and eFetive
remmer. Tn addiden, The federal grants administeators should schedule & meeting with
anch of the schaol Saeilice at the begimming of eack school year W Giscrss ihe use of the
supslemertary funds far disadvantaged and Jisabiled siudenis,

Dropout Prevention
Finding

The distict uperates a Techmiczl Learning Conor with enc adrinistrator, T#0 academic
temehers, one vocationsl specialist, and three HSE wwachess. Support staff i= cornprised of
a cletk-typist, three instmuctiopal aides, ané two hehavior spewiatists. The Cemter is
housed in a eldinge adiasent W the disirict schog] board oilict. Enrallment at the centar
ranges from 63-70 stlonts, with m average alendance of about 40 smdents. E3E
smidenss who have Teoeived & Specis! Tiploms are snrefled inthe vooaienal program at
the Toghmical Learning Cemnter.

The AtRisk program in the district has operating eoss {hat zre twice ss preat as ihe foug
comrpargble counties $0 which it compared. I addition, 1he district sponds twies a8
rmch #= the state avereze on A-Risk programs.

Recommendation

The distict™s revenues =re sl & level thal will not suppert excessively expensive
programe. The distict should not oty reduce ths number of mstrmgtional slaff and aides
hased on the proposed stalfug formula, but should zlse house {he programs on the
middle and igh sckool campusss, with supervaien by the huilding principais. ESE
smdsnis who have resumed afier recelving a Special Diploma shoald recelve vocational
taimng in Tayler Technical Ynslitete.

Reading {oaches
Finding

The dstrict provides readmg coachss for pach of the schools, as well 25 2 Reading
Gpecinlist gt the disiict lovel. Tunding is from the senerzl [imd, as wetl 28 Title 1 and
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TSE Foderal frnds. The coaches hold an 1]-meonth cormmad, z2nd the spocialist dolds a 12-

mondh comract, The disties has begun fo reduce the staff of reading cosches by -

replacing the reading coach at fhe Steinhatches School with weekly commltative services
fpm the district E.E.ﬂl.’f-ng SP’E:CEIES"L

Recommeeniation

The disizict shonid disconiisue non-designated general fund doflazs for Teading cozches
and the Teading speciztist ind they shenld purue the addiional wse of federal fonds Jor
the program. The distdet shonld alse redvce The lengfh of the contracts, assign & enach 1o

more than oo school, or izaplement the coasultaive servicss medel bemg vaed af the
Steiphatchae Scheol for all schoots.

Overdme Pay

Hinding

It has been the practice 1o pay costodasng at she schools for work beyond the regalar work
weck at the rafe of Hme 2nd a balf  Gencrally, when 8 custodisn is abwent, another
cestordiaz will work additional hours 1o complels the work of the absenl empioyee.

Recomrpend atinmn

Tt i pecommmended ihas the diseriet dissonlimre the practics of sverbme pay, execpt for
smuresney simatinns that imvolve health or safely of siudents or smplovecs.

Child Development Center
Treding

The distriet serves ai Dscal agent and providss sapport for Lhe Headstart Fragram by

providing & bulding spd wilikes costs, with o charge for indirect costs. The pragram i

Housed at Bre Berly Leamning Center, whick also inclndes the Pro-Kindergarten Program
for Seudents with Disabilities sad she VPR program.  Tho Headstart progra seves 153
of the 319 sindexts eoralled in Te Copter.

The supervision of the Child Tevelopmeal Center s assigned to a Lead Teacker, with
district-level oversight nrovided by the Dizoctey of Persoansl.

Recommendation

The disitict should assess the Hesdstart Program for all costs for operation of (e
prograsy, ncleding matmtenarce, ntilities, and ipglirecl cosis.

The adinisiretive supervision of the CHild Development Cascer should e assignrd toa

school-level principal, witk district-leval owersighi provided By the Dropout Prevemiion
Coordinator.
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Tavlor Technical Institute
Finling

Tavior Tecknical Insinze provides the vocations! and carwer training for secondary and
post-sesondary studeats in the distriet, with ths cxceptien of & welding class 2t the
Teehmical Learning Cemter. Taylor Coanty Iligh School doss not have a voeational
program, but few high scheol stodents attemd T The Instiante aleo ssrves somne
stzdamis from adjacent eounties. .

Fanding for TTI prosrams is previded primatily by Worklbree Developracot, end 1l 3=
anticinazed Hat those fuzds will be mduced for the nexi fiscal year by $43-50,008. The
Tastifmte has alsa cxperienced a doficit this year in the program for spreial nesds adulis,

The Instilute has = stall of foriy {40} cmpioyzes, aad all insiructional wlaff are on
profossiond! contraet, Costs for operetion of e Iastnrts arc considerebty higher thom aix
comrparable counties and almost Twics that of the state average.

Recsmuvendation

Tavior Technical Instiits shonld assess 4 disirict funding fes foe students who atiend the
program irem oher disteiets to compensats Fur $he lecal property == dollars that are not
collecied for those dudenis.

The Iustiate should reduce siaff to compensate for the dereate in Worklomeo
Development dollars wnd to alleviate the dafick m Lhe program for speeiat necds adaits.

1n additior, the Institme skould tzke measures to reduce adéitions] staff and oporating
cosls {6 4 eval e oxcader than that o[ the state average for vocational progzamms.

Student Services

| Finding

The disldct erploys both a guidance eotnselor and a stizdent services specialist at Perry
Pricary Schocl with an enrollment of 789 stedents. The duties of e 7o employess ars
simiar in metre, wilk some dutes overlapping.

Recemmendation

e of the two pasifons {guidsnce counscler or stadsat sorvices specialisty shouid be
discontinned, with the remaining position assenmg the Tesponabilitics.

=0

B L WA HE

IO ST e

e

TR



Compensatery Time
Fmding

The megotiztad centraet for instuelional persornel allows for compensatory tirne 0 b
peid for professional activities thet cecur beyopd the regslar work day. The geners!
prectice is that the principel must reguest that the feachker complete the zctivity befors
compensatory Hme is awarded. In at lzast one school, the lead teachers are awarded 37,3
hears of compensatory e at the besinniag of the school year, and that which has not
been nsed &t the end of the sehool year is paid to the toscher 2t the rogular mte of pay.
‘teachers are allowed to use the compsensatory tme dwring class time 1T the class can by
covered by another wacher. On sorne occasions, substinte teachers may be errgrloyed,
resal&ar in adéitional costs 3y the distrel -

Rerommendation

The digrier should, through the colloctive hmgainipg process, roquire a rzasomabls
number of homrs for peofessional doties that ocowr beyend the reguier work day.
Compensatory time eamed for addiienal duties at ths equest of the schock principal

shoulé be wsed only during non-student comtact ime, and all pay for compensstory Tiroe
sheuld be dizcontimed

{pst Reductions

Finding

Cogt redueiions should be realized m the delivery el fhcse services.
Recommendatisn

i. Trersfor B8 stalfine spesialist posiffor from general find to IDEA grant.

Z. Relocate the AtRisk program from {oe Techmont Learsing Centor {o the mddle
and Ingh schools, and st4f¥ the program based onthe proposed ssaffing formuta

3. Dhzcontirne non-desicnated generzl fund dolless for reading coashes and mading
specialisl
4, Disconlinng tas practice of overtime pay.

3 Asssss (he Headstart program for 23l costs of operating ke progant, mchading
maintenance, ntdilies, and mdirect costs,

é. Daerease staffat TTI to compensale for loss of WFD dollars and for the deficit 1n
adull special pesds budgel.

7. fliminate ane strlent services empioyse.
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B Thiscontinne pay for compensatery time for wechers.

Steinhafchee School

Finding

Steinhaizhee School is = small sckool with approximately 127 studeats envolled i grades .
Pre-E - 8.

Freommendations

T following eeammendaticns are offmed:

1.

s

The Superimtendent and Schos! Bowrd should ehijzetively weigh the

advantages =nd disadvantiges of mainimng & schoal on the Swinhatches

site. - : '

1f the decisien s to close fze school, fic Superimicndent and Board should

give carefirl attention to Hhe best mefhods [or redeploying the students giving

attenticn (o progum opportunities and time inrente for the stdents.

IF the dacision is to contmus opatation of the school, the Superitendent angd

School Board showld:

43 Determine what organizaticnal levels (gredes) should be served by

the schaol.

b) Scek special funding a federal anc state levels that is particularly
dedicated to accommeodaing students in rural, Esolated areas.

¢} Hxplors the wse of Vidual School provisions o suppicmerd the
erograms for tosching and leaming, particalarly at the seventh and
cighth grade levela. '

Y FExplore special school designation Tor the Steinhatchee School mmd
cpen the eorollment cpportinities lo those wha Chooss antd ars
gealified to atrend.

Administrative Staff ¥Veetings

Tinding

Sdménigtrators reported not sbways baving cppornmity for inpaf =t strict admimistrative
Taeebmge. Maatings were deseribed as top dowa 1D some CASCE

Recommendation

Adnfnisiators meed mFicient opportmity for imput spd disemssion at gisirict
admimistralive mestings. Particularly during tis fme of econoraic convem, thare shouid
be apportanity for cxperienced deparimental managers 10 share comearns and suggestions
for distried irrprovement.

o
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Recommended Staffing Plan

A maior fazel of a focus swudy on business and financral swrvicss is the songduct of a
staFfne stmdy since the cost of the labor forse in 8 school distrl s the mafor expenditune
oy far. At s tanc of this study, the Taylor County Schaol District did not have inusea
staffing plan ageinst which roemitment and empleyiment for personnel in vanoes classes
~of enploymont could be determined. The methodslogy for constucting the staffing study

% described in Appendix I} of this Report. The plan is pertrayed on the following peges
ol tlis report ’

o this smdy it iz meommended that poth fre Steinbatchee Sghaol and the Taglor
Tearming Center be closed in prefercnce to other means of assignng 2nd sepving the
students in those localions. However, T the Safing Plan the Sicivhatchee Scioel and
the Tayler Leacning Center zre shows stll as separate cost centers i eeder o show the
Staffing Study application to fhose fucilities and to provide information that worlld be
necded should the Simermtondeat 2nd Szhoot Boad choose nod to slose these [acilitics,
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Perry Primary Schoel
20672008
F. T. F. Steffing Calculations

Proj Adj Alloc Trit Unit
Proz ¥TE Fri Tnit Allpe Alloc
2057~ 2407-
| Lede Program Categoty zgn8 2008 Factnr  Caleplefed Lurrsmi B0
101 Posic Frogmm FE-3 64380 643,00 LZ.00 4257
111 FE-3 Pasic wilh ESE Servioes 14240 122 03 E5.00 A7
25 Boppor:Lavel g 26 L] .00 s
235 SupnorfLevais 5.00 380 .00 .0
Towl: | F90.80 7O i
Sublotal: 53.12
Adis _
- Fotgi LSJ.] 2 Foy | 232
- Prejertad Membarship: T8G
Achiak Membesloy: 786
Adjosteent Facter:  1.0004
s, Tho

#rrenr cless gize reducton nits are mdded as an adjustmers to the celeulatad allogarion ool

cenatiinant sssumes the curreat dlosmion is inclesive of such Tnis.
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Steinhatchee School

28072808
F. T. T Staffing Calculations

Froj Adj Allsc L=t Lmit
Prog FTE FTE. Uit Alloc Ao
2007- 07
Code Program Cetegory 2008 2008 Factor  Calevlated Carrent Diff
)l Resic Progmo PE-3 IR.868 .85 150 ]
102 1tmsic Program 4-8 5200 2.0 18,006 221
111 FPES Fagic, wifh BRL Sgrvices 1472 1422 15040 073
11?2 4-% Bmsle, with TSE Services 1400 £4.00 1500 .93
254  Sumor Lavef4 2.00 2,00 7.400 620
Toetal: | 11198 | 11108 '
Subtotal; ;| 687
Agiz
] Totsl: 027 10.08 1§ 3.03 4
Projectet Membership: 107
Actual Membership: LOF
Adjnstmend Factor  1.0000 %

= arpant class wwe rednction wmils are added s an sdjestment to the celenlamd allocation column,  The
sons e assrmeas the cument sllncation i inclustve of such uaits,
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Tayier Tlementary Scaocs!
2H7-2008
F. 7. E. Staffing Calculations

TRETIRET O

Praj Ad] Allae {Imit Linfi é
Prug ¥TE HIE Linit | Affge Allec ':
2007- 2007~
_{lode ¥ropram Categery 2008 2068 Factor  Calemated Current  Daff -:
101 Basic Projram PX-3 181.60 15100 1500 1267 :
02 Bagic Progmm 4-8 ITEO0 . 7300 12,00 1563 .
131 PIE-3 Sasic with BSE Services 35450 3040 1308 2.4 :
113 A-8 Lisic, =ith ESE Services $8.00 9540 1500 6.53
254 Smpwl Level £ 200 B0 200 .14
255 Swpraor Level § 218 215 00 036 ; =
Total: | $98.06 | 49816 |
Sublofal: 2.13
Adjs :
*Toial: | 42.13 40860 | 587

Projeefad Memberghip: ey
Aetuat Meenbarship: 897 P

Adjnsiment factor:  1.06000

ACurmant cluss size radueiion umits ars addsd s an adjsstoent to the selenlated aflocetion columm, The
consaltant sssumes the el allncztion is Reluaive of such wnits.



Taylor County High School
2807-2005
¥. T. E. Staffing Calcnlations

Froj o A Alloc Lnit T'nit
Prog FTE FTE 1lnit Allor Allae
2007- 2007
Lode Prograw Catesory 2003 2008 Facter  Caleulated Curzent Bilf
193 Bazsic Progam 9-12 173 2010 22 . ZEl
: 13 D12 Besic, with BESE Services IF7EA 13760 1300 1E
< 254 Gwppoot Leveld 6.0 £.00 TG G.8G
* 235  Soppott Eevds 2T 1.02 (.0C .44
;; 300 “ogatona! G-13 3483 a4418 1732 1.97
Total: | 68214 | 68234
Sabdotal: | 35.25
Adj:} 1LGE
Total:] 4625 | 5108 |475
Frojected Bembersing: aid
Astral Membaralup: 624
Adusirment Factar:  1.0000

*Current class s reduction uaits are added as an adjesteient fo e caloulated sflocation enlwmm The
commltari assuimes the clerant aFocaion iz meligive of snch unis.
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‘Tayior Middle School
20072008

¥. T. E. Staffing Caleniaticns

Froj Adj Al Enit 15113
Prag FrE FIE. Unit FALCS Adlor
FAHLED HT-
Code Program Cafegary 2008 Z008 Factor  Cutwleted Corrent  DET
B2 Bagic Progmm 4-3 IR £ 479,145 14,00 2531
iz A% Baslc, with EBE Services 135,04 LR 1300 167
235 Seppodt Leweld Z.00 2.00 7.00 025
233  Swpord Lavel 5 0.14 L4 f1.00 d.03
Totsl: | 59532 54432
' Subtotal: { 33.20
Adiz
Total: 3.2 4600 128D

Drojoctad Membarship: %93
Avinal Membership: 555

Adjusment Facloz - 15000

ACnerent elays siee reduotion wits are addet a5 aw adjustmens io the r..ujcuhtad atlocation colnmmn.

enme et aseames The correnl allosation i inelusive of sueh unis.
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Tavlor County Area Vocational-Technieal/Adalt

Cemer

2007-2608
T. T. ¥. Stafiing Calculations

¥roj Adj Allge Linit Unic
¥Yrog EFTH FIZE Linil Aloe Allps
2967- 200~ _
Code Proacras Calegary 20108 (38 Facter  Calealated ~Corrvent  Diff
103 Bgsic Progrea %12 16,50 16,300 2Z.00 075
254 Suppoct Lavel d F1.00 F1.10 AL L37
300 Veeadomud 612 13.43 3% |7.32 n7E
Total: | 4058 | 4038
Subiotal: 310
Adj:
! -
: .
Total: 3.0 1 1608 | 1290

Frojected Membership: 61
Aginal Membership: 61

Adjustment Factor:  1.00330

The ahave caloulations does aut includs the srovision Tor 465 part-tims and il time aduik siedarts,
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Technical Learning Center
2067-2088
F. 1. E. Staffing Calenlatioas

NI e e

Proj Adj Al ilpit U=it
Trug ETE FEE Vmit Alloc - ATiee
’ 2007- 207
Code Fropras Category s 2003 Fretor  Cabenlazed Cozrent DNl _
12 Basc Program &3 16.0] 16,060 19,00 084
105 Kagia Programe 12 _ 23,30 2320 2200 145 '
112 4-8 Fasic, with ESH Ssvices 9,00 9.00 15.00 060 5
113 %-12 Basic, with ESE Services 719 710 1500 (47 :
234 SupoestLevel 4 5.9% 596 7.00 (185
100 Voestieel 612 27 270 1732 0.6 -
Towal: ! §3956 | 6595
Suhiotak: 3928
Adj:
Totzl: 398 ] 904 232

i Projected Memborsiip: 64
Actual Memberslnp: &t '

Adjustmert Facor _ 1.0000

*Current olas st radnztion 1mits ere added as wm adjustoent o the caloulaiced allocaticn soluma. Tae
comeTitant ausurnes the cagreat allocation is inefusive of such oty



District Summary

Taylor County
2007-2008 Staffing Calculations
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Tota® Aloration Comparisons

. Calenlzted Turrent

School __Aflocations AllocaHions Differemncs :
Perry Primary Schoal 53,12 5180 +2.12 -
Stemnhaiches School £.97 10050 . 5.0 P
Tayler Elementary School 42.13 49.00 -6.87
Tayler High Schoel 46.25 5108 473
Taglor Middle School 3324 4609 -12.80 -
Tavlor Arez Vocatiomat Techmical/ 3
Adutt Centar 310 16,60 -12.90
Technical Learning Cernter 3.5 6.0 -2 02

*District Totals 188.75 229.00 E0Z5

W umrent lass i reduction uwits ave added as an edivswment to the caleulased afiocatin colemm.  The conseltant
asqeemes the curmeat allocation 38 Mmchusive of such anizs.
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Additiona! Stafﬁng

Gustodians
Earned Current i
_ Allocation Allocation Difference
TCHMS B.23 £.00 1.23
Steinhatchee
Schocls 2.30 5.00 =270
Tavlor Tech 3.06 3.00 0.05
: Perry Primary 3.84 500 -1.18
TSHS 549 £00 351
Taylor Elementary 450 £.00 =110
: Totzls 25.91 305,00 - -1.19
Guidance Counselors
Ezrned Current
g Allgoation Allocation Ciffargnce _
fTCMS 1.00 2.09 ~1.00
5 Sieirhatchee
E Schools CEXEL] .00 0.0
i Taylor Tech .09 .00 £.Q0
Perry Primary 1.09 1.00 - 0.0
TCHES 2.08 3.00 =508
Tavior Elementsry 1,04} (.00 1.00
| Totals 5.00 6.00 -£.00
Classroom Instructional Aldes
Currant Proposed
Aliocation Allacation  Difference
K3 plassroom Aides 10 G =158
A-12 Classroon aldes 3 0 -2
| Total 23 a 23

62
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Heon ﬂmié Recovery Plan

The [mancizl position of fhe District was projested for Jane 30, 2008 as of March 14,
2088, The profection indicated that revenues are expested 10 excead the adopted bodect
by $1:14.485. The Suptrintepdans has taken steps to reduce expendiures dowing 2097-
2008, Witk fhose econcaly sweps in place i is still projected that Genmeral Fand
exacnditres for 2008 will be abour $288,600 in cieess of the adopied budget.

Essed upen fhe same informetion evailable for 2007-2008 elong with fomcasted
eorollment and tax reveones Sor 2008-200%, Genersl Fund reverues for Fiscal Yoar 2508-
2009 are sxpested to total $22,756,734, a crop of $1,680,000. A thres percent uresservied
[zmd dalance at year-cnd 20089 is estirnated at S682,702. Al topether, the Distrct must
recluse operating costs by 4,476,581 ot 19.67% of prolcoted 2008-200%F revernues. Sc=
Table A, balow.

Table A i
Target for Hoonotrie Recovery FY 209708 | FY 2008-09
“Jane 30 2007 ol fund balenec, per relminary audil | (5 1,033,809 |
Subtract: :
Unresolved guestioned costs from audit of 2005-86 | ($57811%)
(luestion=d sosts from 2006-07 prelioninary auwdit s 65 AR2039% —
Lstimeted revenue in excess of adopted Indget ;S 214483 ]
 Esiimated expendifnres in sxoeas of edopted bydaet {8 288,600 _:
| Beticl Insumance Trast Puaxd {8 43,697) 3
Projeeted find baleser, Jume 30, 2008 . (S 2,113.775) |
| Projeeted General Fund reverues for 200809 $22,7506,734
| Estimated General Fund revenues for 2607-08 524 436,837
Projectod loss of revenus for 2008-00 o _ (5 1,680,103) ¢
roiecd total Aand balamoe  Jume 30,2009 | 53753810 ¢
{ Phis 34 of projected 2008-09% Genera] Fund revenue i {5682.702)
i ' '
: Targe: amows of expenditure redactions ) LB 4.476 581G |

District Schoel Beard policies roguire = balancod badget and a Bessrve for Contingensics
of S1,000,000. Thesc iz ne requirement in the Schonl Board Pslicies to martaiz an
pmreserved find balance. The followine statement is found fn the Prefiminary and
Tentetive sudit fedings for the Fiscal Yeer ending Tuse 30, 2007,

“Tn sogeenmental mds, reserve accousss are used fo indicals e portion of the fand

elance fhat is rostricted Lo speeific purpasss and not availebls for geacral appropriztion
hy {he Board, while e uoressrved {ind balance 1 designed to serve 25 2 TEASRC of nst

£3
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current Bmancial resoumes availabls for gereral mppropriation by ihe Boad.  The
unrescrved portion represents the amouvst that cen be vsed wilh the maost fexibilsy for
emergentics ané unforeseen simations.”

Liis gaﬁamllf accepled that aw urseserved fmd balanee of 3% 2o 5% will usnally pravide
an adsquate reserve fo profect a school distriet

Tables 3 and 4 in the Conparstive Statisticel Anslysis seclion show comparisons of
Taylor Cousty School District with six offier sehool distrlzts that arc comprrakle M size
fmancistly and in shzdent FIE caming
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Cost Recovery Table

f Bamemary of Reduckions Positiens : Amoun
Sfimemate 41 {#0.32 FTE) teacker unite as provided ic the prgosed staffmz | -
| plar for schosls 337,012 por annpal contrect uridr swith benefts} ] gf | 51317452
Elimmmate § to 10 additiornl positions Wy generats s Savings 6% 2307040
! Eliminate 23 elassroom instructional aides as providsd n the proposed
: waffing pian for schools (323,501 average salery with benefis) 231 % 540523
Flirginte 12 bus drver prsitions dus e consolidution of romres {Average :
deiver sulery icluding benefits, $36,752) 1218 201,024
¥ Gminats 5.04.19 ITTE) custocial posHions ag previded i the nroposad i
| slaffing plan for sckools (315 600 per position with bene fits} ) i & D5000
| Eliminate Geidmer Clounseler or Studant Servizes Specialist at Peery 1:§ 50000
Ermary - '
Eiliminats § Dt Batry Operator Posiion al Steinhsieher [lementzry
Schaol. {S25.000 phes borefits) 1[5 3200
Elmminame 1 Technalogy Spocialist o MIS offies (827,000 phes benefiss} 1[5 31,00
Decraase seaffat TT1 to corpensate for Joss of WED doars and for 2
| deficit in aduli special neads Budpet. 3|8 §5C00%
E itz 5 vacan: food servicd pasifons 2y provided ia the propased
siaffing wlan {or schoaks ($7BEG pET posHIE: 5%  3AD330
Eliminaie 1 vacant Finance oifice position as provided i the prposes
staffine alan for schands (cost avoidance) : 115 18000
- - Subtotad of Staff Redactions 59 | $2,915069
Dispose of £2 busey take oat of service elimimating cperating bosts {zmnua 115,700
oost ol 39,647 per ve bisled) T )
THScomtnur use of pon-designated General Fond dollems for rpading e s 0o
coaches )
“Transpartation fors for ailedc trips from internal fands {avrrnes annmal 5 TAMH
L coat for 4 boum o day for 180 days 35 §17,5470r about $25 per o), Gizls
and boys teers amd bands for high and middle schools to CA-DEEOWTL
-gontests {160 evers fof 3 honrs sach [@525) o
Elimivete ovarime (25,000 pajd in 2006-2607) "3 %560
User feos for Domser: Stadim/Percr-Pace Ficld complex: indtizl target 8 10,060
Hcduiiaiibii )
* Traps[re B2E atafSngy seecinlist i 00A T 75,000
Elimingie pryments for compensatery Hme Cowt
Avoidanre
Require Fleadstart program 1o pay thaix ull operaling costs inclading !
inglirees cost: disconlizue in-ind matching expenditares — Inikal targst 18 125,000
amounl
7 Aaply cost ol Peoperty & Cagually Insuranes @ Capita] Owlay 2 mill funda. & 193,000
{Estimsted 3000 FTE times 5637 :
Reduce enersy costs by 209, less meentives fo schools S 184500
Relocate at-risk progmarms to middls and high schoals Crost
- v Avendanse
Cinse Steinhalchee Scheol, eliminating guplicative yosts. (See Notek |5 638,317
3 Subtoral Gther Cogls 1,551,512
T ot Fecommerdations § 4,476,581
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Nate 1+ The Do Cost Acgounting Sumrany S the end af Fiseal Toar 2007 indicates the Bremhemhes School cost
g F950,E00 0 operate. ClhsTrg the schoo will mat shmicsde 2 cpsty. Thees wiil 250 De soree S0, inoporalion,
and o¢her patis 1 be ineumed. )

Wete 2= The Ditric: hes foucess 2mployess on the cwrent payrall (b bove 37 on mars yeam ofgervive Binsloyess
fhet temse been co-hired zler resircment ars oz smonel comfrack i sEould nat he prappamal=l ATy of dese
senpiowess that chise aot o pasizimls m DIRUE e eandsftes for 2 vefiement by-out gt subsrantiatly less than
tlefr everomh safry cost, Fhe nod payrell cost refastin for dhe Distret far dheee 14 cphryess will b sppresdrasshy
SEI0, 000, eluding Benciite

Recommended Ronitsring Plan

The preposed Boonomic Recovery Fian cormmins many changes in curremt practices antd
mary Tesirainds in the ways things are dome in the school distriet and in the commeh #ies
of Tavlor Comnly. I wifl not be casy to mske the {rensition to new coerating prackoes
and it will be templing when the first mdicators of cconamic meovery are observed, @
rtoen 0 mevions practices. Such actions would, of course, miss & mark of TecovCry
and would sxacerbate the problems in econorpo distess.  Besanse of this, # ia
recomnmended thet e Comeissioner of Education and the Superintendent wmd Schoot
Bosrd of e Taylor Cowmty School Distict sslablish 2 Womtogng Man for
implementation of the Tconomic Recovery Plan

Doranse of te Efficnltes of change and the urgonoy of he cconormie problems faced by
he schonl districs, 1t is recommended that a Menitoring Plan be established to mplememt
%a Feonomic Recovery Plan. [f is recommended thet the Flovida Asseciziton of THstrict
Schoo] Superintendents be engaged to adwrinister the Moniloring Plan. A porson whe has
a knowlodge hass and skills in busmess and {inenuiad opesations of scheol distets shouid
he selected o serve a3 Montior, This persen should slao have proven grills in mentoring
and eeecntive coacking, For the first year of the recovery period, the Monitor shoald visit
the schooi distrizt om a monthiy hasis duries the period follovwing posting of the books. IF
appropriae progyess towad goals of moovery is being realized, the froquency of
ronitoring isits can be r=dused Lo quarteriy for the second and succeethng years.

LConclusion

Tt is zocopsmended fhat the Dismict use the mforziztion in this report o develop an
Foonermiz Bocovery Implementation Plen with steps and timelmes that wili lead to
sconomic Tecovery. The extire system and Iis stake holders showid be ongaged m the
recovery ciort.

Tt is the belief of the stdy feurs that i al! recomrespdations i the stiudy rspost are

sccapted snd carrizd out, the Distriet will reach a state of cconomic sonndness with an
\mreseryed find belasce of eporoximately 3% by the end of Fiscal Year 2008-2009.
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APPENDIX A

CURRENT ORGANIZATION CHART |
TAYLOR COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT .
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APPENDIX B

RECOMMENDED ORGANIZATION CEART
TAYLOR COUNTY SCHOCL DISTRICT
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APPENDIX C

RECOMMENDED FUNCTIONS
ASSIGNMENTS TO COST CENTERS
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APPENDIX D

METHODS FOR DEVELCPING
A STAFFVING PLAN
TAYLOR COUNTY SCHOOGL BISTRICY
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Methods of Concucting the S*i;émng Stady
Proface

7R

Conternporary management litetstare contimiss to emphasize the importanes of “systams
hinking” and the survival sequirement o develop wajor miegrated service deliverny
wystems a8 an instiistionafized practice. Florida pubfic school districts are ne exceptson
to 1his nesd. I

The public educetion eataprise is Ihor intensive. Accordmgly, huiman resowEces 208 tha
mest valuable cmEty impeacting the qualiy condomwem with zefarcoce o student
pezfremence.  The recroitmens, ssfectivn, reietion, develepmsnt and depioyment of
These resouress s of prime significance when thinking of systems design. This stedy and
repoxt wili Jay the prociceie and provide fhe outline for such & system. The focus will be
om bhe cguitable depleyment of nesded and feeally sound aflocations withie a position
contro! sysiem that prowides = dmwoet linkage between allocaticas, FTH forecasting,
Tevenue, idgetng und cost acommring.

Thess costs will copstitote the largest single ewpendimre from the operating budzct
Croasinnally, staffing consuress ap to 85 porcent of the tofal.  The msporance te
sysiametically plan the total compesition of the work force and to provide for the
sauftable distribation of these services is more than evident.

Throughout Flerida master agresments, individual cmployment coniracts, the Flesids
sdministrative Code, the Iegislative session and ofher inferagency docimeats anmaally
infimense lhese aliocaticas. The adoption of 2 staffing system for schonls is (he mitial
step aod provides ihe Framewotk for this cyclic process.

Ong st recognize that no singlz document will addecss Bl of the dgaamics of staffing
For 1 typicsl school syswm. Flexibility bovk for schoof units and the distriel management
1zam is critical. Successiiy plans shounld include tho ability to address uniqes and umstial
acceds. Accordingly, the seperintendsnl will be able to make adiustments besed upon e
eveination of these needs 42 controlled by fie district inencial resourcss.

This stafting system is based upon a projectsd stedemt membershop comvertsd to
ymweightad FTE by school and by progears categaory. It is one of the st acomate WaFs
of determining smffinp becavse it direclly allocates ressaces from €1e FEFP catsgory
thas genereiss Lhe specific fimds. This pariicul systom has buill in checkpoinis ard
adjustment perinds 2t the opening of schoot and filewing the acimat Oclober TR cowl
for second semester implemernlation,
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S A

Background

Faih T s T (X e

Staffing Studiss are comprehensive in mature zml imvolve 2 on site visit by (¢

supportng consnltantis). Several mzjor eogeapis guide the stedy as Follorvs:

=

1.abor costs consiitate the larsosi single expenditure fromn school distrist gperating
budeets.

Colleclive Berzaimng, iaditionally low salades, inflation, Hngs benciss,
competition for the besl and othsr Sctors continge is merease b costs for
edncations] hurman sorvices. The rate of badeet increases s alamning.

T evemo Increases in the stefe of Flotica bave not keps pace wilh e labor market
trends. This is parncelady frus with z=fersane 10 she past five yeurs. Mach ofthe
inciease & fending has been consumed by growth and/or fxed operational cosls.

Tha turcent tax stuctute in the stafe fs not promising with referenes o meeting
fmire revenuc Teqmirernents.,

Tmc fo the changing matire of the lcamer, the need nercases [or focused
jrdividwal inwsueltion znd intorpersona! intermstion providing lowsr aduir
stodant Talics,

affine in many sehool districls has evolved over a patiod of years and mag not
irclude 2 systematic process to dotttrnine approprizte stafiing levels or thes
enurtable deplovineot.

The foregeing is crearng & poisndal fscal crisik’ throughout this state. The
prolilem may be manased by adopting a comprehessive plan that eonirols ke
natore, use, allocation and develonment of all humsn reseurce allncations.
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Dati Cﬂé’feﬂmﬂ

Prior to andor dﬁrmg the on sic visk, Eau mnmﬂtaﬂt Teuuasiud and I‘Eﬂﬂl‘fﬁd Lhc
foltowing:

-

Ootober FTE count disageregated by school and By the Flonds Educationa!
Finarcce Progmm cost L?ELL.bDI}F snd actzl uiweighted FTE for the 2007-2003
sahoal year.

Currant sckool staffing levels. This report identified in sepevate categosics the
Pollewing employment umis:

¥ lInstuctiona] Basio * Admintslraive

¥ Voeational Education- # Clerical _

¥ Excepions] Smdent ¥ CatsgoricalTederal
Fdecazon ¥ Unstodiz(

» Gudamce ¥ Food Service

7 Media P Teacher Assistants
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Tatend=cta

=

=

oy

G Err i

= e

Foous of stedy

0 perceplion oI neads
Systers pricsities
Carrent issras
Sraf mofls
Yision for the diszic:
ComyLftant 2limats asscesmesy

Ielen:idy process for systematic
chanye

Deamime commanisy interaclion
ané chcational peicrities from e
public perspective

Exploe stafling concept of “mome”

Exolere staffing sonaept of “more
¥5, fess s, difceent”

Hold interective conversations to
explore and vaderstand eurran?
staffing status and pzeds

Ilemtify the weiqeeness of the Taybor
Conmy Educstional snierprise 5o
thal staffing may be designzd
zecomingly

On-Site Visit

=

rv meering with the Schoot Stalling Comuoitéec 1o diseiss:

Tietine staffing as a basie fanston of
nnaement

Dieterming the source of Llocal
intzrest, pride #nd vision for Zic
fumirs of the Taylor Comnty
tnstroctiomal prograsit

Exmlore the reture of statfing on 2
public service agency

{Observe the leadership Rem
interaclion

Identify sensitve staffing issocs

Idenaly loeal sckool site staffmg
flaxibility interests and requirements

Provade the consaltant with 2 sense
of what il mcens to be & Taylor
County resident and educational
TTEATEERT

Explove the concept of systematic
change and cernprehansive planeing
a3 lrasic Fructon of managessant

Focus on stafing as 2 maior
coninibutor to a process hased quality
siandard In a 2on-threalening
devidoprental ervironmenl

Raizs the cominsing ssuc of
affrd abilaty
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Staffing Plan - Management Procedures,
et OSks gl Timelings

e Tu T par g et 1

P T e

This waffing plan is reore than 2 series of allocation fornmdac. it is & complets taapagement
syt to deploy and control all school bescd empleyoesnt uniig. It has sevaral hoilt o
rheckpoints, i also assumes that my cffective school-based staffiag configuration is cyshc i
ralare, initiates anmral budeel developmenls - planning process, and fvther that it is 1zflzensed
Ty propmum nesds, cdntrastual znd ather fegal requirerent, and finalty must be systematicelly
monitored. The foflowing re control proccdures processes mnd reccmmanded praghoes:

i lase November, usiig a five-year history and fhe cobort survival method or ofher imalar
formale, calewdate the stedent membership projection for the next fscal year.

Disazzregate the distict membership prejections by school by grade level ang by full time
exeopional stadent education program us necessary. Donot dirpbcate the cowur

Calenlate the mamberskip to anmeatized FTE mtio for the proceding October connt, FIE
will be slishtly less since not 21 smdents atigad fall time

Agly this frclor to each scheols totel projscted mentbership Lo predict e praxizmen ILE
proiecion. .

Ciioulate from the preceding (ctober count {for sech scoel) FiE program calbgory
percentage of the toked school FTE.

Apply these percentapes to the tolal sckont F1E projeciions tn delemmnine the projectsd FIS
TY DTOZIm Caeg0Ty- :

Forward these mertbershin and program FTE prajecticns ta sthaol principals for their review
snd written soactior. Each principel shoiid examine thess projectons by erades kovel roll
1up, ESE staffings, commmity developmentichangs, aad/or program addidonsfdelztions. The
intals should be adfusted sccordingly and returned to the distret for final analysis.

To complete the district analysis, comupils cach FTE program category and comipae Thar
siatc FTE ferccast, Yorward to the Depariment of Educaior with the differences deseribed
and jastificd as necessary.

Davelop the stalfing plar I December sach yeaz. The proposed glan shoeld be baszd oo
new programs, budget mecds and overall performance [rom the preceding school year.
Present the proposed plan to thy Sehool Board far adoption at the first regnlarty sehedided
meeting ™ Janwary. This will begin the aaral budset development znd. staffmg
reammointment 2ycle for the mext school year.

10, Divide the prajectcd FTE caicgory by the adepted aHosabon factor to determime e

istruetionsl uait ztlosation. Tistibuie Tae projestsd aflocatorns © schools by February sor
irplorncatios the next Hscal yoaz.
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11, cases where sorollmest profections sre nncermin, r-appointment recommendations for
annoe? contract tsachers should be conservedive. '

12 On Tissday followsag Labor Day Holidsy have sshool principals take an epxollment count of
stadents who have heen o allendanse at least one day and who have zot withdrawn.

13, Compare e acteal emrollment to the projostsd enrellment and calcwfai 1he adfastment
factoe as followa: :

Aciugl envollmert =-Adjsgiment Fastor
Projectsd Enrolimasnt

Round to a four-dight decimal

P4, Meltiply e sdjostment [wctor fimes sach projected FFE program catogory (¢ zqoal adjuzisd
FTE, Divide by the allocsiion facfor fo detenmnine the adjusincnt instructional umit
aoculions.

15. Compete the adjmsted imsimuctional umit sllecalons ro the existipg allocalsd unis to
detersnine the meresse or Secreass amd agiust stall aceordingty.

15, Recalcalate the setmal Octeber FTF count (amomalized) aed commpare io the adfusiad
affocations (or sebml sllocations if no adiustments were mede)  These gllocations will
Lerome the sccond semesicr planning target. Atmition shoulé be used whenevor possible.
Due earc st be cxescized nol 1o dismet the seheols or insirgetional programs. Farther
amphasis is placed on this peint in elementary schosls when classes have been Tormed and
students assigned,

Rernember this step primarily serves a8 2 head staet on the foFowing [iscal year sls[Fne
when enrolbnent patterns have shificd significzntly by the Oetohar poriod

17, in November of the Fallowing year zepeat the sycle.

PR

om o] e

TR



FTE Projection Formala

1. Disiricl &taff projects membership and FTT by progra by school.

Prejectsd membership converted Le projected wnweighied FTE by the following Tormmulas:

8. Attued Octobar FTE famsalized® = FTH corversion factor
Al Ociober membership
b. FTE conversion Factor & projecied membership = projested FTT totai
c. dotuel FTE ¢ by gaf:rn; appet = Program Calegory Reiic
Aetunl FUE total
4 Frogram catsgory Ttio X prajectad FTE total = projectzd FTE {category;
Z. Principals review and adjust projectad membership and FTE
3. 1Jistrict Staff compiles adivsted projsctions.
4. Projected FFE z-{ﬁ'af&!'}:ﬂf":_]* — [ratruetiona! i caloulalion

Alncation Frotor

¥ anmileed FIE = Chetobar s 2

L L 6 W R
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Composite Table
Tustructional Unif ABocation Faciors

Trogram Category ARocztion Faclor
Basie

Basic Flem K-3% 1500
Basic Elem 4-% 19.00
Ragic Middle 4-8 19.00
Aasic JofS8r 512 2200
ESCL 2250
Vocational

Voeatiooal Bducation 1732
Exesptions! Edutation

Eevel 111 15.00%*
fevel 112 15.060%*
Fescl 153 13 0=
Level 254 A
Love] 255 6.00%*
Prescheol Handicapped 8.42°
Physical/Cecnpationz Toerapy 1.2%
SpeechfHear BT 34}
SpeuchiHear/Tang _ £.00
Vismally Handicapped 1.00
Hespitzt Homebaund 1.3%

Alternative Education-Spzcial Categories

HMbovance 15,90
T E5.00
LTF 15.40

(zss size reduction umile arc allocated by the Assislaut Svperiniendonts independeatly of
membershep proicciicns.

=+ aTaceFon Seror Tichades =k e movids ofls 385 ic (ROt e, o, e, Pt ethisasion, semgy ler inctruction

EPresso0 Mimdieged will be nllomsled ot 2 fasnT of BN

AT

e g et e e
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Service Elnits

Elementary - Middie
Sekhaols Schovls
1-34% Enrollment 1 - 3 Iiqraiment
1 Erincipal ] Principal

1 Assistad Principal-uf)
1 kiedia Spociatsl
5 Ceanszloc

40{-T4% Eproliment

1 Principat

1 Agsictant Prircipal-10
1 Mediz Spaciadist

| Comlar

750994 Eprollrscet
1 Principal

1 Assset Preecipal-10
1 Mediz Specialist
1.5 Coamsedors

T0H-1090 Enrefment
1 Principel

| At Priseeal
2 Wedia Speciliss

2 Oomensaloss

1108 - 1319 Enrallmert
| Po=oizal -

1.5 Asgistan| Principals
2 MadiaSpecrlist

3 Comaslors

1 Assirtant Fringipad-12
1 Assistart Pincipal10
| Mefin Epesialist

M00-1199 Enpolimend
1 Prencipel

P Azsistrar Princpal-22
b Avsferaes Principal-10
2 Wi Soerizlins

L200-E59% Forelmeat
1 Pringlpet

1 Asmstuml Prinema-12
1 Asgistant Frincipal-10
2 Modia Soectalizy

1500 + B piiveent

i Prmeipel

1 Assistent Principai-12
3 Azsistant Prinepel190
2 Media Epeciatists

T

Senior High
Schogls

1= 745 Kirolliment
Prmenpl

Fzzistmt Prmedpal-12
Assistens Frinstpal-18
Tdcadia Speciaiia

w1 Emeedent AcHwities Coged

750399 Earcllmest
1 Prireips:

2 Assistems Wincpals-12
1 Amsistimt Principat-10
1 Madia Snncialisr

=] Zmelest Actviges Coord.

100[=1498 Frrolirzenl

1 Pamoipal

7 Assistanl Pritcipads-12

2 Aswzstent Panagpnls-10

2 Mudia Specizlisia

w1 Sedert Astivities Coomd

1506-T99 Ferotheent

b Dricipal

7 Assistant Principsls-12

5 Assistapt Princials- 10

2 e Specialisis

%1 Simders Activitizs Coord.

2906 + Eoreibmesnt

1 Frmncipal -

2 Asamstant Prnagels-12

&4 Aaststent Prancigals-10

7 Media Speciclisis

#| Sunderst Activitizs Coerd

Guidance Cognselovs - Secondary Schools

1-£37
58 - 1042
1663 - 1457

b bea e

|423 ~-F012
193% - 2337
233 & ol

o by Iw

Note:  Sacsndery Cuidanor Gounsaloss aee sffeiated at  for ecch 425 shidents andd major,  fracriom theregf (e talie ahovef,

¥lrmtrmediamal Uil Wil @ susplesent

L 1 I F i

i

] e
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Clerical Staffing

Elemseqniery Srhoolks

1658 Eyrol et :
frheel Socmtery
Slemcminy Bockiaenar
Bate Bay Dlédk
Libney Cierk

Huall Sraisrat

Lo gy oo e

H80-399 Enralzoznt
L Schowl Semetars
k: Tement iy Boadoemer
1 Do, Pty Clerk
[ Libeary Ok
[ Eimelts Anhrans

S0 + Farollomestr
I Zckool Seortluny
£ B mrerlary Boddckoeper
2 T oty Cicrs
1 Likars Ciork
1 Feltl: Anistant

12 Momihs
11 Mimile
1% Wamths
1% hoarths
1fr Apaths

12 it
11 hfemths
37 Moo
10 hZonths
10 hinnihs

12 Months
i1 3ontks
1] Momthy
1] Miomihs
I RTAnE

TR B e LT T ] L e B

Junior Higrn/Midile Schoot

P S H el
1 Sehoet Seerchoy
| Junice WSl Baakiespor
I Taia Folry Clark
1 Schoet Ofics Clerk
1 Tabrazy ek
b Tealrk Azziztanl
7501248 Eerglimoest
1 el Saeretay
1 Fumicgddle Boakkesper
I Diara Entry Cleak
z Sehopl Ofes: Clerk
1 Litrisy Chark
L Health Assistant
1533 1084 Eorpellresnt
1 Schual Ssoictery
1 SunieeMlddio Boakkasnzs
1 Trera Tty Clerk
.5 Sehop! QIRes ek
L Librzy Clerk
1 Heullh Azsizsmt

[ a1 e

12 3Iporse

11 Momths
1% Kiomths
I Blim2nn
10 3 fmehe

13 3 enlts
12 % untha
11 Mowths
11 blostis
10 Months
10 hlomtns

13 Ml
12 % mihs

|| MWiomtha
10 Mouathks
[ dloaths
e hlematks

Senior High Schosls

7901242 Enrolmen,
Scheol Seorotary
Senter Eooklespar
DiataTnine Clefk
4oheal 0o Sk
T ity Tletk
TTexth AssEtunt
Regismm
12305459 Brreliment,
Sancal Seatatary
Germiol Bookkesper
Date Entry Therk
Schogl OTee Ciotks
Tahmry Clerk
Fewith Aasiznnd
Regisier

SEB-] 74D Trornllivent

1 Spbool Seartary

Smdar Baofrkocper
Dty Bairy £lerk
Schoal Crtnce Clerks
T mrury Clerkia
Heg'th Ascistant
Repistezr
2~ 1999 Zarolingent
Jebon! Secmteny
Banior Bgaklkesqar
Lreen Fairy Clers
Lok OFEas Clorks
Tibcare Cletks
Tleslth Ansislanl
R gasrmur

— = o pd L e

]

— o — B e

Al e A N

bt

[

#:—n.n—l'l,uidl-\l’—'l—'
I

hd
=

9 -+ Fnmollesnt

Fchoun Seerctany
Sapginr Booklmoer
Liam Bokry Cigk
Bokool QMez Cioss
Tibmary Clackia
Henlth Aesiziant
Regiztar

— i pa LE R o —

|2 3wt
12 Mnaths
11 Mzaths
19 ke lhs
10 Mimihe
10 hlnerts
13 Wleatis

12 womdhes
12 whkmthz
11 Minnihs
1@ hcaths
i Menths
10 Menthe
72 hinnths

12 Monbhe
12 Wemits
|1 Mgl
1T dMenihz
10 AMfanths
18 Wluniths

12 Woaths

13 Moot
12 Mlamche
11 Movids
10 Manths
14 Mznibs
b Dbl
iz Tdanths

1T hamis
|2 Bdeearos
17 hdapthe
14 Monde
14 3nnths
14 Menths
12 xptas

B 1T |

g




Instruciional Aides/Assistants
Full Time Exceptional Student Education

Al Levels

3 Program Alloction Months LWYTE

{ ProFindergarten HDCP 200 10 600
Frucebie Mentally HDCP {Primary; 1.00 10 1200
Tramable Mentally FIDCT 100 0 700
Phys. BHOCY oo ' 1 o0
Emoticnally 1D 3.0 0 500
Spec. Lesrning Disabilities 1.0k 16 =00
Frofoendly HDCP 200 1% 6.0
Severely Langaage Trnpaired 0z 19 800
Hearing [mpaited .08 n 200

SRR

a1 e



Custodicl

Staffing

The following will be nsed to calculate earnimgs & custodial stefing:

q
1 Teacher Figior = mreankar odbacchars = _ _ =
B 5
2 Sludent Facir = oty of 5 Lederks =_ =
225 223
3 Ropm Fpslar = snpRer piramns - = o =3
1 11
2, Areg Foetiy = focol wen af Ruilifms . - = i
15,046 15,006
5 Sife oo musher of prrega o=
2 2
Tolal =
TATAL = s 3 Insal &l - edal gllooaHe
a3

Formula Co

1. Teacher Taciar
2. Sruelesd Faokor

3. Bmom Pactoe

i

Area Taciar

5. S Factar

& Tl Admstrment

mponents

Total rrviabes of instreeional Loits allovated.
oo alficiall smdent projeebon for tha TH95-82 schart yeat.

Tr commpraiiog soom aquivalerdesy e fullwatng dAckors am added o detereine total rooms

& Mumber of dasszooms, belodize portzble dassroants.

b Figthyr of aiffees frery small ofices or el officgfwock sress in “opeD schoals™ are
combned.}

n Nundber of gang todles.

4 Syuace [oct oo lepy woms and sr=ge areas diwtded by BUD sqmere frat,

e Sraame foot for gy, erfederia end lbwary divided by 100G sqmare faat

Brilding ares refects towi cnclossd sprec; Pt i outdde wall i ouside wall, ingluding
halhway s, covered walsways and enclesel “osteide spaee

e arpeage W rompaled as fellews The total batleling ares, meiuding pres=bles, is varslaied
it sezezze. Foreach ame of build@ng uera, B schodl is rospemaTate for 71513 square feat of
sumrawnding spate (coumtywidn muninanee mows the resst of the mesbla sited. Ty 2edditinnat
suare foctage 15 added tothe building ama o doieprine aceage [aeio.

Lozal adjsstment faclor to be determied basad gn bullding 52, sivle, age, Iype of loodng,
e of relocmiasies and ofhers Rasdly would ks adjetmens cweed D on g humdoed
peeant se=la

Bl (i1 H

B k2 | R




Building Level Staffing Flexibility

Froctionalization af Instractiosad wnEy
Insenctamal units are aliooated to schools in filt unft equivalencies by maor program calegory.
Schools have the oplion o fractionzlize 2 unit as follows:

Five of Instructional Unis/Exchange of Larred Unsits _

fach prinvipal may e the instroctional wnits alloceted to the school 2 provide the appropriale
programs. Umits sarred by hasic and vocational projecied FTE can be interchanged betwesn {he
rve broad program sress. Lxceptional Child untt alloeations are gencrated on a cormty-wide
hagty and ure placed by the Assistant Supermtendent for Tnstuction. afisr a recomumsndation by
the Director of Bxceptiann] Stadert Education. .

Priwcipals may request to- “exchange” units that zre geaerased al 4 schaol for other positions. An
cxzmaple is exchangive 2 tacher wiit for teather Aide unis, The value of wnits fa Bsted below.
Tinits are sxehanged to the “whols unit” valee. The new s may Rot excesd e vale of
replaced unit nsiag e aversge salary/bensdts. Sec the Imsmuctions in the next sestien for
“axchanged® anits, No other instractional zides aye allocated by this plam :

Ay plans d0 wse this methad to change the staff must be mbirdited m wilting to Division of
Instuction For roview. The Assistant Superiniendent witl have final approval of all meguests.
Thesc positions e far Ce-Year suly and are to by svaluaied on ai angal brasis.

The commposite allocatipn maklc i inclasive of allscadons jor special tezcher suppert Anis
such a8 aTL, Irusic, physical cducation, and pevhaps ofhers, Principals are resporsibie for
deploying these uniis 0 a manter o maintain appropriste instrachon standards thereby
mesting disirict 2nd acereditation standards. '

Appent Process :

3f for any reason a principel feels thal say of the ellocation procedurcs are mequileble of ifa
speefal situalien exists n Hsher school, the principal way appeal for rehef to the Ayeislant
Superintendent Lor Cerriculem and Instimetion.

Adjustmanis fo Projfected Afocations :

Tiuring the first 10 shedent davs, adjustments may be made w© a sehool’s allocation. Adeitions]
2djestments moay be made at any time durding the year » elow for unexpected inorsases or
Segeases ip sudenl emrollment.  The actpal Oatober FTH count will be anoualized and
recalculated to besome the second semeser lerget. The impact of the virlual school ensollment
must b considered. Reasoriable procedures will te foliowed o mistmize disruptien) to the
instuctional process. Due care will alse be exoreised so a8 wot to crake ar undee hardship on
employoss, Memaging and capring vacencies through attrition is often e best method.

R e b b e
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Special Allpcations or Provisions

1. Dizrict Reverve TS
Dietrir reserve tmits will be budscted at not less than §5 untts per yeur. Transferring all
allocated vaits of lass than .50 walue Lo the district teserve accosut will provide for 2
porion of these units, Dismic reserve wnils ere provided fora varzely of reesons. Thay
may provids for loss of FIE, grewth or may be used o solve wnique of weussal
insracions] toeds. Such aloeations do oot carry over fom one fiscal year te the mext

Services gack as Physical TherepyOczupationsl Therspy may bo contracicd. Other
disivict servicss may be comracted when it i1 sconomically advantageous io doe s

[

3. ROTC Aflveations .
© - Yehaoks with vingle ROVC inils vave one oficer that may be conyeriad to two e=fisted
nersummel {one enfisted staf¥ memnbes For the first 150 students znd one addilional enlistsd.
it member for sach addisional 100 students emrolied in ROTE). These wls mwst be
Acconnizd for in The school’s instectional wnits. Muliple units will nut excesd the above
formula. A sehool will be charged one-hslf of an Wstruclional unit for each ROTC
ingtrnetor.

4. Advanced Plocewerg/Ternational Buccaltioeats Progran
These proprams are encouraged at the Senior High Schoel and are 10 be suppporiec by a
sesenve of three wnits. These mwils will be allosared to scheol based on e neimher of
sectons offired not 4o execed 19 otal vrdta. :

Taylor County Staffing Calculations

Irredtion - .
In desimning a proposeé safling system, it s psseniial m detesrene the oeerzfl mopact
Accordingly severe] caloutations are incladed for comparison purposes.

With resard fo these Toeomuospdations & is important to remember that sialfing is a dypamic
process which shopld be monitored, reviewed asd enkanced o3 2 means to debiver instrictonal
servicex Fowever, ong should remain cegnimant of the fiseal limitations prorinent througkout
Flarica Public Education.

Therefore the appropriate stafffg plan for a dismict at @ given paint in time is one which
balances the nesd for and fact of 3 qualiy comprehensive insincticnal progrem agemst fiscal
soundness. The guding premise of this study was 1o find this balarce with the mderstanding
thet as the components cortriuiing io the dynamics of this process chaties, saling patems will
be aidjosted accondingty. ' :

CEpdE o e e
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APPENDIX E
STAYE COUNTS 1999 - 2908

COMPARATIVE 8TATISTICAL STUDY

SEITIER



RAARH TYI.OE  ToRM D] IOULOT  IgMRedd  a@eFAd 2tkyd ARASAR ROECEY  LRATS:
M PR AR ] . : I I i L ! i
TER AEFT, 30 KET c : 1 1 P -
:;5:{11{‘?3)1_?&)!::@5} Y ES k] i) ) 1 H 1
TR A T AT T AL T A H E 3 1 1 3
CIZE, AL, MM A e . t T B
Lo CaE i . = 5 5 4 4 + E = E
LR, MO IRE TRITET AT - : s 3 'y Py _' 5 G 5
CUOWE, T,E AR . i I [ 2 T s ‘2 1
DAL BTN 5 E 3 3 3 E3 5 T
PR T '_H_"'-vi.m—mlﬂfn F) F] . i T 1 |
RTRCB AL, SP TIGE i TR 1 1 T R f
HRIC 1, S T 6 i : H 1 i T
SRS U AL, " = i S =T 4 T r &
FERT L BLaT o ! = 3 ey E 3 = &
B e R s = a1 z Y
ATET PRI, 4 LR ¥ 3 i = = 3 2 F 1,
AT ARG L T - T . i
ARET P IO EAL PR Y T 8 _ & E t
LN, AT CAURS T S -
CONG BOTONLE CODRD R ] ] i
PR AR — L < 4 i
TR TRGARTES TEATEER T W TN TR,
‘ELEREEMTARY 1-2 - 3 CEEEERE: E- ) Eal &
LT VA BN e 31 o i AR EE o ) = A%
AT EAE T2 R T = ’
FEHTRNELN FRAA I i A [ = = 1z =] R
SRR T 1 == R Iz e i =
ELORD AT 15 ﬂ- Y = E s = &=
FICERDARY Rz, . B # TR TR = R
| ST AL (] T3 (TR i w aE 1m 3
SN CRRLDT eI N F T = oz o E
DURES TEATIRRS i I 5 ] S
L LA, FLERA RN T A El 13 B EX x E E +
GLADHALTCE, MR : = E} : EAES T = z
SIS, BN ] R T z T T z T
EROANES, CteE., e s .
Y ST T T i H SRR : z F z z ’E
G DR TET Al ] [ [ 4 El B i) o3 "
I, PO RROCI AL WHE, S ,,
PRV, o @ z : 2 o z =
SRR R N B el N CEE i %
T RO i R tl CEE Ly 5 1 e i
e }{ﬂN—.?.I:‘IW\EZ\!M . ' = £ T 1 L] L T L
Fh FRirors Lt R T = " » " w® T
AT, AT 13 R A N A )
ST I LD AT T 3 3t m T =y = i =
DGR A s K I i o oA® () A ) T
RDERFOTA, 57 O T & - % = 5
TRCIRAELANG R . - o
ORI POeRE B | 43 = e 0 = ™ = @ m
P, B A, ~ o o =TT R EEECEE
SHILLED CaFTR im x i & _F. ¥ E * x
B P L T U O S A S e |
TR TRES A T TR HETTTIR EeT] Tar d R i 3
BANTER L1 TR L [ [t | Dol 1 [ 2 Zrd-Ak, im0 RIS 2EQSBT EDETER

TSI

[EEETTETEITTITE LETTR LT

PR T RIS Y IR VIS PP

TR R L

1°TIN

=




AT
RPERIEYRZENT

Ty m0dndk  BMEDT CEAGEED MO IeMTSF phedn smielr Sl
] H 1

Tati, AT, A0 TS

TR ORI, LOUED

M|t~
1
—-
—

27 WCHL KBTI T AL

u
ELd? L
e | o
F
._\.
"
i
L

=M &SI, WML,

rears, S5t P R e N + Fo.oooA 177 3 E 5 [

CFF, A SRTTEFTTAL 9 a4 E 4 5 3 & &

CoME. RV EOATISTR . i x R

FRINCI S5k - £ 5 a0 5 3 E z

< = 0 —rueta S -

PRACLRNE, MITLIA - i) H [ ! L o i
) - i I 1 L

2eIvT AL, SRINET

i A T

FREHCIRLE TR A

MEET PRIARENM

TP blsE ] z = . R
ATET TR, TR IGE N ¥ N 3 >
- 1 z 3 5

AEET PG,

el |ea| ey a|w] —i-

1B AT DU ST

COTRERTIETLE OOED

FREFTEATHRR

0RO g e T

FARREINGE A

TR R S )

25 B BRI A6

= 1 40 41 s o 49
' a1 B Th

PRI AR BV RIEE

7B T T E AT O

1 b

HLEMENT AR O

e

Eﬁ?ﬂil:‘?ﬁ:ﬂ.zx I

e s b,

SECET AT G
7 T

I8
T CHO T TEACHER

1

FUER THEaRUHET

&
o @B
=
ks
[
=
-

&

.

i
-

G ANETE, KL S EFTASYT

|

wlw] & ®

4
S
ra
"
e

SR AR NI,

re

LA SR TVOE |

T3

§

If.
Mfe |
el -
we
| w
| W
W

G edte | wge| n]wl &3

GLNT RBCR O TR, T 1 t b [ 1. i 5 L

Prebrrs - - - -
Ol R LACE SRES ! x T h) T T ] 1 i
GLEDANZETDTAL @, P . = L ] th v

R, AR, W

PRGN O],

IR AN Y

=l |

Wil [
L]
g
W
v | e Ee]
e | e | 1,
e

Grd NEE AT L2 ! i - i e
B DA NN ORFINET, T e 1 & x * 1
T ey A iZ w | aE ) 0 3

TramebtaTeRL e 5 % s T a = T} wo b
o0 G B AT - L = iz 2 iF 15 -3 = 13
ETHR AT N T It 1 . T W n E. s
ABRETOTAL TE = 4 3 7 & G 3
ﬁﬁﬂmﬁ I . F A I 1 i B
CLTRIALETCRE oaEal S =, e £ 4 1, wma =i 4.
LR P W E k] BS s % # & T T
SRR RS E 2 i [ ta i w’ 1 i
ERBEAREIMILAED L oot LR I T S Sy appmnt e

FCrTAT B CEES L5 -
HRAEARD

R T S A A ST TR )
PIALA  JGMES| PTLSC AeAn b dugkdd  POOESR BANSUE  JpUELT TAES0E

T

T T T LI

¥

oy e




ST

Ll -t

L3

AT Manid eSO

At DRSSO CEMNSET M-

LUTERLTENBCNT & L1 i L 3 1
BER, AR, ARSI CT T N H L " 3 1 |
B, B YIS0, Qe z K Tz E ' B - B
D AL LS TRATOTAL 2 v % T E 3 3 R
A _ARET, MR _

SR, SUTVISAR, SR , £« 4 4 & s"?“_ k] 7 ”_s_ 7
BT, RS TETOTAL 5 A p PR N £ ® p
5, SUPAIERGHETT T X B H s i I 1
sERRCINAL, B ELET R L 2 F = ¥ T = Ly
L, R : )
PR AL St (O ) £ I x = R z
PRESCIPAL, STITES ] _ i .

PETECIAL fre iy ] R i o= s 3
ASET PRI, B LM L 2- E = B 2
AEET piers, MOLTE T E
AT PRI R SRR ] 2 ] El i 2 7 2
AEET PREL TR I 1 N —
AN PP T a E z = R H, 5 5
TR ARER A LR TR R EY 3 1 T E : x T 2
TOans Yo B .
FUTR TENCHES “ 1 E 2 ¥ 3 H

FRTHEARTEN TRACSH S

B T AR

HEA

1]
7

BESTRE e R il B
LR
SETMATY A0 B

i
et I, B R L

T DARY T2

e T LTTEL]

A EIR

EROOWMALY M-

HRCNT AT TOTAT = i k= EE T =z Fa i e
e T T = ' P = A [ =
S TEAUETIS BE 2 ) ? 2 f R
GLIZOA MR, TR AR 3 E} 1 + 4 o= 7 ] 2
RN T I - T 1 : 1 2 NI
AN, 5 ¥ - B = ¥ ¥ % T z z *
ARG, ST , 7 1 2 =
RS B DT e . e

I ANEET AL T 3 & 7 4 z B0 L
VR, ORI VR O o S T j
(EYCROLPCITRL. . : 1 L "
R AR AN T = 1 5 o E 3 # _-1 [
CF3 NON-ACATT A H % P 5 i 4 e 1k
TR BRI E x I L s 1. G
TLANSEOLNA AR i hL 13 B B L1 1= B FS LI 3]
CLASRRGONT kL I iE] 5 2 § & T i ) H
B2 CIZED AGES [ Y 5 = = P % 2 =
LT R A ] i - [ o, &
ARERTOTRL 5 L B & = ) 21 B
TECHMELAS . o : z 3
CLERCAL AR AT, S FTIET = - S 3 1
R SRS ) T2 E N I &1 #l a
Bl SRAFTS . 1 E E ) B E) S
T Lo T T i¥t) 5 N T R P il T, E-T ET

b mEsT

19eeanT  Uhmed]  FepEoi acups]d Tei-Rd

i T E g 1 T e H

e

B I H

e

13T

I



ELTEN . EBRLOG PRI MEIGE TRISS FGsud 2EmCUS 2eRFUS ammal 2T

YUK TN _ I B

1

1, E 1 1 F 3

T, RENT, A AT

[RAL B 0L LI )

CTE BT AL ) o "' ' 1 = 3
Bt S " o
gk, BLTE It 0, v o X ¥ T R e = 7
T, RON-RE TR O a 9 ) ¥ ] T e
e, SUTW IS T ] . ) -
FREEINAT, ELEM TR TR 3 @ x 1 ? a2
- PR AL, WD TR £ r I 1 = - T T
A e O T S g z B = P 7
D IEPAL, ERHTR, - E "3 F] 1, = H 3 Lz 1
PRINRIPATSTOTAL. F E] T ? 7 G A
AT P R ® : I ooy
ATET ERIPLMITIE, T ; : R i G +
MR TR ARG R S 1 5 R T
PEET PR, IR B T 1 i ! = i 2
A BT DRI OTAL F e & P I
Iy, ki AL SR 1 1 2 : .
CXRGA BTECORS COORD T -
* PR AT HEE ' s E] L i'-.-.;,..M:.:._.c . 3 ) T
IUNTERGARTEN TEATHER 1. = 13 17 L3 = 15 14
FLEMTMTAT Y 2-2 . an ' ad s %0 £
: S . .

Ul BAAY b

|
VETEA Y gefEe : 1L
-

IR AL THACTERE

LN TR, ) 1%r )

SRTOHDARY 73 L E 1l =

RELCOMTIARY B3 = EH

et et Ny -

IR AL VAN VA,

EX FHLOTERCHNER |

fafate TER ke

LR AT T R TR T

LT E SO,

£ LA LT, S R L

SUTANGE, e ER £

UeCCr LTl EFEC

LS HOMADAN SR

1 ADAMGEEFenr, ey T 2 5 5 ? -l 5
VIR, TEHE O, T . - T
Fa M EHGEGRC A ] 1 i’ . e
CTEER AT T 7 ) s - T
1
+

LTS MO N-ALLEN Tl AT

4
AR

L N I AR ER T E

CEASIA AT L

B3
K

¥
TXE CHI LR sty - T
DTRET AWCES 1t

AR I e
G

£ S I P - IS P Y O

AIDERTTAL 1=

+
[}
'
W
n
"
)
=3
s
L
Ipgr
bl

TRCIPGLANH

CLORMCALBECAT T ASTAL _ BOH

=4 = 34

NN Y ERS - ’ 3 &

SRSy CRAYT El El

H a3

3 ) T

LARCRLEE, UAERILLELL 2 i

%]

F]
) R i % Y
R
z

e SR RPNt o _Jags SR vdv, ST o) P O L U, U v . L.

T RSy 54 +4F =33

=

T [T amm . Ais EE

HOLMES e R AUVE0R ZORAd  Fem-nh PRt ECEEDE  DANGAT 2LGTOE

B e I i

rmar

=)




RLADEON gt NN zﬁsﬁ'l-ﬂ-'.‘. DAY TEOmE AERIAT MOSHA NNEST  TCELT -

e Bi T b ek =i 5 1 r P 1 4 1 B I L .

Do, AV ASSOFLNST . o ) :
e, T e, LGRS 2 PR 1 4 :
CETE, Eoh [l TRITTAL. ' - o NEE " .
SRl AET, RN R BT T - :
Sy, RO COwRY L ® : 3 ¥ 3 s 5 5 :
AP e BT O TAL LY 5 e S a0 :
AMMIFAL SRS 7 F P 1 | 3 3 3 E
FRINCIEAL, Sz f 3 : i : 1 : - £
FTNCIPAL, 3R Tl ! . b i ¥ K Lo
HMerimlpal OTEER | i I 2 I 3 1 :
PETRNA NLETUTAL ___ TG 4 & & o1 2 :
ASETIRAN, ff B o [ B Lo i oo -
AT TR MR T R il il 2 ] :
AT FIHEL, G 0 - x : T T 2 s 1 : T o
SSTYRRLOTRE , B 2 £ 3 . o
T ’ Ty .+ : i & & % X :
AN T, GIIR I, il - i ‘5 g T w e 3
S OB T - o R
VREK TEACAER, - T p 3 T S _ P
EIMPERGARISH TRACVER 0 43 i 1 1 i 5 = I R
BLERENTERY LS -5 £ Bty 3 Er AT g ER £ -
R L % L I3 23 13 = i3 & 13 =
PLDARY S0 W 12 ) o~ E
LR TR Ay T . 3T s - PR B s i o
ELEM AT O TR L T FTR 07 ) i= & & 65 -
RO AT T e FY I H T am e . MW T
SPEENBASY 77 ) iy} LT a1 ET s W = o
. , P
B AR T AL ' ol #l i 77 <0 iy eF 1k : :
3 L ATEASGRE. s sy L M 3 = = 7 = 3
CATER TEACaEns : R il i 3o - o
AR, T P A B 1 | [ r T PR 1 | i
STRANCE, SRR L 3 : 1 : Tt PR i E
T T, S [GE _ 3 2 . 2 B o
PRy g——" T - K T p ;!
GCOURTLACE SFED j ) ' -
STEATATEINL ] £ : 4 1 z 5 1 % 5 :
I TEARBONAL WRE T L : ? B -
SRPTITRLAGEIAL : ] :
; S z t E -

BRAR LNV

O HONFTANETR -
AP MO AN IMET r
(L ASSECRIN 2] CRERA-E
€1 45EA00OM ADER 13
ERECHLONERE . .

TR AT L T ) iz
ATTERN AL, ) El :
TELEM KIANS
LI S CRe AR,
AERRICE WORKERR
FEILED TRAFFS-

r
M
!

1.
k=1
Jud o

-1
=
i

4] = |2
w

“L

L';H.,ﬁ aad i ] E (2

w| 8|

AR TR EREEILEND | s vssn i s e g i et e e oo R
STEAl T IMES 5T [T AT E T R o Tes i

MARISEN Aty MO IRIGR OO0 BRI 200400 RS s E -3




TR
SUMTRRTENTELT ! L

i

ShoEr FTueR QONGA1 HISRET IR 0018 I0S0e Faweer  dgTd

I, BEST AEFIMET

B, SIS OO0 R

-
Eia]as

(o, AL TR TIRAL

HEr, AT HORHMETR

1, ERETROE £

=1
-

1Ry, Weol-M T TITAL

S

[

(LY
el

COHE, B SRANETR ' E

]

FRCE L L e s

| Lr

@

Al

— | | R

§

I~
v el

PR CTT AL MITTIE, . £ P 1 i A E [
TIPS R G Uz t E L d H H 3 t
SR G R 3 5 T x 2 B
imenicdebivserlal - . - - -
PRIUGRAET DA L : % £ ; : z 4 LI
A BRI, BLEST T Bt B z 2 2 EE!
ATHT POIM WATR H 1 i ] v |1 ; 1 i
AT PRI TRTRGH B } i I 4 2 i I ]
ARET PRIFLETTER i -
o v -
ARET BENSTIAL % 4 ot 4 + 5 B 1

VA s O SRR COTERD ) k)

r

-
R SRS OEE D — .

FRES TEalian . 3 E i, 7 z [
KSR R TEN AR, TR ] i E 3 FER
L RTERTAIY 3 ’ 2] 6 S P53 T 5 £

H_EABKTARNY A6 33 oy
Frleasd B E0EZ

|
ATIERR ELE TRAC RS 35 N

e AR AL

SN 23 H

Lttty o g =)

FECTINA R KGR T ] E3_ &7

1 CHIE FEREEEL, TTm 52 = =3 = 73 a7 .

BT AT RE ' [ £ 5 -z < 3 - 3 .
CHIDAHEN, ety o fians a o

ST, 3 s 3 . = * 3 2 X .7 g
AR A Tz 2 t 3 ' r = =
CRUTTRAHCE, F iR ' L T r 1 t. R : L
CICCIPRL AL FRBC HB f i Lo | H 1 i Lt
SRR T AR _ & & L . = * £, .9 - __E- _ _ﬁ
THE TR Al R 5 L E H 3 1 3 2 ¥,

FE Lot L

TS Ty

LI DA TR U Y

CLS HEN-ADRNORINET 11

CLATREDMRRESXA 3

"
L=
44

a1
SRR AR, 10 j 5 v
s
13

“EHE L A0S = ™ B A I "
OTRERADES 2 n 34 F ) &5 k)
ASEEVRGNI. t. Hi iz o =

o
IO BEMIC AN

CLERIEALGETRETAR AL

EEIWIDE WORKERS 53 "

3

H

2
Al | o i e ol e -

L Py R 1T Tl I

B

i

.':' fj‘:ﬂ‘ﬁ@f_ T : FET =[]
LT L

et

L

£ T S

=

5 ST

ooz ZOFBLY ZMIAS ZO4RE 2MRAS  20NHT RT-TE

b Rk A

ERTI

SIRICTIFN

)



AT [Eo R T = T o S T . T s R R T LS

FUPCAN IFE DN T ! ! ? i 1 il ¥ r i

L1l
]
(=]
ha
u--
.

BB, K p v, SO 1 P
é?éﬁﬁm—mh‘m?qrr;:. . i ; . x i
FEF. AST L HUINE NS T ' -
g S e R - ) 3 ’

CEF, RRIHSTRT AL q
SR, B PHALA TR : P i e
PROEOAAL EL A ] L
fiNCAl Mg i Lo 1
TRLR T [ B R0 1 !

i’
ter
LY
h
=
r
i
Ik

L fw
-

-
-

L 1

oo | e | e | e faw

P R

RHTEA L (T ERR H H . :
PRrAIA L OTTETAL X 1 E A 4 4 A T
AESTIRL, TR . i I s v ) L : ;
ASE TR, w11 L : ' i s ! I i ;
BT 7o, S A : ; : T A [ Lo
AEEY IR QVmEy I . -

ARERIROTAL z i 3 = 3 H F i 5

T, : " " = : :
BEANALLUFTRG COmE
CLMRERUEDEN S COGRT

I TE AR, = t - z ] 3 5 :
ST AESTE VAR, Y F 1 T o w - T m .
AEmPFARY 12 TR = = = = TR Lok
IR TR Y A T ;n; - ® 1 £o-
A 3 EVED - e @ F

THICE ELT TOArr s 7] = T it [E] = = ]
LM TARYRIT AL an & 53 s i = ™ TS
s

e T, E TR R ek o Py L R e " TR R e

SETTTART T = % N
SRR Y 1010 ko) £ 5% i i 17 i <)

SEEINEARTAUTAS: 4l n : ; =
ERE T TEAUIEA N st T E T - T R
= —
2
5
s

OTREA AT 5.

AIAMCR, SMETTARY >
GLACAREL RO ) ]
R ey T T

SAMIARCE, TR HIGH 1
SUADANRE, CFEHDR ]

ADEINILALE S7el L 1 - i i I t

-
[
n
L]
"

G ANET I 4 4 4 NER : .
WIE ITHRE DAL R L ) -
FyTmnenathAL o '
FAERAnANEAY ) i, i 1 B E 3 iy Y .
'i:IPn::g:'Nﬂa.{:.'-::wzm : : x a 6o [ [ i
P WA T & ot w m R F 2 . :
CRASSHOLRL ARIES K- ) 24 L _ X LTS * -
EN

CLATERCHON] pORLE.- 12

B T AR

SR AT

MDEETITAL .
HomnmaE -

in
“en

S|Bted SR
F
HRE

1 :
A AT AR AL, e B I W
SRV SRR RER S iz i w ) = o w7
SR ILLATD RN TS . ke T F ¥ H 7 &
Ty TS O WO S S S O N
T L LTES [5F = = i) = g > i o U .

frazeiny [#HEde 0ol TN WGSBS In04s DWREE GehRdE sieTed



3 OATRECTALR piride IEMA0] DDA BSR-RE NGTA4 I0044T ST ENLT AT

SVERREORTGONT - 4l W & 6L LY ! T - B
DTN, AHSE Al T it 52 . 5 lae _gel 153 |5t i1 Lir

| LRSS AR T T4, *h ET) T oW mE @ Lot .
T, AR TTAL e ETERE TR 7 w o ETEEE
BT ARET, WL T 62 ETET = w0 om™ m, = ¥
DB, S0, § L0R R . LS jdls kA s BB 1ME ziHa AR raEs :
OFE NG sEL [ T LI T [T A T LER hick LA rMds . ;
TGS, SEVRERANGTR ST w0 ew st mt  wm @ o B
PaRNCIEAY S L KEEE T ks LB RGRL 148 - BTE 4ME 1R 772 o
RESNTTT, WADAR " RE 507 EY 530 [ Sy Ee 50 ¥
VRITIGIF ALY BT PR ) B L] et 5 85 4k 4ED O fE3 )
PRNCRRT S ' ey e 2y Wy wed ] A ]
DR TARALATEIT AL ’ LA CEEw RTIY lym pkl | el LY T N ¢ !
AET L B LE e L3R pame o lged Lo s = :
AR PRINCERGR R~ T 1Y RaR e vEd L3 mn T LR
AIET PRAN, &1 H IR " | mady 1,4t ol Lzt L=l ] [ At ' .
AEET PN GATIER, T R -
ARET PRETNTETAL L RMT mpen T OEATR T 1g80 3T 2AN 4m 0 A5 A :
Ry p—— a R o5 4 B A :
ClRas SriOn 8 Coats 4 T N ar o I S
YETMR. TOACIRE T A T s
I E R e TGACEER T R T T Lo
PEZEA EHTAHT 1,1 I Y T TR ILBH RS S . -
PR 56 T T e i
TR E S B Wy | T I
TG B TR R = R ;
21_'.'..51-'\?‘3\1{&3:\:1m, L S s AENIS Seas ' ownsh TRIE '.'1'1'3;
SLUBMDARYE T T Tvnend lmems CGOTA MELG ANy MEE T ?
SRCGNZATCETLS Wk meday | AR IEats aned IRLE NeSEE
{%}qmu."ﬁm"ﬂ, WEFTE I mAIT ) Siiw S48 SR ELE6 @ ghgw ;
FRTHR S e el L T N S A i
ST AR T ) AX 0 SEsl | Gt Ll ch KT D W Rk i
CATLA AT ELEMEHTARY Py B R T I R e .
CRATOAREE; kaflxTie LT apm Cormy mInE I LEy L L, Tt ‘; *
:.iasm_fama-mﬁ:mr WER o fasr il raAm g xR wMF o ST RnE
E0TA R, CTTsTRE 23 44 1 W gor . oA s o i o
CICTIR S AL AVEL =TT ™2 = ETE Bi T =R g i
AN TOTAL, e O T T T :
im O BRIOEA: WK = all s ma wn i B4 :
PRICHOLOGEN, R T T L N = T A ;
L. IBR{-_E_J_E.‘\;&@?' . I TTUTEER . 1gel EBM ZEW 170n S AEN LIS SuET
RN ARTRORR S R Eas i GAE idm s Tt ooA CEmE e
PR NOHADRIICRNGT 62 Tk AT 4s THas CRANS 247 She dnim )
T ABSHGIM MOTENES TR TR RS ST ENTr SEY 6 lE BIE
:ﬁ:fFﬁSRWMhEI'Jm-E vER amy | RARE LT iwed Lag% T gl h
T R Ay PLAEE %R J33E PRGSO RWE 35 OWIF LW el
OTHER AIDES Cioana s | [Ratd A% d0ASE L BLISE | B4l Aams A4l
ARECTOEAL U Igalf  dazen 1EEIT a4a3 @G IREIY LELE AkaE T
TRCEWITANE: I I T - = ¥~ Tem ' .
CIBRICAL BECR FTARLAL AL AT PN GaimE ade I5AM MSdor TIASlE T A :
SIS R AR L dweme awgae CEDSTT TUEERT 4551 RN R M350 BmS
SREERDIRARRY B T im P DG
L R - A O~ SN g - B3 Lo
TRy, LRGeS FIE NS TR T R Y F T .'_-w,.r&"? BT T L T 1.1‘.4.'43 e : L

st tomais WORID RELCL PMOIT WHIGE ENA-04 30040 EDSHS 2GSy ISOneR






